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Strategic report
At a glance

One of the largest of the 10 regulated water and sewerage compantes in England and Wales We
provide high quality services to more than 3 3 million households and businesses in the Midlands and
mid-Wales

Where we operate
Our region stretches across the heart of the UK, from the Bnstol Channel to the Humber, and from
mid-Wales to the East Midlands
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Who we are
At Severn Trent our role i1s to secure the future of water for the communities we serve

Our challenge 1s to not only care for our water system, but to build upon 1, to meet the changing needs
of our community and environment To do this, we continually invest in renewing and improving upon
the legacy that we have, by creating new ways to deliver fresh, clean water to our customers’ taps,
before returning it safely to the environment

We nnovate so that we create a greener, cleaner water future for us all We are investing in new
technology to create energy from waste and flexible water and waste water systems for communtties
and businesses around the world

We care for your water, so that you can have peace of mind that it will always be there
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Strategic report
Chief Executive’s review

Intreduction
It's the end of my first year as Chief Executive of Severn Trent and | have enjoyed every minute of the
challenge of getting our business in the best possible shape for the next five years

We are now facing the future with confidence, despite one of the toughest price setttements in our
history

When | took up my role in 2014, | was clear that in order to create the most trusted company in our
sector we needed to focus on transforming our culture, driving operational excellence and putting
customers at the heart of what we do It's what successful businesses do, it's what we all want and 1t
creates value for our customers and our shareholders

The changes we have made over the last year have built those foundations, and | have been out to
meet everyone In our business persecnally, to listen to their views and share our vision of the kind of
awesome company we want to create It's been a huge journey condensed down Into a single year,
but | genuinely believe that creating the nght culture 1s how we’ll get the whole organisation aligned as
one and ready to deliver for the future

Performance in 2014/15

Our performance over the last year has demonstrated where we are strong and the areas we need to
dnive improvement

Looking at our improvement areas first, no one in our business 1s 1IN any doubt that water qualty 1s a
key focus area for us We've made progress in the year, but our performance hasn't been as good as
we would hke it to be So we have put together a seven point improvement plan and re-priortised £35
million of investment to replace and refurbish water quality assets nearing the end of their life, that will
also provide a greater degree of resilience in both our networks and to our water treatment works We
will also put significant focus on investing in the professional expertise of our people and developing
our process analytics to improve the reliability and availability of our assets

The other area where we think we can do better 1s around 12 hour interruptions to water supply to our
customers We are good at managing three hour interruptions, but we are not as sharp as we could be
on the bigger, more complex events We've done a lot of work over the last year to improve on that
and we will continue to invest and use better technology to help our teams to improve our service for
customers

On waste water services, we are very good at the majonty of measures, but If there’s one area where
we can do a better job it's around sewer blockages and we have set the bar very high for the next few
years

Aside from these matters, there are also many highlights from the last year, where we are pleased
with our performance Leakage performance has been very good over recent years and we have hit
our target of 10% reduction over AMPS We've set ourselves tough targets and we're challenging
ourselves to improve further We remain confident about our continuing performance where we are
strong and on many of our waste water measures we are already upper quartile in the industry We've
been recognised by the Environment Agency as the only 4* rated company in 2014 across the entire
sector for environmental performance We're also proud of our focus on and commitment to catchment
management and are one of the few companies to have put in senous investment in the coming five
year penod

We have also improved our customer service performance During the year we created approximately
100 new front line roles and have really focused on resolving customer i1ssues faster Together with
the lowest average bills in the land, our customers increasingly feel that they are receving good value
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Strategic report
Chief Executive’s review

for money, which 1s an encouraging sign that we are getting the balance nght, although, of course,
there 1s much more for us t¢ do

All of this makes us confident that Severn Trent will be one of the winners in the new world of ODls
from 1 April 2015, and In areas where we aren’t currently doing as well as we would hke, we have an
opportunity to improve and then earn rewards

A year of transformation
My fundamental belief is that successful organisations are customer focused ones, so we are focusing
on operational excellence and embedding the customer in all that we do

The strategy we have put in place over the last year 1s designed to deliver an outstanding customer
expenence, the best value service and environmental leadership In doing so we will create long-term
value for all our stakeholders, our customers, our communities, our employees, and our investors

This 1s the bigger wision and the igger context which i1s dnving our thinking as we look forward to the
future We want to be in the best possible shape to deliver our strategy so we made the decision over
the year to create a different organisational structure and put in place the management team No one
else In our sector has a structure like this and we believe it will give us an edge In an increasingly
competitive world

We've chosen to bring together our water and waste water businesses into one wholesale operations
business This change will simpify our structure, speed up decision-making and make us more
efficient and agile as a business, enabling us to drive the operational excellence and innovation we're
looking for Our new Managing Director for our Wholesale business 1s Emma FiizGerald whom will, |
am sure, bring her experience, passion and drive to deliver a great customer service through
operational excellence

The second structural change we've made 1s to create a Chief Customer Officer role, bringing together
our IS function, our contact centres and transformation teams Our industry needs to fully embrace
digital technology to become more efficient and to deliver what our customers expect Bringing
everything together in one place creates a sense of a joined up business for our customers and allows
us to fulfil our digital ambition Sarah Bentley, who has previously looked after digital for Accenture,
has Joined as our new Chief Customer Officer

Following a reorganisation of Severn Trent Business our non-regulated businesses are led by Andy
Smith who has extensive experience In the water sector having been the Severn Trent Water, Water
Services Director for 7 years

To ensure we have the very best engineering expertise, we have created a Chief Engineering Officer
function, led by Martin Kane Martin’s team will give us assurance that we are challenging ourselves to
create the very best engineenng solutions We've got one of the biggest investment programme we've
ever had over the next 5 years and we need to ensure we have the nght assurance that we are
choosing the most cost effective solutions The Chief Engineering Officer function will also assist in
bringing innovation to ife within our business The final structural change we made dunng the year
was the creation of a Chief Commercial Officer function, led by Helen Miles We have a big agenda
over the next 5 years and we want to drnive significant efficiencies We know what the drivers are and
we now have a plan in place to deliver them, which has already identified over £100 milion of AMP6
savings from the supply chain

In addition to these structural changes, our Chief Financial Officer, Mike McKeon, has decided after

nine years with Severn Trent to retire | would like to sincerely thank Mike for his help in my first year in

the role He's been a superstar I'm also delighted to have been joined by James Bowling as our new

CFO, whom | know will be excellent In transforming our business, we've also made difficult but

important organisational changes, including significant reductions in our cost base and de-layering of
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Strategic report
Chief Executive’s review

management levels These changes were tough, but will deliver over £100 million of savings for AMP6
whilst allowing more space for our managers to lead So together with £200 million of supply chain
and other efficiencies that we have already identified, this now equates to £300 million already locked
in, as at the date of this report, for the coming five year period, which 1s over half of the £372 million
target agreed in our Final Determination The changes we've made will also create a more dynamic,
empowered culture, where the customer I1s very much at the heart of our business Our business plan
for AMPG promises better value, better services and a cleaner environment | believe that with the
changes that we have put in place we are well placed to deliver for customers, communities and
investors

Sustainable growth

Our strategy I1s to invest responsibly in sustainable growth In our UK regulated business, our £6 6
billon AMP6 expenditure includes one of our biggest investment programmes and gives us a fantastic
opportunity to outperform and grow our regulated asset base We also have an opportunity to earn
additional rewards over the 5 years by performing well on our ODIs There are bound to be good and
bad years on various measures, but in aggregate we are confident that we’re positioned to do well As
an industry and as a company we have lobbied hard for incentives and we're looking forward to the
challenge Severn Trent has always been known for environmental leadership and we also see a
positive future in green energy We have announced over £190 million of new investment in renewable
energy over the next 5 year perniod and in particular in anaerobic digestion and solar technologies

This will take our self generation of renewable energy from 28% of Severn Trent Water's gross energy
consumption over 2013/14 to around 50% by 2020, providing efficient green energy and a long term
hedge agamnst volatile energy prices Severn Trent remains the sector leader in this area

How we create sustainable growth

= Embed customers at the heart of all we do

Drive operational excellence and continuous innovation
Invest responsibly for sustainable growth

Change the market for the better

Create an awesome place to work

Looking forward

I'm dehghted to be part of Severn Trent and very excited about how Severn Trent and our people can
play a part in changing our market for the better The future 1s a world where there will be more
competition in the water sector and we are already seeing the start of a gentle disaggregation of the
value chain New markets are opening, including the retail non-household market in 2017 We want to
be an active part of that, and we would alsc love to see a competitive market for sludge trading and
water trading, as we believe they present opportunities for competition in the sector and value for our
customers We've put in place the bullding blocks to ensure that Severn Trent 1s a leader In our sector
the lowest bills for customers, strategically well positicned in sludge, retall competition and water
resources, a standard setter in renewables, and the nght people, leadership and organisational
structure to deliver So this has been a year of transformation, but for us there 1s always more to do,
more efficiency to be found, more success to be had It's the aggregation of small, marginal gains
every year that you should expect from us and that will translate into long term shareholder value
We've done some good work over the last 12 months and we know where we need to improve It's the
start of a brand new regulatory penod and we feel we're building from a good place

Liv Garfield
Chief Executive
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Our objectives

Oudpenfosmance

2014/d Spenformancelmeastinementu s IeVDeN e veedd Catons

1 Embed customers at the heart of all we do

Basis Keyperformance indicators

MAT DWI reportable events [categary 3,4 5]
MAT Service Incentve Mechanism Qualdatwve (SIM] score?
ACT Serwice Incentive Mechanism Quantitative {SIM| score"'
MAT Water supply interruphons index per property mlns
Sewerage serviceability finternatl
Water serviceability internal}*

ACT Secunty of Supply Index [SOSI)®

GE
KPI 4

KPI K
KP_I 7
KPi 8
KP1 14

GE

2 Dnive operational excellence and continuous innovation

Basls Kayperformance indicators

KPI 12
KPI 13
KP! 15
KPL 15

MAT Pollution incidents [sewerage cat 1,2 37

ACT Sewerage treatment works - failing consent Limns %®
MAT NetenergyuseGwh%

MLE Leakage levels ML/d

o

(i)

3. Invest responsibly for sustainable growth

Basls Koy performanceindicators

2013/14 2012113

_KPL9
KPI 0

KPI 1

ACT Capex £m [UK GAAP net of grants and contnbutions]
ACT Debtor days"
ACT Opexfm

5832
345
5853

5418
367
5465

4, Create an awesome place to work

Basis Keyperformance indicators

201314

MAT  Last time incidents per 100,000 hrs worked
oR Ernployee engagement % "

KPI 2

KPI T

v

on
81

o_
o

~

Koy @ Executvedrector balanced Black Regutated buswiness KPY

scorecard periormance measure  Purple-Non regulated business KPI
see Remuneration Commetiee A v Desired direction of KF1
report on pages 49 1085

Notes

1 In 2014/15 Otwal changed the methodology for thss measure & 15 not comparable with
201¥/14 and 2012/13. On s comparative basis we moved from 13thn 20114 tosth n
201415 o of 1Bwaler companwes

2 Actual performance basedwholly or partatly on ndernal dats

3 Number of manutes. bost due (o supply Ntemuptons for thiee hours or longer per
property served

4 Otwat servceabil Hectwelywe are network
ang assats againsi 8 range of measures Asussndnsuhrnmmbh
margnal or deterorating

5 Score represents nternsl KPI The measure 5 out of 100,

& Totalnumber of pollution ncidents kategory 1 2,31

7 2012/13 Igures are not comparable In 2013 the Emaronment Agency changed ts
reporting methodology lor smallincxdents. As a resull of thes reclassification we now
report more smaller ncudents.

B Measuned on a calendar year bass.

9 Non-compliance with consent permmes. or formal clent requarernents dunng the

previcus 12 months

10 trvesiment exchudng PDaS and IFRS adpstments.

.

MAT ACT  Year End Actual
OR

MLE

Moving Annual Total
Quarterly Revew
Maxmnum Likelhood Estimate

1 Actual performnance based on audited inancisl staternents for the pear ended
31 March 2015
12 Actusl perfarmance across all empioyees and sgency staff.
13 Pertormance based on annual survey of alt
14 Performance based on annual survey of all employees, ncluding the Water
Purdication Busness.
KP1 3Drmbung Water Inspecloraie ~ Reportable Events This KP rrwasures the tumber
of pgraficant events reported to the DM
HP1 7 Serviceabd ty Waste Water Thes KPF s an index based on pollubions and blockages
{both measures of how our below ground essets are performangland
mtmmwksm-m'nphmlabovcgmm The index m-s}g

o b ove and bel.
sghting for.

KP!GS-w::ahitdeer The ndushasedon mams bursts and supply sterrupbons
greater than 12 hours both are measures of how our belowground assets are
performmimgl and Water Treatrment Works (WTW? non-complance [above ground]

The mdex reflacts 3 50:50 weghting lor sbove and below ground sssats.

mllmd&mlﬂ:lﬁﬂﬂhamd how reskient we are aganst
ol drought th

penads
difference between thewater
Mbﬂuwmu\dlr\emdmmupedmpwmumymwkn
arder to meet dermand




Our objectives

R of PerdtuWawerd et moamt!

£11 million

SIM - Curstommer” experence
Raw ad -t panaky mochanE mo bedocxkad by OFWAT Juy 20%

2. Drive operational excellence and continuous innovation*

Improvements to riverwater quality:
PorctaFoware
i
L ________ll
Rarm of Frcey et for pory]
£150000

Sucoess ful catch ment management schemes
FaratyyvHaward -
) n
I T

R of Aoty Rawer prsducz)

£103miltion

Asset Stewardship - Coliform fallures
Fhmt!"hvrﬂ

R of Pecaty Rward (mrakw|

£463000

Number of pollution ncidents
Feratyy Raward
&= Fh

ir_l|"‘L

Reza f Friittiy/Rowim Fof IeEnim)

£53900

Leaicge
Parzky Foward
T —Tam
R e Pty Rawar [par e ganss Gy

£123314

3. Irwest responsibly for sustainable growth

Sovan TrentWatker Savarn Trart Bumingss Scrvss
e note § Seenote 1
Mot

1 [kstratwe poetoreng only Imema1KPE hor 201916 b reporiad

2 N5 figuros bordloxtreve parpoes.

3 Conenirizenn of twa 00k redateg lorworwe ot qualsy

4 Thethresholts statad redor o tha app beaoon of rowarts and/ftr o nalhes

4. Create an awesome place to work
Last tine incitents per 100,000 hrsworked

Sewarn Trent Waker Sorarn Tremt Bue inces. Sarvies
021=™ 030 =™
mu:un.a zma.v'ua:m

Emgloyee engagement

Sowrn Trent Waner Severn Trent Binness Sanices
79 Seannte 2 75 Sew rode 2
MW MPUTE

For il bst of all OO and the dedaits. of pach s2e www savernirent.oom

w
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Strategic report
Market and industry overview

The water and sewerage industry
The industry in England and Wales delivers services to homes and businesses of over 50 million
people

There are 12 regional suppliers, who serve the majonty of these customers 10 of the regional
companies — including Severn Trent — provide water and sewerage services The other 9 provide
water services only

The UK water industry was privatised in 1989 and has made significant progress since, attracting
more than £4 billion of private investment every year to improve operational performance and make
customer service improvements As a result, drinking water qualty in the UK 1s among the highest in
the world The industry also makes a substantial contribution to the economy, estimated at £15 billion
a year for the UK as a whole, and directly or indirectly supports the equivatent of 127,000 full-time
jobs

Despite the sector's progress since privatisation, it shll faces substantial challenges that must be
tackled in the coming years These must be met whilst still keeping bills affordable for customers, both
now and in the future In particular

* Much of the sector's infrastructure 1$ ageing For example, 20% of Severn Trent's sewers and
10% of our water mains are more than 100 years old, which means we need to continue to
reinvest in the renewal of our networks

+ We are seeing more extreme weather This means we need to build resilience, so we can cope
with increased flooding and periods of droughts

e The UK’'s population I1s growing, which 1s adding to the pressure on water resources and our
networks Severn Trent serves 3 1 millon households, a total that's increasing by about 12,500
households each year That's the equivalent of adding a city the size of Coventry every 7 years, In
our region alone We need to make sure we have the infrastructure in place to serve these
people

s Customers quite nghtly expect better levels of service, making it ever more challenging for all
organisations to meet their customers’ expectations Water companies know they've got to work
harder at improving customer service

 Ourindustry has to compete for global capital to invest for the future The sector must remain an
attractive investment opportunity Otherwise the only way we’'ll be able to attract investment 1s by
having to pay mare for it, which will push up customers’ bills

Severn Trent has always contributed to the debate about our industry’s future, including through our
series of Changing Course publications We'll continue to be an active participant in these
conversations, so we can help shape thinking about how to best serve our customers in the future

How the industry i1s regulated

Severn Trent Water 1s a regulated business We work within 5 year regulatory planning cycles, known
as Asset Management Plan (AMP) penods This financial year was the last in AMP5, with AMP6
starting on 1 Apnl 2015

The industry operates within the following policy and regulatory framework
* The European Union (EU) sets water, waste water and environmental standards across member
countries
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Strategic report
Market and industry overview

e Government sets the overall water and sewerage policy framework This is done by the
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affarrs (Defra) in England, and by the Welsh
Government in Wales

e Ofwat 1s our economic regulator, which means that it sets the prices we can charge our customers
in each 5-year (AMP) penod, and ensures that we carry out our functions properly and are
appropnately financed

« The Dnnking Water Inspectorate (DWI) 1s the drinking water quality regulator and makes sure we
comply with the water qualty regulations

e The Environment Agency (EA) I1s the environmental regulator in England It controls water
abstraction, niver pollution and flooding

» Natural Resources Wales 1s the environmental regulator in Wales It ensures that the country’s
natural resources are sustainably maintained, enhanced and used

We also work with other agencies, including
» the Consumer Council for Water (CCW), which represents the industry’s customers, and

+ Natural England, which protects and improves England’s natural environment

The regulatory regime for AMP6

During the year, Ofwat concluded its price review for AMP6, which runs from 2015 to 2020 Most of
the companies have agreed business plans with Ofwat, setting out what they commit to deliver during
the penod and the bills that customers will pay

The AMPS business plans are designed to deliver what customers say they value most, in terms of the
service they receive and the benefits to the environment and society Across the industry, water
companies engaged with more than 250,000 customers — the largest ever consultation in the utihties
sector — to get a clear understanding of what they were willing to pay for

Key features of the regulatory regime for AMP6 include

e Greater flexibility to spend money where it's most needed. In previous AMPs, capital
expenditure (Capex), to meet long term investment needs, and operating expenditure (Opex), to
meet day-to-day running costs The ability to earn a return on Capex arguably incentivised
companies to seek Capex type solutions to issues, even if Opex might be more efficient In AMP6
Ofwat has considered expenditure on a total expenditure (Totex) basis, so we can choose the
most cost-effective and innovative solutions te meet our commitments

+ Aligning the interests of customers and investors. In AMP6, company performance ts
measured against metrics called Output Delivery Incentives (ODIs) While fallure to achieve
targets can lead to penalties, as in previous AMPs, many of these ODls also include incentives for
companies to outperform As the ODIs are based on what 1s important to customers,
outperformance means that both customers and companies benefit Companies can also do
better If they deliver their iInvestment programme for less than their plan, sharing the savings with
customers

e A better environment Several ODIs are designed to deliver important environmental
improvements, such as better nver quaiity, which focuses companies on achieving therr
environmental commitments over the next 5 years

¢« Reduced bills for customers Customers must be willing and able to pay for the costs of the
programmes we'll deliver during AMP8& They'll benefit from nsing standards and an average
reduction In bills of 5% across the industry, over the 5 years Companies will also be doing
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Strategic report
Market and industry overview

substantially more to help people who struggle to pay therr bills, for example by improving the
social tanffs they offer

To ensure we meet our commitments during AMP6, we've set out our strategy Our ODls, against
which our performance will be measured The regulated performance review talks about some of the
specific intiatives we’'ll be undertaking as part of our plan

An evolving industry

We expect the industry landscape to continue to evolve in the coming years In addition to the opening
up of non-household retail competition, as discussed under ‘The non-regulated market', there’s scope
for more competition in the wholesale business For example, we believe customers would benefit
from a greater role for water trading, which would allow companies with surplus water to sell it to those
with resource constraints, saving the significant capital investment required for capital solutions such
as desalination plants

The regulatory regime also makes consolidation less difficult than before This could encourage
companies to take innovative approaches to consolidation, for example by merging their wholesale
operations to deliver efficiencies, while demerging their retall businesses
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Strategic report
Performance review

Our goal I1s to provide a reliable service that our customers, communities and investors can trust Thes
will enable us to generate long term and sustainable growth, by delivering an outstanding customer
expenence, the best value service and environmental leadership

In this section, we explain how our regulated business performed during the last 12 months, as well as
the actions we're taking to position us for success over the next regulatory cycle

Embedding customers at the heart of what we do

In recent years, we've worked hard to improve our service These efforts are reflected in nising
customer satisfaction scores However, we recognise that we’ve got a lot further to go and we intend
to make significant progress dunng AMP6

For many people, being able to afford our services 1s key Household budgets remain under pressure
We're therefore pleased to have had the lowest average combined water and sewerage bills in Britain
for the last six years Our average bill iIn 2014/15 was £333, which 1s lower in real terms than at the
start of AMP5S

We're confident that we'll continue to have the lowest bills for the next five years, with customers
seeing further reductions In real terms At the same time, we're introducing an enhanced special tanff,
which will offer customers discounts of up to 90%, depending on their crcumstances We'll continue
our other support for our customers, such as our WaterSure tariff for those in financial need, which
caps bills for people who use a lot of water because they are Ill or have a large family We'll also be
introducing water health checks, to promote the support available and make sure customers are on
the nght tanff Every year this will mean that help 1s available to around 50,000 customers who are
strugghng financially Our partnership with Coventry Citizens’ Advice Bureau 1s an important part of our
approach

Keeping bills affordable also means ensuring that everyone who can pay does, so they don’t increase
the burden on others This year, we've improved bad debt levels to around 2 0% This continues to be
one of the best performances In the industry We've made more effective use of our contact centres,
making more calls to customers to engage with them and help them to manage their labilities

Ofwat's Service Incentive Mechamsm (SIM) 1s an important indicator of how good our customer
service 1s The SIM score has two elements — qualtative and quanttative During the year, we
improved both parts of our score

The qualitative element captures our customers’ views of our service This year, our qualitative score,
as an average over the whole year, was 4 36 This 15 based on Cfwat's new methodology for 2014/15
and ranks us sixth among the 18 compames In our sector, up from thirteenth last year In the final
wave of results we came third — a great foundation for continued improvement through AMP& Over
the last 12 months, we've introduced around 35 inihatives to deliver a better customer expenence

The quantitative metnc reflects the number of customers who have had to contact us Our
performance here improved by 26 6%

We also capture customer satisfaction data by directly surveying thousands of customers each month
to get feedback after contact To broaden our understanding of our performance, we've expanded
these surveys to cover our customer operations contact centre, as well as the biling contact centre
and we've seen our scores steadily increase

Consistent with nising customer satisfaction, we've seen a 20% reduction in complaints this year An
important contnbutor was the new resolutions team, which looks at the underlying causes of
complaints and ensures we fix them
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Providing the best possible service to our customers means we need the rnight level of resource, so
we've added approximately 100 fronthne roles We've created a customer strategy and experience
department, bringing together the training, qualty and complaint handling functions from across our
contact centres This gives us a more consistent approach to best practice In addition, we've
reviewed the role of our fronthne managers, to help them to coach and develop our agents

Another important focus this year has been reducing the work in progress The changes we've made
are helping us to meet the industry standard of answering at least 80% of calls within 20 seconds,
which we didn't always manage n the first part of the year We’re also responding to customer emaills
more quickly, cutting the time it takes us to answer from five days to less than 12 hours

Improving customer service means offering more ways to interact with us, so customers can choose
the channel that suits them best We want to be a ‘digitally savvy' organisation, so we've invested
heavily in our capabilities this year This includes enhancing our web and mobile offenngs, making
them easier and more attractive to use As part of this, we've been tnialing web chat, which we plan to
expand dunng the coming year

Going forward, we'll help our customers to adopt new channels, by using analytics to gamn insight into
why they contact us and how we can encourage them to self-serve As part of our digital strategy,
we've also been investing In understanding the key points when our customers contact us By
analysing how best we can engage with them at each point, we'll know how to deliver the brilhant
service they expect

Enhancing inteligent use of customer data and the way we use it will be an important part of our
approach during AMP6 We're investing in a new customer relationship management system, which
will draw together customer information from across our systems This will help our agents to resolve
more quernes first time Increasing our knowledge of each customer will also help us to predict therr
hkely needs, so we can offer them a more relevant and personalised service

Developing customers’ trust also means engaging with our communities and being increasingly open
and transparent to deal with We're also using channels such as social media to keep customers
better iInformed about issues that may affect therr service, so they know when they are likely to be
resolved and any action they need to take We are delighted that we are already ranked in the top ten
in the empathy index for UK compantes using Twitter

Dniving operational excellence and continuous improvement

Our overall operational performance continued to improve during the year We've developed a culture
of delivering against performance metrics and have achieved a stable or improved performance in 12
of Ofwat's 14 non financial KPls during the last year

The quality of our drinking water 1s high but our performance I1s not as consistent as we would ike In
2014, our overall compliance with the DWI's qualty standards was 99 96% However, we had 41
significant events, according to categonisations by the DWI, against a target of 15, whitle the
serviceability of our water non infrastructure assets (above ground assets such as water production
works) 1s rated as deteriorating To improve performance, we've undertaken a significant amount of
work at our water treatment works and boreholes, inspecting the sites and increasing ocur maintenance
and capital replacement We also increased our programme of water pipe cleaning, from around 1,000
km in a typical year to around 1,500 km last year

In relation to leakage we have achieved our regulatory commitment for the fourth year running

Performance this year benefited from the continuation of our mains replacement programme and our
new way of working, which we call Valung Every Drop This came from our Safer Better Faster
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approach to continucus improvement, which we use to diagnose 1ssues, redesign our processes, train
our people and equip them differently

Valuing Every Drop has significantly reduced our time to process and react to leaks By the end of the
year, we were fixing 38% of all leaks within 24 hours, up from around 25% earlier in the year

We have also achieved an underlying improvement in interruptions to supply, reducing the average
number of minutes that customers are without supply from 16 munutes to around 10 minutes
However, a single very large mains burst, which affected 2,111 properties early in the year, meant that
the number of properties with a supply interruption longer than 12 hours was 3,365, compared with
2,899 1n 2013/14 We've continued to work to reduce the impact of interruptions, for example by faster
despatch of emergency tankers

Although very rare, internal sewer flooding 1s one of the worst things that can happen to our
customers, so we were pleased to have further reduced the number of customers who suffered
repeated flooding In 2014/15 there were 198 incidents, down from 204 1n 2013/14 We've continued
to invest In capital solutions, enabling us to protect 192 properties from the nsk of repeated flooding
this year and a total of 746 over AMPS

As our overall waste water infrastructure (below ground assets) serviceability assessment by Ofwat
remains marginal, we've continued to focus on the areas that affect this We reduced the number of
sewer blockages by 8 4%, through initiatives such as First Tme Resolution Rather than simply
unblocking the sewer, we provide a more holistic customer service by sending a sophisticated vehicle,
capable of diagnosing and removing the prablem, surveying the sewer and carrying out minor repairs
We've also trialled different ways of engaging with customers, to raise awareness of the problems
caused by putting the wrong things down the sewer

Pollution incidents happen when there are unplanned discharges of water or sewage intc the
environment In 2014 the Environment Agency assessed our overall environmental performance as 4*,
the highest score possible We aim to maintain this strong performance by further reducing pollution
incidents

We had a record-breaking year for complance at our waste water treatment works, directly
contnbuting to the health of our nivers Only one of our 704 consented sites failed to reach its
compliance imits, giving us 99 9% compliance, up from 99 29% in 2013/14 We've continued to invest
to maintain this strong performance

Qur pollution performance also benefited from our Safer Better Faster approach Duning the year, we
ran a series of 12 week improvement interventions This included developing and launching an e-
learning package for everyone working on our sewerage infrastructure, including our subcontractors
This educates them on how to spot problems, react quickly and better resclve customer 1ssues

Adapting how we work

During the year, we took an important step in preparning for AMPS, by bringing together our water and
waste water wholesale operations Combining them enables us to take advantage of cross-skilling
between water and waste, to reduce our support and management costs, and to put more emphasis
on network control and asset management This helps us to befter understand nsks, target our
investment more effectively and dnve improved performance for customers Being efficient also
requires us to adapt the way we work For example, we're standardising cur operating processes,
while ensuring that we can adapt them quickly in response to new ideas
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Technology has an important role as we look to iImprove our perfermance during AMP& We've started
to roll out the next generation of handheld smart devices to our work crews, to give them better
information about the sites they're visiting and the assets they’ll be working on, so they can resolve
problems more effectively They can also update the data on our system, to ensure it's as accurate as
possible

We're also developing apps to enhance what we call the ‘colleague journey’ This helps us to provide
the information our people need at each stage of responding to and completing a job They'll be able
to complete jobs faster and first time, improving hife for our customers As part of this, we're asking our
people to tell us what apps they want, so they can do their jobs better

A new system we've introduced this year allows our customers to give us iImmediate feedback on our
work crew’s quahty of service and workmanship This allows us to talk in real time to work crews about
where they're doing well and how they can improve, so we can shorten mprovement timescales and
share best practice more quickly

We're continuing to invest in our telemetry system, so we can get more information on the
performance of our pipes and treatment sites By developing our analytics capability and combining
this data with other information, such as weather patterns, we’ll be able to be more predictive about
future performance, so we can tackle problems before they affect our customers

Innovation has always been important for us We've brought together our water and waste research
and development (R&D) teams, to give us an integrated programme that supports our wholesale
business more efficiently We're now reviewing our R&D plans and making sure we only focus on
projects that contribute to our customer commitments in the AMPG plan

Investing responsibly for sustainable growth

In 2014/15, we successfully completed our AMP5 investment programme Investment of £547 4
milion during the year brought the total for the 5 years to £26 bilion Our 2014/15 programme
included

» nvestment in mains replacement,
improving the resiience of our water treatment works, including our largest at Frankley, in
Birmingham,

o further improvements at our waste water treatment works, to ensure we continue to comply with
regulatory requirements,

+ expenditure on sewer replacement and sewer flooding schemes, and

» continuing to grow our renewable energy assets within our regulated business, by installing more
combined heat and power plants
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This year's expenditure also included £60 milion of investment we brought forward from AMP6 We
used this to iImprove our sewer flooding performance and to invest in mains resilience It also enabled
us to accelerate some of our planned water quality schemes for AMP8 by 18 months, by carrying out
feasibility studies and design work ahead of schedule

Qur investment programme for the next five years will total £3 3 bilion (based on 2012/13 prices) and
will deliver further benefits for customers, in terms of service qualty and value for money, as well as
improving the environment We'll spread this investment across our asset base, to improve its
serviceability, reliability and resilience

The largest single scheme in our plan — and the largest by any company during AMP§ — s the first
phase of the Birmingham Resiience Scheme A major source of Birmingham's water 1s the Elan Valley
aqueduct, which 1s more than 100 years old Over the next five years, we'll be constructing a scheme
to allow us to abstract water from the Severn and treat it at Frankley, providing a new supply for
Birmingham

AMPSG sees Ofwat's KPIs replaced by ODls, which allow companies to earn more for outperformance
or suffer penalties for underperformance The ODls reflect our customers’ priorities and our focus on
them will ensure we deliver better value, better services and a healthier environment over the next five
years Given our track record of delivering against performance metncs we are confident that we're
well placed to perform well against the ODls and to succeed in AMPG

Qur AMP6 plan requires us to achieve £372 milion of efficiencies (at 2012/13 prices), which 1s a
significant challenge Excellent procurement will be an important component of these savings and
we've developed joint efficiency plans with our One Supply Chain partners This will help us to deliver
our capital programme more effectively, by standardising the products we buy and by planning more
carefully with our supphers, so we spend less time on site and work more efficiently while we're there
We're also looking at our second level suppliers, so we can understand them better and work more
directly with them, where it adds value

Before we commit to capital expenditure, we're investigating whether we could solve the problem by
operating our existing assets better or differently We need to become ever more efficient and only
build the assets we need to solve the problems we're facing, and get the best value At the same time,
we're developing methods to help us understand whether Capex or Opex will enable us to deliver the
best outcome — an essential component of the new Totex regime in AMP6G

In AMPG, we'll mvest in the next stage of enhancing our treatment works This includes £234 million to
help us meet the requirements of the Water Framework Directive, in what we beleve 1s the most
ambitious programme in the sector, we'll be looking to make the biggest impact on as many
watercourses as possible

Our catchment management approach allows us to work in partnership with our stakeholders to
protect our raw water sources from pollution For example, we've encouraged farmers to produce
‘clean run-off’ from therr land, as well as removing metaldehyde from one of our catchments This
approach 1s both better for the environment and for our customers, as it reduces our need to spend
money to clean affected water We've also agreed to host two partnerships, covering the Tame, Anker
and Mease nvers and the Lower Trent and Erewash catchments Working as a partnership with other
industries, regulators and NGOs allows us to have a more

positive impact than when we work on our own

Treating water and sewage Is energy intensive The majonty of our carbon emissions come from
pumping water around our network and treating sewage at our works This year we reduced our
emissions by 4% to 491 kilotonnes of CO2Ze We also met our 2009 commitment to have no net
Increase In emissions, with an overall 12% reduction over the period since this commitment
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Renewable energy 1s an important part of our approach and a number of our processes use by-
products or essential features of our water or sewage treatment In 2014/15, renewable energy
provided 28% of our regulated business’s energy needs We intend to increase this further over the
next few years

Our long term impact on the environment also depends on our customers With this in mind, we put
considerable effort nto educating our current and future customers, so people understand how to use
water efficiently and what can be safely disposed of in our sewers As part of this, we run a schools
education programme, which teaches children each year about the value of water We've also
continued our volunteenng programme This engages our local communities, while improving our
people's skills and bullding working relationships

The suppliers we work with also have an important part to play in our sustainability efforts While we've
always taken care to select suppliers with, for example, strong health and safety records, we haven't
specifically focused on other aspects of therr sustainability performance To address this, we have a
new programme to review our suppliers’ sustainability credentials, so we understand ther
performance in key areas such as the environment and human nights

Creating a great place to work
To achieve our objectives, we need Severn Trent to be a great place to work, and for our people to be
flexible, to embrace new ways of working and skills and to focus on our customers’ needs

This was a year of considerable change, as we positioned the business to succeed during AMP6 We
put our water and waste water operations into one wholesale and engineerng function We also
created a Chief Customer Officer role to bring our customer and digital ambstions together A key part
of these changes was to reduce the number of layers in our organisation from 9 to 5 This gives our
people more control over therr roles and empowers them to do more, so they can deliver for our
customers and have greater satisfaction in therr work Empowerment and trust will be important
themes for us going forward and we have teams locking at how we can further embed them into our
culture

The organisational change also reduced the number of roles in our business by approximately 500
We consulted widely with employees during the process and ran a comprehensive outplacement
programme, to support those of our people whose roles were removed

Despite the amount of change, we ran our annual employee engagement survey during this pernod
and achieved our highest ever completion rate of 85% The survey showed that our people remain
highly committed, with our engagement index coming out at 79%, compared with 81% last year This
1s a very creditable performance in the circumstances We are determined to improve our scores next
year

Highlights from the survey included our employees’ strong loyalty to Severn Trent, how much they
enjoy their work and therr wilingness to go the extra mile for customers However, our people would
ke more opportunities to share their views before we make changes that affect theirr jobs and they
want more inspirational leadership from our senior team

Our engagement survey highlights the mportance of our senior team being visible and accessible
across the business, so we are complementing what already happens with leadership-led sessions
called ‘Fniday Focus' at our largest sites This will allow our people further opportunities to ask our
leaders questions about anything they want to complement their day-to-day dealings with therr team
managers in addition, our CEQ, Liv Garfield, hosted more than 60 sessions dunng the year, meeting
more than 5,000 of our people She used these sessions to explain our performance challenges in
AMP6 and how we need to adapt to meet them These sessions were extremely well recewved by
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attendees and helped to align our people on the areas of focus namely delighting our customers,
providing them with the cleanest water, bnllant people who work safely, and taking a ‘digital first’
approach The outcome of these areas of focus will be ‘fab financials’, which will fund our plans and
reward our investors

As the world becomes more complex, we need to have more talented people in our organisation and
provide more opportunities for them to reach their potential QOur apprenticeship programme brings in
new talent each year and we currently have 80 apprentices We've adapted the programme so that it
now takes three years instead of four, by changing the way we train our apprentices and their college
work, so they can reach the required technical level faster Our graduate programme 1s also going
from strength to strength We took on 27 graduates in 2014/15, our largest intake for some years As
at May 2015, Severn Trent Water 1s one of thejobscrowd's “Top 100 Companies for Graduates to
Work for in 2015/16” ranking at no 83 Thejobscrowd 1s the only graduate employer ranking based on
real-time feedback and reviews from current graduates, so reflects actual graduate/employee
engagement and experience As the only water company represented in the “larger intake” categery,
this 1s a great result for the first year of entening the survey

The performance challenges we face in AMP6 are greater than in AMPS, so we've redesigned our
performance framework This will help our people to understand what great performance looks like
and what they need to do to reach it Our goal 1s to inspire everyone to achieve great performance,
with a clear plan of how they can develop the skills and behaviours needed to achieve performance
excellence Individuals will discuss and review therr performance every quarter to identify successes
and areas where improvements can be made We're aiming to create a culture that's performance and
development led, and that encourages our people to achieve their full potential
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We also need leaders who can challenge and engage Durning the year, we completed our Leading for
Performance programme, which ams to make leaders confident in driving high performance and
creating an environment of empowerment In total, we've trained 400 managers

With our greater focus on performance comes the need to recognise and reward it Qur employee
awards scheme reinforces a culture of continuous iImprovement and recognition, with more than 500
people nominated this year We also offer flexible benefits, which are very popular For example,
employees can buy or sell hohday to suit their needs Most of our people are shareholders in Severn
Trent, meaning they benefit directly from our good performance, and take up of our sharesave scheme
1s high with nearly 48% of those eligible electing to join a scheme

Protecting our people's health and wellbeing 1s one of our core responsibilites Our lost time mury
rate was 0 21 per 100,000 hours worked, which i1s the same as last year This flat performance
remains industry leading but 1s not as good as we hoped for, given our considerable focus on heaith
and safety Minor accidents are a continued reminder of the need to remain focused and the need to
refresh our approach to health and wellbeing We continue to priontise reductions in minor accidents,
such as shps, tnips and falls, as well as safety in our supply chain We're also creating a stronger
central health and safety function, which will help to direct how our operations teams should work and
provide more assurance that they're doing the nght things We also address employees’ wellbeing
paying attention to factors such as workplace stress and other mental health 1ssues
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We recognise that diversity and inclusion are important for our success and have made them a
business imperative over the last 18 months As a customer-focused organisation, we need our
workforce to reflect the customers and communities we serve, so we can understand and respond to
their needs Our workforce remains shightly more diverse than the sector average, with female
employees making up 30 4% of the total, compared with 26% across the industry 7 8% of our
employees are black, Asian and minonty ethmc (BAME), against an industry average of 3 4%

To help us make meaningful progress during AMP6, we have priontised three key areas
= women in operational leadership positions

« women and BAME people in engineenng positions, and

« BAME people in technical operator positions

We continue to take action to improve diversity, for example by training managers in how to interview
effectively and fairly More than 400 managers have been through this training, which has a strong
focus on unconscious bias in the recrutment process More than 130 leaders in our wholesale
business have attended awareness-raising sessions, focusing on the benefits of diverse teams and
buillding an inclusive environment

We've taken action to encourage diwversity among job applicants, for example by revamping our
recrwtment website to profite a broader range of employees and addressing the language we use In
our job descnptions We've been successful In attracting more female graduates, which will give us a
greater female talent pool for future Senior Management Team appointments However, we have
more work to do n attracting more female apprentices for operational roles

Severn Trent takes a long term view of its business, so we're big supporters of promoting science,
technology, engineering and maths in education We encourage young people to study these subjects,
so they can become the engineers and technicians of the future For example, we support intiatives
such as Tomorrow's Engineers and work with universities and technical colleges to make ther
curnculums more relevant to industry We also support the Big Bang, a national programme to get
children interested in techneology and science careers

Outlook

During 2014/15, we've put the foundations in place for success in AMP8 We have a plan that will
deliver better value and better services for customers and a healthier environment for all By achieving
our plan, we'll deliver long term sustainable growth and real benefits for our customers, communities
and investors
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The company has delivered a good financial performance overall with year on year improvements in
turnover and underlying PBIT PBIT s profit before interest and tax, underlying PBIT 1s PBIT excluding
exceptional items as set out in note 6

Results
Underlying PBIT increased by 3 9% to £536 6 million (2013/14 £516 4 million)

Turnover In Severn Trent Water increased by £36 4 million, or 2 4%, to £1,581 2 mullion, as a result of
price increases of 1 5% net (£23 0 milion), higher consumption from metered commercial customers
(£1 9 milion), growth, net of meter optants (£1 0 million) and other increases including tanff mix effects
of £10 5 million

Operating costs, excluding depreciation and infrastructure maintenance expenditure, increased in line
with expectations by 3 2% to £621 4 million

Increase/

2015 2014 (decrease)

£m £m £m %

Employee costs 249.4 242 8 66 27
Hired and contracted 163.8 154 2 96 62
Costs capitahised {92.4) (92 6) 02 (02)
Raw matenals and consumables 47.4 425 49 115
Power 63.9 653 (14) 21)
Bad debts 28.4 313 (29) (9 3)
Rates and service charges 113 2 1123 09 08
Other 47.7 46 6 11 24
Operating costs 6214 602 4 190 32

Employee costs were 2 7% higher, broadly in line with annual pay inflation The benefits of the recent
re-organisation, which included a reduction of 500 roles, will be seen from 2015/16 Hired and
contracted costs were 6 2% higher as we invested in key operational areas, such as sewer blockages
and mains cleaning, to make a fast start in AMP6 The benefits of this will flow through to 2015/16
Raw matenals and consumables increased by £4 9 million due to inflation and additional spending on
water qualty improvements

Power costs decreased by £1 4 millon We continue to make good progress on our renewable energy
generation, and generated the equivalent of 28% of gross consumption from self generation in the
year, providing an effective hedge against energy price volatility

Bad debt charges improved t¢ 2 0% of turnover (UK GAAP} - down from 2 2% in 2013/14 as we saw
the benefit of mproved collection of older household debt and a range of social tanffs which help
customers pay therr bills

Depreciation increased by £2 7 milion, due to the growth in the asset base Infrastructure renewals
expenditure dechined £5 5§ million due to operational efficiencies and programme phasing as we closed
out AMPS

We completed our planned capital programme for AMPS, investing £547 5 million (UK GAAP, net of
grants and contnbutions) during the year Included in this total was net infrastructure maintenance
expenditure of £134 8 million, which i1s charged to the profit and loss account under IFRS

Exceptional items

An exceptional charge of £21 5 milhien was recognised for the year (2014 £8 2 million credit) This
ncluded
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e £29 2 million of restructuring costs to transform the business for AMP6, reducing the cost base
and de-layering management levels, offset by
e £7 7 million of profit on disposal of property

Net finance costs

The net finance costs were £224 1 mullion, down from £245 2 million in the prior year The benefits of
lower interest rates, in particular on our RPI-linked debt, were partially offset by higher levels of net
debt

In addition, in March 2015 the company reduced 2015/16 financing nsk by repaying approximately
26% of a £535 million fixed rate intercompany loan which 1s due for repayment in March 2016 This led
to a charge of £6 6 million in finance costs

Profit for the year

Profit for the financial year was £107 6 million (2014 £492 2 millon) The company measures its
return on capital using the ratio of post tax return on regulatory capital value, which s calculated as
current cost operating profit less current tax, over average regulatory capital value For the year ended
31 March 2015 post tax return on capital was 5 6% (2014 6 4%)

Taxation
The total tax charge for the year was £23 6 milhon (2013/14 credit of £163 2 million)

The current year tax charge for 2014/15 was £36 6 million (2013/14 charge of £566 9 million before
exceptional tax) The deferred tax credit was £13 0 milion (2013/14 charge of £14 6 million before
exceptional tax) In the current year there was no exceptional tax {(2013/14 credit of £234 7 million)

The underlying effective rate of current tax on continuing operations, excluding prior year credits,
exceptional tax credits and tax on exceptional items and financial instruments, calculated on profit
from continuing operations before tax, exceptional items before tax and gains/(losses) on financial
instruments was 17 4% (2013/14 16 9%)

Cash flow
2015 2014
£m £m
Cash generated from operations 760.9 774.4
Net capital expenditure (392.5) (441 2)
Net interest paid (220.3) (198 5)
Tax pad {24.9) (14 5)
Payment to close out interest rate swaps (139.2) -
Free cash flow {16.0) 120 2
Dividends (195.5) (337 6)
Net 1ssue of shares (2.4) -
Change n net debt from cash flows (213.9) (217 4)
Non cash movements {22.3) (48 8)
Change in net debt (236.2) (266 2)
Net debt 1 Apnl (4,844.4) (4,578 2)
Net debt at 31 March (5,080.6) (4,844 4)
Net debt comprises
Cash and cash equivalents 119.1 198
Loans recewvable from other group companies 108.3 107 0
Loans payable to other group companies {3,705.8) (4,005 4)
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Bank loans (1,240.7) (555 2)
Finance leases payable (275.1) (307 0)
Intercompany finance leases payable (208.0) (210 7)
Finance leases receivable from other group companies 100.8 1013
Cross currency swaps 20.8 58

(5,080.6) (4,844 4)

Net debt at 31 March 2015 was £ 5,080 6 milion (2013/14 £ 4,844 4 millon) Balance sheet geanng
(net debt/net debt plus equity) at the year end was 85 6% (2013/14 82 4%) The company's net
interest charge, excluding gains/(losses) on financial instruments and net finance costs from pensions,
was covered 3 9 times (2013/14 3 5 times) by profit before nterest, tax, depreciation and exceptional
items, and 1 8 tmes {2013/14 2 3 tmes) by underlying PBIT

Treasury policy and operations

The company's treasury affairs are managed centrally and in accordance with our Treasury
Procedures Manual and Policy Statement The treasury operation’s role 1s to manage liquidity,
funding, investment and our financial risk, including nisk from velatiity in interest and {to a lesser
extent) currency rates and counterparty credit nsk The board determines matters of treasury policy
and its approval 15 required for certain treasury transactions The board has established a Treasury
Management Committee to monitor treasury activities and to facilitate timely responses to changes In
market conditions when necessary

The company’s strategy 1s to access a broad range of sources of finance to obtain both the quantum
required and lowest cost compatible with the need for continued availabiity The company 1s a long
term business characterised by mulh year investment programmes Our strategic funding objectives
reflect this and the liquidity position and availability of committed funding are essential to meeting our
objectives and obligations We therefore aim for a balance of long term funding or commitment of
funds across a range of funding sources at the best possible economic cost The company also seeks
to maintain an investment grade credit rating and a flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure

We use financial derivatives solely to manage risks associated with our normal business activities We
do not hold or issue denvative financial instruments for financial trading

Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which 1s fully hedged, our business does not involve
significant exposure to foreign exchange transactions The company’s principal subsidiary Issues
notes in foreign currency under its EMTN programme and |lends the proceeds to Severn Trent Water
Limited The company uses cross currency swaps to convert the funds to sterling The effect of these
swaps Is that interest and principal payments on the borrowings are denominated in sterling and
hence the currency risk 1s eliminated The foreign currency notes and the cross currency swaps are
recorded in the balance sheet at therr fair values and the changes in farr values are taken to
gains/{losses) on financial iInstruments In the income statement Since the terms of the swaps closely
match those of the underlying notes, such changes tend to be broadly equal and opposite

Treasury management and liquidity

In February and March 2015, the company took a number of financing steps in readiness for AMPS,
aimed at reducing short term refinancing nsk and increasing exposure to the currently low floating
interest rates These steps included

« Entering into a new £530 milion, floating rate, nine year facility with the European Investment
Bank At 31 March 2015 £200 million of the facility had been drawn, with the balance drawn
down in Apnl 2015

e On 31 March 2015 the company repaid £140 milion of a fixed rate loan from its principal
finance subsidiary, due for repayment in March 2016
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¢ In March 2015 the company cancelled floating to fixed interest rate swaps with a notional
principal amount of £275 million, for a cash payment of £139 2 million The average fixed rate
interest on the swaps was 5 2% The cash payment was charged aganst the fair value hability
on the balance sheet, and £11 milion that had been recognised In reserves was recycled
through the income statement

¢ On 19 March 2015 the company amended and extended the revolving credit faciity The new
£900 milhon facility has a penod of five years, with two one year extension options exercisable
with lender consent At 31 March 2015 £485 million of the facility was drawn

The company continues to ensure it has adequate iquidity to support business requirements and
provide headroom for downside scenanos At 31 March 2015 the company had £119 1 million (2014
£19 8 million) In cash and cash equivalents and committed undrawn facilities amounting to £745
milion (2014 £500 milhon)

The company 1s funded for its projected investment and cash flow needs up to at least July 2016

Cash 1s invested i deposits with financial institutions benefiting from high credit ratings and the list of
counterparties is reviewed regularly

The company's policy for the management of interest rate nsk requires that not less than 45% of the
company's borrowings should be at fixed interest rates, or hedged through the use of interest rate
swaps or forward rate agreements Going forward, the company intends to manage its existing debt
portfolio and future debt iIssuance to increase the proportion of debt which i1s at floating rates At 31
March 2015, interest rates for 63% (2013/14 71%) of the company’s net debt of £5,080 6 milion were
at fixed rates of interest

The company uses financial derivatives solely to hedge risks associated with its normal business
activihies including

e Exchange rate exposure on borrowings denocminated in foreign currencies,
« |nterest rate exposures on floating rate borrowings, and
« Exposures to increases in electricity prices

Accounting rules require that these derivatives are revalued at each balance sheet date and, unless
the critena for cash flow hedge accounting are met, the changes in value are taken to the income
statement If the nsk that 1s being hedged does not impact the income statement in the same period,
then an accounting mismatch anses from the hedging activities and there Is a net charge or credit to
the income statement

Derivatives are typically held to their full term and mismatches will net out over the iife of the
instrument The changes in value that are recorded during the hves of the derwvatives, unless
crystallised, do not represent cash flows Therefore the group presents adjusted earnings figures that
exclude these non-cash items In exceptional circumstances the group may terminate swap contracts
before theirr maturty date The payments or receipts ansing from the cancellations are charged or
credited against the habilty or asset on the balance sheet, and amounts previously recognised in
reserves are recycled through the income statement

The company holds interest rate swaps with a net notional pnncipal of £309 million and cross currency
swaps with a net notional principal of £396 6 milion which econormically act to hedge the interest rate
risk on floating rate debt or the exchange rate risk on certain foreign currency borrowings However,
the swaps do not meet the hedge accounting rules of JAS 39 and therefore the changes in farr value
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are taken to gamns/(losses) on financial iInstruments 1n the profit and loss account During the year
there was a charge of £123 4 milhon in relation to these instruments

The group manages its electricity costs through a combination of self generation forward price
contracts and financial derivatives The group has fixed around 100% of the wholesale energy cost for
the first two years of AMP8 and around 50% of the energy cost for the third year of AMP6

The group’s long term credit ratings are
Long term ratings

Moody's * A3
Standard & Poor's BBB+

The outlock 1s stable for Standard and Poor’s, negative for Moody's

Pensions

The company 1s the sponsoring employer of the defined benefit pension schemes operated by the
Severn Trent group for its UK employees As there 1s no contractual agreement or policy statement
for allocating the net defined benefit cost to individual group entities this company has recognised the
full cost and deficit However, the company only makes contnbutions for its own employees

The group operates two defined benefit pension schemes, of which the UK Severn Trent Pension
Scheme (STPS) 1s by far the largest The most recent formal tnennial actuanal valuations and funding
agreements were carried out as at 31 March 2013 for both schemes As a result, deficit reduction
contributions of £40 million in 2013/14, £35 milion 1n 2014/15, £15 milhion n 2015/16 and £12 million
per annum in subsequent years to 2024/25 were agreed Further payments of £8 million per annum
through an asset backed funding arrangement will also continue to 31 March 2032

As previously announced, the defined benefit pension schemes closed to future accrual on 31 March
2015 Cn 1 Apnl 2015, members of the defined benefit pension schemes were transferred to the
defined contribution Severn Trent Group Personal Pension Scheme, which opened on 1 Apnl 2012

The key actuarial assumptions for the defined benefit schemes have been updated for these accounts
On an IAS 19 basis, the estimated net position of the schemes was a deficit of £468 9 million as at 31

March 2015 This compares to a deficit of £348 3 million as at 31 March 2014 The movements in the

net deficit can be summarised as follows

£m
Present value at 1 April 2014 (348 3)
Change n actuarial assumptions (336 8)
Asset outperformance 193 4
Contrnibuticns in excess of profit and loss charge 228
Present value at 31 March 2015 (468.9)

Accounting policies and presentation of the financial statements

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
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Our approach to risk:

We have set ourselves some very challenging targets and continually strive to improve our standards
of service delivery to customers and our overall performance The group’s nsk management and
internal control systems are wital to the delivery of these targets and enable the identification,
assessment and mitigation of nsks inherent in our business activities

Accountability for the effectiveness of the group’s Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) policies sits
with the board, with oversight from the executive team, supported by operational nsk owners and the
central ERM team who are responsible for carrying out the ERM process

Risk owners throughout the business, with support and challenge from the ERM team, identify and
assess nisks and undertake risk improvement actions to move risks to their target positon The ERM
process starts from understanding the objectives we have set ourselves, as shown below

B

The Board
Set strategy and determine
regulatory outcomes
Set business plan objectves
Defines nsk appetite

@) o]

The ERM process

ERMteam Operational teams
Monitors performance ldentify and assess nsks
Prowides challenge and insight Set nsk target positron
Reportsto the board Idenuify nsk improvernent
and Audt Committee actions

When considering how best to manage our risks, our approach reflects the need to efficiently mitigate
the inherent nisks In our business whilst seeking to improve our performance through the targeted
management of selected risks

Within Severn Trent Water, our approach reflects our status as a regulated uhility providing essential
services and operating as part of the Cntical National Infrastructure for the UK The nature of our
Severn Trent Water business 1s such that there are some significant inherent nisks, as illustrated on
‘Our regulated business model' We aim to have a strong control framework in place to enable us to
understand our nisks and manage these nsks both effectively and efficiently

Risk Appetite

The board keeps under constant review the relationship between our strategic ambitions and the
management of nsk In particular, this year the board focused carefully on the ambition in our AMP6
programme and the risk to its delivery

The Enterpnse Risk Management process establishes target risk positions for each of our strategic
risks The board formally discuss the progress towards this position and the mitigating actions being
undertaken every six months Previously, the board has held a sernes of nsk appette discussions
focusing on eight key strategic areas in the context of the below framework
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Strategic risk framework
Risk appetite  Culture Customer Investor Regulatory
perspectives andvalues  focus confidence  regime

Risk focus Protecting health, wellbeing and safety

areas
Financing the business

Ambrtion for growth
Future competitive position

Customer confidence

Resiience of our networks

Relationships with regulators

Sustainabibity of the business

Our Enterprise Risk Management Process:

We use an established ERM process across the company to assess and manage our most significant
risks, which are linked to our corporate objectives The ERM process covers all types of nsk including
operational, financial and legal and regulatory Our assessment of nisk includes explicit consideration
of the possible impact of the nisk on the reputation of the group as a whole

We analyse both the potential causes and impact of nsk Using this process, we are able to consider
the controls needed to minimise the hkelthood of nsks occurnng and these which can help to maximise
our resilience to nsks The understanding which we are able to gain from our ERM process allows us
to put in place effective mitigation strategies Resilience of our services 1s vital and we regularly carry
out exerctses Jjointly with other agencies such as local authorities, police and fire services to test this
resience

Across the company, we manage rsks within the overall governance framework which includes clear
accountabilities, delegated authorty limits and reward policies These are designed to provide
employees with an holistic view of effective nsk management The key nsks are reported to the Audit
Committee and discussed at the board every six months in the form of nsk maps In addition,
individual nsks or specific nsk topics are also discussed by the board during the year

An overview of accountability for our ERM process s illustrated in the below chart

Managing risk
The Board
f : ]
MI
Executive Audit
Commuttee Commyttee
| |
f 1
) @] ]
Operational Enterprise Internal
functions Risk Managernent Audit

Page 26 of 128




Strategic report
Risk management

Financial Risks

Like all businesses, we need to plan future funding In line with business needs This 1s part of our
normal business planning process (see Principal nsk 4) The Board receive regular updates relating to
funding, solvency and liquidity matters
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Governance

Chairman’s letter
Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to introduce the Governance Report for 2015 on behalf of your board My role, together
with the board, 15 to ensure that Severn Trent operates to the highest standards of corporate
governance to effectively and efficiently deliver the group's strategic objectives and to meet its
obhgations to the company’s stakeholders Ultimately, good governance requires that the board has
access to timely, relevant and robust information, so it can run the business effectively and promote
the long-term success of the company in the best interest of all stakeholders

The Annual Report remains the principal means of reporting to our shareholders on the board’s
governance policies and therefore | welcome this opportunity to set out how the main and supporting
pnnciples of good corporate governance, as set out in the UK Corporate Governance Code
(Governance Code), have been applied In practice

In January 2014, Ofwat published ‘Board leadership, transparency and governance — principles’ which
it considered should apply to regulated water companies  Severn Trent Water 1s fully supportive of
Ofwat’s objective of raising standards in this area

Severn Trent Plc i1s the ultimate holding company of Severn Trent Water Limited Severn Trent Plc s
a histed company and dunng the year ended 31 March 2015 was comphant with the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2012 (the '‘Governance Code'), with the excepton that the adequacy of
arrangements in relation to whistleblowing procedures falls within the remit of the Corporate
Responsibiity Committee rather than the Audit Committee The governance section of the Sevemn
Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts sets out how Severn Trent Plc apples the principles of the
Governance Code

Severn Trent Water's code on complying with Ofwat's principles 1s to continue to comply with the
Governance Code at Severn Trent Plc level, with the exception that the adequacy of arrangements in
relation to whistleblowing procedures will continue to fall within the remit of the Corporate
Responsibility Committee rather than the Audit Committee As a company Severn Trent Water has
voluntanly chosen to apply the principles of the Governance Code to its governance arrangements
Where appropriate and reasonably practicable, Severn Trent Water will, except as stated above In
relation to whistleblowing arrangements, continue to comply with the Governance Code with the
exception that the board committees will continue to operate at the Severn Trent Plc level rather than
duplicating the arrangements at the company level The board considers that these arrangements are
appropriate and effective

Dunng the year the Severn Trent Charter of Expectations was introduced to ensure best practice
corporate governance throughout the business in line with the group’s culture, values and behaviour
In turn, we have also overseen a review of our Code of Conduct, ‘Doing the right thing — the Severn
Trent way', across our businesses and reviewed our supporting group policies and our behaviours
model Further details of these can be found on our website (www severntrent com)

This Report marks the end of the first year of Liv Garfield as Chief Executtive The board has continued
to support her approach to the business with key strategic changes to both the board and Executive
Committee taking place in the past 12 months, which are outhned in this report

The planned retirement from the board of two long serving directors during the year gave us the
opportunity to think carefully about the composition and size of our board going forward We decided
that a smaller board would enable us to be more nimble in a changing, more competitive regulatory
environment We have therefore reduced the board from eleven directors to eight

Richard Davey stepped down as a non-executive director, having served nine years and was
succeeded by Martin Lamb as Senior Independent Director and by Phiip Remnant as Chairman of the
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Remuneration Committee After almost ten years in post, Michael McKeon retired as Chief Financial
Officer and was succeeded by James Bowling

Dr Tony Ballance, Martin Kane and Andy Smith retired from the board, but have remained key
members of the Executive Committee

The board would like to thank each of Richard, Mike, Tony, Martin and Andy for therr commutment,
service and contribution over many years

| firmly believe that we will continue to deliver value and achieve sustainable growth for our company

through the successful mix of good governance, a clear strategy with a supporting business plan,
effective nsk management and a strong organisational structure in place to execute it

Andrew Duff
Chairman
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Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

As Severn Trent Water Is not a isted company 1t 1s not required to comply with the Governance Code
However, we have voluntanly chosen to apply the pnnciples of the Governance Code to our
governance arrangements, where appropriate and reasonably practicable

The version of the Corporate Governance Code applicable to the current reporting period 1s the
September 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code (the '‘Governance Code’) The Governance Code 1s
available on the Financial Reporting Council's website (www frc org uk)

The boards of Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Plc have the same directors This structure was
implemented in 2007 to ensure that the highest standards of corporate governance were applied at
the regulated subsidiary level and to promulgate greater visibility and supervision of Severn Trent
Water Limited by the Plc board Severn Trent Water Limited 1s therefore voluntarily complying with the
2012 UK Corporate Governance Code to ensure these high standards also apply to it

For the whole of the financial year ended 31 March 2015, Severn Trent Water Limited was comphant
with the Governance Code, with the following exceptions

. the board committees operate at the Severn Trent Plc level rather than the company level
Whilst the board committees are not duphcated at the company level, in practice ther remit
includes work tn respect of the company In particular the Audit Committee reviews Severn
Trent Water's

o Processes for producing regulatory submissions, and
o Statutory and regulatory accounts prior to ther approval by the Severn Trent Water
board

. The board committees are all led by independent non-executive directors who compnse the
majonty of membership of each committee Details of the committees are reported publicly in
the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts

. the adequacy of arrangements In relation to the company's whistleblowing procedures falls
within the remit of the Severn Trent Plc Corporate Responsibility (CR) Committee, rather than
the Severn Trent Plc Audit Committee The CR Committee’s remit 1s to deal with any
allegations from employees relating to any breaches under Severn Trent's Code of Conduct
The Audit Committee reviews reports of matters ansing in respect of financial or internal control
matters from the company's whistleblowing procedures and the company's procedures for
preventing and detecting fraud and bribery, and receives reports on non-comphance The
board considers that these arrangements are approprate

. the company does not comply with the prowvisions relating to Relations with Shareholders which
covers Dialogue with Shareholders and Constructive use of the AGM, as it would not be
appropnate to do so, however Severn Trent Plc does fully comply

The two companies operate as distinct legal entities The boards comply with the Severn Trent Plc
Matters Reserved to the Board and the Severn Trent Water Lmited Matters Reserved to the board
They are assisted through the management of separate agendas and minutes by the Company
Secretariat and advised in their meetings by the company secretary where appropnate

Subsidiary Company boards are required to be managed scrupulously with respect to legal, fiscal and
administrative matters In particular, the relationships between Severn Trent Water Limited and our
other businesses such as Severn Trent Business Services are monitored and controlled to ensure that
our obligations under competitton law and regulating requirements are complied with In respect of all
transactions between them, or with third parties
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Leadership

Charter of Expectations

During the year the Severn Trent Charter of Expectatons has been adopted to promote and
implement best practice corporate governance The Charter sets out the role profiles and
expectations of all key positions on the Seven Trent group's Boards (together referred to as the
“board”), and board committees, and also reflects the board’s responsibility for setting the tone for the
group's culture, values and behaviour

It 1s envisaged that having such expectations clearly documented will assist In the assessment of the
effectiveness of the board and its commuittees, and that of individual directors

The Charter of Expectations I1s published and available on our website (www severntrent com) so that
there 1s complete transparency of the standards we set ourselves for all of our stakeholders

The performance of the board and board committees and of each director will be measured agamnst
these expectations

Board membership

2014/15 saw a number of changes to the board’'s composition due to carefully managed succession
planming and evaluation of its required skills and capabilities As a consequence, 1t was announced
that the board would be reduced from eleven to eight directors, with effect from 23 January 2015

Richard Davey stepped down as non-executive director, having served nine years and was succeeded
as Senior Independent Director by Martin Lamb who has been on the board for six years and by The
Hon Philip Remnant as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee Michael McKeon ceased to be a
director and Chief Financial Officer on 1 Apnl 2015 having served almost ten years Michael was
succeeded by James Bowling effective the same date

Dr Tony Ballance, Martin Kane and Andy Smith retired from the board, but remained members of the
Severn Trent Executive Committee and retained their executive responsibilities in their areas of remit
The board would ke to thank Richard, Michael, Tony, Martin and Andy for their service

These changes will support the effectiveness of the board with an appropriate balance of innovation,
experience, iIndependence and challenge to ensure effective decision making

In accordance with the Governance Code, all the directors will retire at this year's Annual General
Meeting (AGM) and submit themselves for election or re-election by the shareholders

Role of the Chairman

The role of Andrew Duff, your Chairman, i1s to lead a unitary board, faciitating the contribution of its
members at its meetings, and to be responsible for ensuning that the management and processes of
the board are maintained in line with the Code of Conduct and the Charter of Expectations

Agendas for board meetings are agreed by the Chairman in consultation with the Chief Executive, the
Chief Financral Officer and Company Secretary, although any director may request that an tem be
added to the agenda The Chairman demonstrates effective and ethical leadership for the company,
and has authonty to act and speak for the board between its meetings, including engaging with the
Chief Executive, and prowviding support and advice where appropniate He reports to the board and
committee Chairmen on decisions and actions taken between meetings of the board and ensures
effective working relations with open lines of commumcation with other group executive committee
members He also meets with the non-executive directors without the executive directors present, to
consider the performance of the executive directors, to maintain the necessary depth and breadth of
knowledge and skills to ensure the effectiveness of the board as a team
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The Charman maintains effective communication with shareholders and other stakeholders by
meeting with them in person to ensure the board maintains an understanding of the views of major
investors and other key stakeholders, whilst promoting highest standards of corporate governance

Senior independent non-executive director

Martin Lamb replaced Richard Davey as your Senior Independent Non-executive Director with effect
from 23 January 2015 Martin 1s a member of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations Committees
The board has agreed that Martin will act as Chairman of the board in the event that the Chairman 1s
unable to do so for any reason The Senior Independent Director supports the Chairman in the
delivery of his objectives and ensures that the views of all major shareholders and stakeholders are
conveyed to the directors, to help develop an understanding of any key i1ssues and concerns He I1s
available to all shareholders should they have any concerns, if the normal channels of Chairman,
Chief Executive or Chief Financial Officer have farled to resolve them or for which such contact 1s
inappropriate

The Senior Independent Director meets with non-executive directors, without the Chairman present, at
least annually, and taking into account the views of the executive directors, leads the non-executive
directors in the ongoing monitoring and evaluation of the performance of the Charrman, including
communtcating the results of such

Together with the Nominations Committee, he takes responsibility for ensuring that an orderly
succession planning process 1s In place, n relation to both the role of the Chairman and the board in
general

Non-executive directors

Your non-executive directors are appointed to the board to contribute thewr independent external
expertise and expenence In areas of iImportance to the group Their competencies include corporate
finance, including mergers and acquisitions, general finance, corporate sitrategy, customer care,
property, environmental and technology matters, engineering, regulation, general management,
transformational change, science, regulatory comphance and supply chain management They also
provide independent challenge and ngour to the board’'s deliberations and are encouraged to make
independent assessments of the group's competencies The non-executive directors, led by the
Senior Independent Non-executive Director, meet without the Chairman at least once a year for them
to appraise the Charman’s performance and they have other meetings duning the year without
executive directors present

As part of the board effectiveness review, the board has reviewed the status of the non-executive
directors and considers them all to be independent in character and judgement as defined by the
Governance Code

Chief Executive

Responsibility has been delegated to the Chief Executive to develop and implement the group’s
strategy and overall commercial objectives The non-executive directors, led by the Chairman,
appraise the Chief Executive’s performance annually Liv Garfield 1s empowered to take all decisions
and actions that further the company's strategy and policies and which in her judgement are
reasonable, having regard to the limits which apply to her role as Chief Executive, as set out in the
company's Group Authonsation Arrangements (GAA) She will ensure a continual dialogue with the
Chairman on the strategic i1ssues facing the group including forthcoming complex, contentious or
sensitive 1ssues which may affect the group, of which the Chairman might not be aware The Chief
Executive 1s required to promote and conduct the affairs of the group with the highest standards of
integrity, probity and corporate governance

Executive directors

The executive directors support the Chief Executive in effectively leading Severn Trent towards the
achievement of its strategic objectives and implement the strategy decisions taken by the board They
are committed to doing this in a responsible way which takes account of commitment to our Code of
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Conduct, the long term sustainable and responsible stewardship of the business and the delivery of an
outstanding customer experience, the best value service and environmental leadership This year saw
our number of executive directors reduce from five to two, with Tony Ballance, Martin Kane and Andy
Smith stepping down, allowing for a shmmer board structure

Role of the Company Secretary

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, Bronagh Kennedy,
and the Company Secretanat team Bronagh 1s responsible for ensuring that the board operates in
accordance with the governance framework 1t has adopted and that there 1s an effective flow of
information to the board and its committees and between senior management and the non-executive
directors

The appointment and resignation of the company secretary 1s a matter for consideration by the board
as a whole

Independent advice
Directors have access to independent professional advice at the company's expense on any maltter
relating to their responsibilities

Terms and conditions of appointment
The terms and conditions of appomntment of the directors are available for inspection by any person at
the company's registered office during normal business hours

Effectiveness

Board meetings

There are regular scheduled meetings of the board and of its permanent commitiees throughout the
year and any additional meetings and ad hoc committee meetings are convened as and when
required

Papers, including minutes of board and executive committees held since the previous board meeting
and performance reports, are circulated approximately a week in advance of each meeting

There 15 a documented procedure in place which allows directors to take independent professional
advice In the course of therr duties and all directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary If a director has a concern over any unresolved matter he or she may require the
Company Secretary to minute that concern

The chart below shows how the board has spent its time at scheduled board meetings The board’s
agenda 1s structured as follows

Board activiies by % 2014/15
@ Finance 132%
® Strategy 44%

@ Governance 13%
C Performance 21%
® Other 88%

e Standing ltems — regular reports from the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer on the
operational and financial performance of the business, regulatory matters and external affairs
and from the Company Secretary on governance I1ssues
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¢ Non Standing Items — Strategic Discussion Topics and ad hoc matters requinng approval,
discusston or noting by the Board

The board momtors the performance of the Severn Trent Water at every meeting and receives
monthly updates on performance against the KPIls and ODI's The board also regularly discusses
reports on capital efficiency The Board monitors governance matters and developments in best
practice through the governance report provided by the Company Secretary, a standing item on the
board agenda The board also formally reviews compliance with the Governance Code on an annual
basis and reviews conflicts and other anising disclosure requirements bi-annually

As part of its annual work plan, the board reviewed and approved all financial results anncuncements,
the Annual Report and Accounts, PR14 Five Year Plan and dividend payments and all changes to the
composition of the board and its committees

Board strategy day and Preparation for PR14

In addition to formal meetings, the board attended a full day strategy session in November 2014,
where the board and executive committee together considered the areas of future value creation
across the Severn Trent Water Key areas of discussions included the delivery model for AMPS,
developments following recent legislative changes in the Water Act 2014 and how the company
should respond, innovation and external matters impacting the company, and its’ strategic options for
future growth

Board committees

The board committees operate at the ultimate parent company level rather than the company level
The Severn Trent Pic board has established an effective committee structure to assist in the discharge
of its responsibilities to the group The terms of reference of Audit, Remuneration and Nominations
Committees comply with the provisions of the Governance Code, and are available for inspection,
together with the terms of reference of the Corporate Responsibiity Committee, on our website
(www severntrent com) or may be obtained on request from the Company Secretary

Treasury Committee

In March 2015 the Severn Trent Plc board approved the establishment of a new permanent committee
of the board, the Treasury Committee, to provide oversight of treasury activittes in implementing the
policies and the funding and treasury nisk management plan approved by the board, including, inter
alla nsk measurement and management of interest rate, funding, counterparty credit, hquidity and
operational nisk, funding proposals, relationship with rating agencies, debt investor relations, bank
relationship management and treasury internal controls The committee will review and approve the
Group Treasury Policy Statements, at least annually, and present an annual report to the board in
relation to its activities

Training and development

Induction

On joining the board, a director's induction needs are evaluated and then they are provided with a
comprehensive and personalised induction pack which includes information on our business, key
operations and processes, how we are regulated, how we are shaping future regulation, strategic
plans, financial reports, business plans and information on our governance framework and directors’
roles and responsibilities and legal and regulatory duties

Meetings are arranged with members of the executive management team and with external advisors
who provide support to the relevant board committees on which the directors may serve Visits to
operational and office sites across the group and management presentations are also arranged for
directors joining the board and subsequently throughout the year

These arrangements have been followed for the induction of James Bowling, prior to him joining the
board on 1 Apnl 2015, and John Coghlan following his appointment to the board on 23 May 2014
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Directors’ resource ltbrary

An onlne directors’ resource library and Continuing Professional Development (CPD) repository has
been created for use by the directors, which I1s subject to periodic reviews and updates where
appropnate The library includes a Corporate Governance Manual, a Results Centre and Investor
Relations section, Strategy Day matenals and details of board training sessions It also includes a
further reading section which contains regular updates and guidance on changes to legislaton and
best practice

Continuing Professional Development

All directors recewve updates throughout the year on matters such as changes to best practice
governance guidelines The directors also have access to professional development provided by
external bodies and our advisors CPD requirements were considered, through individual review
meetings between the Chairman and each director, as part of the board effectiveness review In
2014/15 and remain an integral part of the development of our directors

ARA 2014/15 Board Effectiveness Disclosure Performance

The effectiveness of the Board 1s reviewed annually and an independent externally facilitated review of
the effectiveness of the Board 1s conducted every three years The Board therefore conducted an
externally facihitated board effectiveness evaluation this year, the last having taken place in November
2011

In September 2014 a range of potential providers were identified and it was agreed that the evaluation
exercise should be facilitated by Manchester Square Partners (MSP) MSP has no other connection
with the company MSP provided a questionnaire to explore the Board's approach to -

Strategy

Challenges and nsks

Values and culture

Role of the Board, Board dynamics and engagement

Structure of the Board, its composition and succession planning
Governance and leadership

This was supplemented by a review of historic Board papers and individual face to face interviews with
all Board directors, the former Senior Independent Director, Richard Davey and the Company
Secretary

The Chairman also discussed the contribution of directors with each of them in person and the Senior
Independent director conducted an evaluation of the Charman with the assistance of the non
executive directors

The subsequent report prepared by MSP was discussed by the Nominations Committee in its
consideration of the re-election of directors and it was also the subject of a presentation to the Board

The report concluded that -

o There was a strong level of consistency on the key purpose, role and focus areas for the Board,
which was hard working, fully committed and engaged

« There was a real openness and quality of debate at Board meetings
Board structures and processes were efficient, effective and thorough Committees were well
chaired, operating well and had good linkage to the Board

Areas for further focus were -

« Allocation of agenda time to agreed key strategic pnorities

« Mentoning, talent management and succession planning below executive committee level

s Enhance KPIs to reflect nsks and operational performance against new AMPS Regulatory
Requirements
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Accountability

Code of Conduct: ‘Doing the right thing — The Severn Trent way’

Every day Severn Trent employees have to make choices about what they do and how they do it
Most of the time it 1s clear what the nght thing to do 1s, whether it 1s about doing what 1s safe, doing the
right thing for customers, doing what 1s nght ethically — and indeed what 1s nght legally

However, sometimes it 1s not so clear ‘Doing the nght thing — The Severn Trent way’ details the
principles we work by This 1s our Code of Conduct and explains who we are, what we stand for and
how we work, It also tells our customers, investors and business partners that they can trust and rely
on us These principles apply to everyone in Severn Trent’s businesses, no matter where in the world
they are based or what they do They provide a common and consistent framework for responsible
business practices and set out the standards we need to follow in our day to day activities

During the year we have continued to roll out the Code of Conduct across the Group to make sure that
everyone In the business understands what it 1s all about and upholds our ethical standards All
employees are provided with a copy in therr local language as part of therr induction Training sessions
are made avallable and all teams have been encouraged to discuss it through regular communication
exercises

We have also continued to roll out our Code of Conduct into our supply chain

Policies

The Code of Conduct 1s supported by our group polictes and our behaviours model Further details of
these can be found on our website {www severntrent com) During the year, we have completed the
annual review of the policies and our behaviours model to ensure they are fit for purpose

Interests
No director had a matenal interest at any time during the year in any contract of significance with the
company or any of its subsidiary undertakings

Conflicts of interests

The Board has a full documented process In place to authorise situational conflicts in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and under the Company'’s articles of association An annual
review of conflicts s carned out with a simultaneous review of the Severn Trent Gifts and Hospitality
Register, and 1s incorporated into the year end process of verifying directors’ interests Half yearly
reports are also made to the board of all directors’ conflicts and directors are reminded of therr
obklgations to disclose any potential conflicts

At the beginning of every board meeting there 1s a standing agenda item to consider and discuss
whether any potential conflict exists If it does then the relevant director does not attend the meeting
when that item 1s discussed

In March 2014, the board approved the authonsation of the potential situational conflict arising as a
consequence of the appointment of Martin Lamb as Charman of Evoqua Water Technologies and
agreed to consider the management of such conflicts if and when they arose  With the disposal of the
Water Purification business, which was announced on 13 May 2015, this will no longer be necessary
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Directors’ Report
The directors present their report, together with the audited financial statements of the company, for the
year ended 31 March 2015 The Governance section set out on pages 33 to 42 forms part of this report

Principal activity

The prnincipal activities of the company are the provision and the treatment of water and the removal of
waste water in the UK There have not been any significant changes to the company's principal activities in
the year under review The directors are not aware, at the date of this report, of any likely major changes in
the company’'s activities in the next year

Business Review

The Strategic report on pages 1 to 49 provides detaled information relating to the company, its business
model and strategy, the operation of its business and the results and financial position for the year ended
31 March 2015

Details of the principal nsks and uncertainties facing the company are set out in the Risk management
section on pages 25 to 32

Directors and their interests
Biographies of the directors currently serving on the board are set out on page 33 In addition, Michael
McKeon and Richard Davey served as directers during the year ended 31 March 2015

All of the directors at the year end are also directors of Severn Trent Plc [n accordance with the UKLA
Listing Rule 9 8 6, their interests in the share capital of Severn Trent Plc are disclosed in the Annual Report
and Accounts of that company for the year ended 31 March 2015

None of the directors retain any notifiable interest in the shares of the company or any other subsidharies as
at 31 March 2015

Details of directors’ service agreements and the interests of the directors in the shares of Severn Trent Plc
are shown on pages 69 to 85 of the Severn Trent Plc Remuneration Report

Remuneration details

The Severn Trent Plc Remuneration Committee (the ‘Remuneration Committee’} addresses the need to
balance nsk and reward The Remuneraton Committee monitars the vanable pay arrangements to take
account of the nsk levels ensunng an emphasis on long term and sustainable performance The
Remuneration Committee believes that the incentive schemes are appropnately managed and that the
choice of performance measures and targets does not encourage undue risk taking by the executives so
that the long term performance of the business 1s not compromised by the pursuit of short term value The
schemes incorporate a range of internal and external performance metrics, measurning both operational and
financial performance over differing and overlapping performance penods providing a rounded assessment
of overall company performance

Directors’ remuneration and annual bonus scheme
Remuneration for executive directors comprises the following elements

base salary and benefits,
annual benus scheme,

long term incentive plan, and
pension plan

As all directors are also directors of Severn Trent Plc, detalls of ther emoluments can be found In the
Annual Report and Accounts of Severn Trent Plc availlable on the Severn Trent Plc website
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As outhned in the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts, the non-executive Chairman, Andrew
Duff, and non-executive plc directors, do not participate in the company's incentive arrangements, 1e
annual bonus or share schemes

Base salanes and benefits

Base salanes for directors are reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee and take effect from 1
July Salanes are set with reference to individual performance, experience and contribution, together with
developments In the relevant employment market (having regard to simiar roles in publicly quoted
companies of a comparable size {currently FTSE 51-150) and practice in other water companies), company
performance, affordability and internal relativities

In addition to base salary, directors receive a benefits package which contractually includes car allowance,
membership of company pension scheme or cash allowance in lieu, private medical insurance, Ilife
assurance and incapacity benefits scheme Directors may also take advantage of the Severn Trent flexible
benefit scheme open to all employees

Annual Bonus Scheme 2014/15

The directors’ Annual Bonus Scheme (ABS) focuses on the achievement of specific strategic goals which
are intended to dnive the creation of operational efficiencies and improvements In business performance
The bonus scheme operates on

1) A balanced scorecard of measures based on the company Key Performance Indicators (KPls), which
include operational performance, leakage and customer service The scheme attributes score points to
each KPPl and the bonus outturn 1s determined by reference to the aggregate number of points awarded
across all the KPls Bonus targets were set and measured for the period 1 Apnl 2014 to 31 March
2015

2) A set of Business Unmit Objectives that are designed to transform the business for the future, are
concretely measurable and deliver bottom line improvements or positively improve one of aur customer
measures Bonus targets were set and measured for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015

Each executive director 50% of their maximum bonus opportunity linked to the KPI, 40% to the Business
Unit objectives and 10% measured against personal performance The Finance Director and CEO of
Severn Trent Services were also measured against the performance of Severn Trent Services

The ABS 15 designed to encourage improved performance, with targets established by the Severn Trent Plc
Remuneration Committee to align executive directors’ interests with shareholders The maximum annual
bonus opportunity for the executive directors 1s 120% of salary For the achievement of target performance,
60% of salary 1s awarded
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a) Severn Trent Water - Balanced Scorecard

The bonus outturn in respect of Severn Trent Water performance was determined by reference to a
balanced scorecard of measures, based on 10 of the company's 16 Key Performance Indicators (KPlIs)
The KPls used to determine the annual bonus were

Key Performance Indicators Target Stretch | Qutturn Points
Employee KPI 1 Lost tme incidents per
» Prowiding a safe working environment 100,000 hrs worked 019 018 021 85
+ Developing a confident and preductive workforce KPI1 2 Employee motivaton 82% 84% 79% 0
Customer KPI 4 Service Incentive Mechanism
+ Quality inferaction wath the customer — Qualitative 3rd 1st 2nd 115
KPi 5 Service Incentive Mechanism
~ Quantitative 127 104 105 00 129
KPi 7 Serviceability — Waste £8 52 5352 122
KPI 8 Serviceabiity — Water 167 152 270 0
Financial KFPI 9 Capital Expenditure {net)
+ Asset base enhancement versus final determination — 0% 2% 0 0% 100
* Management of cost base % outperformance
KPI 11 Operating Expenditure
versus final determination — 0 5% 08% 05% 100
% outperformance
Environment KPI 12 | Pollution incidents
* Minimising environmental impact {cat 1, 2and 3) 405 377 368 140
KPI 16 | Leakage MI/d — Post MLE 448 442 441 135
Total 926

| For KPI4 the Ofwat introduced new methodology (an Ofwat pilof) to determine the oufturn for wave 4 The Wave 4 result
placed STW in 2nd place agamst the other WASCs The bonus payout 1s based on us coming 2nd and 1s equivalent to
achieving 115 points which the mid point between target and strefch

Each KPI has 100 target points, 130 stretch points and extra points can be earned for above stretch
performance No points can be earned for below a threshold level of performance For executive directors
to be awarded the maximum bonus available, they are required to achieve 1,300 aggregate points Durng
the year, two of the 10 KPIs exceeded the stretch level of performance, with KPI 12 generating a score of
140 points and KPI 16 generating a score of 135 The aggregate score was 926 points The resulting bonus
awarded for the Severn Trent Water portion of the annual bonus was 46 3% of the maximum, representing
an improvement to operational performance but set against challenging targets

b) Severn Trent Water - Business Unit Objectives
The Business Unit objectives used to determine the annual bonus were
Measure/Objective Apphcable to Target Stretch Qutturn % Payable
@ c
o B H
[ =
al o £ 5 @
1 Percentage of customers registered for paperless bills v v 33% 40% 12 9% 9 8%
2 Speed of response in repainng leaks {% fixed with 24 hours) v v v'| 50% 55% 38% 23 7%
3 Amount of renewable energy produced from Waste Water v v 30% 34% o
Renewable activites 284% 34 0%
4 Customer Water Quality complaints v v ¥112,837 11,920 15,881 8 5%
5 Reduction of customer complaints Waste Water v 2,226 1,670 1,961 73 8%
[§ Reduction written Customer complaints v 14,877 13,910 9,978 100 0%
7 Sewer Flooding Incidents R4 R4 515 478 6130 0 0%
8 Reduction in controllable operating expenditure v v v ¥ Y] £25m £40m £25 5m 51 7%
9 Number of properties interrupted for greater than 12 hours v'| 856 770 3,365 0 0%
10 | Capital Blocks Net Spend £m Water v ¥ | £60m £58 4m £59 4m 68 8%
11 | Capital Blocks Net Spend £m Waste v £97m £95m £84 2 100 0%
12| Creating an invesiment fund to enable the ST Green v £20m £22 5m £134m o
8 8%
Business Plan
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0% 1s payable for achieving the threshold level under each metric, increasing on a straight-line basis to
50% for target performance and 100% for stretch performance Each metnic 1s evenly weighted
Achievement against the business unit targets 1s set out In the table above

The bonus payments awarded are detailed below Please note that they incorporate amounts in respect of
personal targets and, in the case of Liv Garfield, Mike, McKeon, Martin Kane and Andy Smith Severn Trent
Services’ performance

Director Value of bonus award
Tony Ballance £100,691
Liv Garfield £405,483
Martin Kane £198,804
Michael McKeon £276,157
Andy Smith £177,872

Half of the above bonus awards are deferred into shares to be held for three years following payment and
subject to continued employment If the executive 1s summarnly disrissed without notice under his/her
employment contract then the deferred bonuses are forfeited In all other cases of cessation of employment
the deferred bonus 1s not lost and the shares automatically vest on the dealing day after the cessation of
employment The Remuneraticn Committee determines whether 1t 1s appropnate to release the shares Iin
‘good leaver' cases A clawback provision continues to operate Annual bonus payments to executive
directors are not pensionable

Annual Bonus Targets for 2015/16

Annual bonuses for 2014/15 were based on performance agamnst the Severn Trent Water balanced
scorecard, business unit objectives and personal performance The scorecard Key Performance Indicators
(KPts) no longer reflect the main indicators of performance as we move into AMPS, especially with the
introduction of Qutcome Delivery Incentives (QDIs) ODls are quantfiable, transparent operational targets
set for us by and monitored by Ofwat covering aspects such as water quality, leakage, asset stewardship,
supply, flooding, customer experience and enviranmental performance Severn Trent Water 1s rewarded by
Ofwat If it exceeds the ODI targets and suffers financial penalties for missing them Boenuses for the Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer for 2015/16 onwards will be based 50% on profit before interest and
tax (PBIT) of Severn Trent Water, 40% on business unit performance {including performance against ODls,
performance of Severn Trent Services and health and safety performance) and 10% on personal
performance PBIT has been chosen as a measure as it 1s an indicator of overall financital performance
and reflects efficiencies, revenue and other key levers in the business plan We believe that the new
structure for the bonus provides a stronger link between our financial and operational performance and the
rewards earned by executives

Share Matching Plan

Under the Share Matching Plan ('SMP') for 2012 directors were eligible to receive matching share awards
over those shares which have been acquired under the deferred share component of the annual bonus
scheme as descnbed above that would vest in 2015 For each share deferred, half a matching share 1s
awarded subject to satisfying the Total Shareholder Return (‘TSR’) performance criteria Further details of
the 2012 SMP can be found in the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts Please note that
following investor feedback and our aim to simplify the executive reward package, no further awards will be
made under the share matching plan from 2014
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Long Term Incentive Plan

Directors may also participate in the Long Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP") Under this plan conditional awards
of performance shares are made to directors up to an annual maximum hmit and vest after three years
subject to out performance of the Return on Regulatory Capital Value (“RoRCV”) set by Ofwat RoRCV
replaced TSR in 2011 to focus attention towards the creation of long term value to align with the interests of
shareholders and Ofwat Shareholder approval 1s being sought at the Severn Trent Plc AGM in July 2015 to
replace the RoORCV measure with Ofwat’s new key financial measure Return on Regulatory Equity (RORE)
Further details are contained in the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts

Share Incentive Plan

A company-wide Share Incentive Plan (‘SIP’) operates which includes a performance condition based on
the award of points for the 10 balanced scorecard KPIs used for the ABS For the year 2014/15 awards of
shares to the value of £347 will be made to all ehgible employees

No further awards will be made from SIP after 2015 following the introduction of a new bonus plan for
Severn Trent Water employees

Shareholding Requirements

The company operates shareholding guidelines under which executive directors are expected to build and
maintain a shareholding in the company of 200% salary for the Chief Executive and 125% of salary for
other executive directors Executive directors are expected to retain all shares received through the vesting
of any incentive schemes (after the settlement of any tax hability) until the shareholding guidelines are met

Insurance and indemnities

The company maintains Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance in respect of legal action that might be
brought against its directors and officers In accordance with the company’s articles of association, and to
the extent permitted by law, in November 2011 the company indemnified each of its directors and other
officers of the group against certain habilities that may be incurred as a result of therr positions with the
company

Indemnities were also entered into with James Bowling and John Coghlan, to the board in April and May
2014 respectively

Severn Trent Water does not have 1n place any indemnities for the benefit of the auditors

Employees
The average number of employees in the company 1s 5,632 (2014 5,634)

Severn Trent Water believes a diverse and inclusive workforce 1s a key factor in being a successful
business This means more than ensuring we don’'t discnminate In any way — we want to create and
maintain a culture open to a diverse population We endeavour to keep employees in the workforce If they
become disabled, and make reasonable adjustments to their role as well as looking for redeployment
opportunities elsewhere In the company If necessary All our training, promotion and career development
processes are In place for all our employees to access, regardless of their gender, race, age or disability

The provision of occupational health programmes 1s of crucial importance to Severn Trent with the aim of
keeping our employees fit and healthy, including an employee assistance programme which 1s available to
Severn Trent Water employees

The Company actively encourages employee involvement and consultation and places emphasis on
keeping its employees informed of its activity and financial performance by way of company wide
communication forums, brefings and publication to staff of all relevant information and corporate
announcements To help align employees’ interests with the success of the company's performance,
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Severn Trent offers employees, The Severn Trent Sharesave Scheme, an HM Revenue and Customs
approved SAYE plan, which 1s offered to UK employees on an annual basis

Research and development
Expenditure on research and development 1s set out In note 2 (e) to the financial statements on page 63

Details of research and development activities conducted by the company/group are contained on page 15
of the Strategic Report

Regulation. ‘Ring fencing’

In accordance with the requirements of Ofwat, the board confirmed that, as at 31 March 2015, #t had
available to it sufficient nghts and assets, not including financial resources, which would enable a special
administrator to manage the affairs, business and property of the company in order that the purposes of a
special administration order could be achieved if such an order were made

Regulation® ‘Cross directorships’

It 1s the policy of the company that directors and employees of the company may be directors of related
companies when this I1s in the best interest of the company, and where appropnate arrangements are in
place to avoid conflicts of interest

Post balance sheet events
There are no post balance sheet events

Dividends

The company’s dividend policy 1s to declare dividends which are consistent with the company's regulatory
obligatons The amount declared I1s expected to vary each year further to consideration of these
obligations The ordinary dividend declared by the company in 2015 amounted to £204 million (2014 £340
million)

Contributions for political purposes

The company's policy 1s not to make any donations for political purposes In the UK, or to donate to EU
poltical parties or incur EU political expenditure Accordingly we have not made any political donations or
incurred political expenditure in the financial year under review

Internal control and risk management

The board s responsible for the company’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness
The board reviews the effectiveness of the system of internal control, including nsk management, financial,
operational and compliance aspects, at least annually In accordance with the requirements of the
Governance Code

The internal control system can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal
misstatement or loss, as it 18 designed to manage rather than eliminate the nisk of failure to achieve
business objectives

The board reviews nsk management and the adequacy of the system of internal control through the Severn
Trent Plc Audit Committee The board also keeps under review ways in which to enhance the control and
audit arrangements in the company The Audit Committee receives reports every six months from the Chief
Executive on the significant nsks faced by the company These include an assessment of the effectiveness
of controls over each of those nsks Action plans to improve controls where necessary are monitored
regularly Any significant control weaknesses that have been identfied are also reported to the Audit
Committee The Internal Audit department provides objective assurance and advice on risk management
and control The external auditors also report on significant control 1ssues to this committee
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The board confirms that procedures providing an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing
the principal risks faced by the company have been in place for the year to 31 March 2015 and up to the
date of the approval of the Annual Report and Accounts

Key elements of the company’s processes and procedures are

+ the formulation and communication of company accounting policies which are regularly updated for
developments In IFRS and other reporting requirements,

« specification of a set of financial controls that all of the company’s operating businesses are required to
implement as a minimum,

+ deployment of a company wide consolidation system with controls to restnct access and maintain

integrity of data,

e recruitment, training and development of appropriately qualified and experenced financial reporting
personnel,

» oversight by the Disclosure Committee of the company's comphance with its disclosure oblgations,
and

« monthly reviews by the board of financial reports from the company’s operating businesses

Auditors
Deloitte LLP have indicated their willingness to continue as auditors and, in accordance with Section 487 of
the Companies Act 2006, are deemed to be reappointed

The directors have confirmed that
1 So far as each of them 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the company's
auditors are unaware, and
2 Each of them has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of
that information

Relevant audit information means information needed by the company's auditors in connection with
prepanng ther report This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Going concern

The company operates In an industry that 1s currently subject to economic regulation rather than market
competition although Ofwat have signaled an intention to introduce more competition in theirr 2020 water
purification sector Ofwat, the economic regulator, has a statutory obligation to set price imits that
believes will enable the water companies to finance their activites As a consequence the directors believe
that the company 1s well placed to manage its business nsks successfully The company I1s funded for its
investment and cash flow needed at least for next year

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue In
operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, we continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparning the annual report and accounts

By order of the board

Bronagh Kennedy
General Counsel and Company Secretary
21 May 20156
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors are responsible for preparng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law
the directors are required to prepare the financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework Under company law the directors must not approve the
accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affars of the company
and of the profit or loss of the company for that penod

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

+ make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

s state whether Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework has been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,
and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume
that the company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the mantenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the company's website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

Responsibility statement
We confirm that te the best of our knowledge
+ the financal statements, prepared In accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework,
give a true and fair view of the assets, iabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the company,
» the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and
the position of the company taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal nisks and
uncertainties that they face, and
+ the annual report and financial statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable
and provide the information necessary for shareholders to assess the company’s performance,
business model and strategy

This responsibility statement was approved by the board of directors on 21 May 2015 and 1s signed on its

behalf by —'1

Andrew Duff James Bowling
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
21 May 2015
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Opinion on
financial
statements of
Severn Trent Water
Limited

In our opinion:

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2015 and of
its profit for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework;
and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements

of the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements compnse the Profit and Loss Accounts, the
Statements of Comprehensive Income, the Balance Sheet, the Cash
Flow Statement, the Statements of Changes in Equity and the
related notes 1to 33 The financial reporting framework that has
been apphed in their preparation i1s applicable law and Financial
Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

Going concern

We have reviewed the directors’ statement contained within the
Directors’ Report on page 43 that the company 1s a going concern
We confirm that

. we have cancluded that the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements I1s appropnate, and

. we have not identified any matenal uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern

However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this statement i1s not a guarantee as to the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern

Our assessment of
risks of material
misstatement

The assessed nsks of matenal misstatement descnbed below are
those that had the greatest effect on our audit strategy, the allocation
of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement
team

Risk How the scope of our audit responded to
the risk

Determination of the provision for

impairment of trade receivables

(£122 5 million) (note 3) We reviewed and challenged the information

A proportion of Severn Trent Water's used to determine the bad debt provision by

customers do not or cannot pay their bills considenng cash collection performance

which results in the need for provisions to be  against historical trends and the level of bad

made for non-payment of the customer debt charges over time Specifically, we

balance There is significant judgement reviewed the actual history of slow paying

involved in calcutating the bad debt customers in Severn Trent Water in the

provision, particularly regarding the penod using data analytics to understand the
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estimation of future cash collection
Provisions are made against Severn Trent
Water's trade recewvables based on historical
experience of levels of recovery from
accounts n particular ageing categories

collection of previously aged debtors and to
recompute the ageing analysis We also
tested the key controls relating to the
production of the data used in the bad debt
model and agreed a sample of this data back
to its source, being the bilhng system

Revenue recognition risk in relation to the
estimation of unbilled revenue

(£192.5 million) (note 3)

For water and waste water customers with
water meters, the amount recognised
depends upon the volume supphed, including
an estimate of the sales value of units
supphed between the date of the last meter
reading and the year end This 1s a key
judgement because the estimated usage I1s
based upon historical data and assumptions
around consumption patterns

We challenged the validity of management's
estimate of current year accrued revenue by
comparing actual amounts billed to the
estimate made in the prior year to determine
the accuracy of the estimation techniques In
addibon, we used data analytics to
recompute the total level of unbilled revenue
for the cuirent year in Severn Trent Water as
well as testing the operating effectiveness of
controls relating to the key data inputs to the
model and agreed a sample of this data back
to its source

Determining the classification of costs
between operating expenditure and
capital expenditure

(note 5)

Severn Trent Water has a substantial capital
programme (fixed asset additions in the year
£423 8 milion which has been agreed with
the regulator (‘Ofwat’) and therefore incurs
significant expenditure in relation to the
development and maintenance of both
infrastructure and non-infrastructure assets
Expenditure in relation o increasing the
capacity or enhancing the network 1s treated
as capital expenditure Expenditure incurred
in maintaining the operating capability of the
network 1s expensed n the year (£134 8
million) in which 1t 1s incurred Capital
projects often contain a combination of
enhancement and maintenance activity
which are not distinct and therefore the
allocation of costs between capital and
operating expenditure 1s inherently
Judgemental

We assessed the company's capitalisation
policy to determine complhiance with relevant
accounting standards and tested the
operating effectiveness of controls over the
application of the policy to expenditure
incurred on projects within the company's
capital programme during the year This
includes consideration of the allocation of
costs between capital and operating
expenditure

In addition, for a sample of capital projects,
we assessed the application of the
capitalisation policy to the costs incurred by
agreement to third party invoices and
obtained explanations and further support for
any significant changes in capital
expenditure from budget

Determining the amount of retirement
benefit obligations (£468.9) million deficit)
(note 23)

This 1s a key area of judgement because the
process 1s complex and requires
management (after taking advice from their
actuarial advisers) to make a number of

With support from the pension specialists
within our audit team, we challenged the
assumptions used in the calculation of the
pension scheme deficit as detailed in note
23, specifically regarding the discount rate,
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assumptions concerning long term interest inflation rate and mortality assumptions with
rates, inflation, salary and pension increases, reference to comparable market and other
investment returns and longewvity of current third party data

and future pensioners

Determination of current and deferred tax

balances (£23.6 million) (note 12)

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax With support from the tax specialists within

positions requires jJudgements to be made our audit team, we considered the likely

regarding the result of negotiations with, and  outcomes of uncertain tax positions and

enquiries from, tax authontes in a number of reviewed correspondence with the relevant

jurisdictions tax authonties to assess the approprateness
of the tax balances that have been recorded
in the balance sheet

The Severn Trent plc Audit Committee’s consideration of these risks 1s set out on page 63
of the Severn Trent pic Annual Report and Accounts

Qur audit procedures relating to these matters were designed In the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and not to express an opinion on individual accounts or
disclosures Our opinion on the financial statements 1s not modified with respect to any of
the risks described above, and we do not express an opinion on these individual matters

Qur We define matenality as the magnrtude of misstatement in the
applhication of financial statements that makes it probable that the economic
materiality decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed

or influenced We use materiality both in planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work

We determined matenality for the company to be £15 milion (2014
£15 million), which s approximately 5 0% (2014 approximately

5 0%) of pre-tax profit before exceptional tems and other
adjustments including the fair value movements in financial
instruments As in 2014, these tems are excluded to focus on the
company’s underlying trading performance, consistent with the
company's internal and external reporting

We agreed with the Severn Trent plc Audit Committee that we would
report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £750,000,
as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view,
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds We also report to the
Severn Trent plc Audit Committee on disclosure judgements that we
dentified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial
statements

An overview of the Our audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the entity

scope of our audit  and ts environment, including internal control, and assessing the
nsks of matenal misstatement Audit work to respond to the nsks of
matenal misstatement was performed directly by the audit
engagement team

Opinion on other In our opimion the information given n the Strategic Report and the
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matters prescribed Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial

by the Companies
Act 2006

statements are prepared i1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which
we are required to
report by
exception
Adequacy of
explanations
received and
accounting records

Directors’
remuneration

QOther matters

Our duty to read
other information in
the Annual Report

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, In
our opinion

. we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or
. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent

company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

. the parent company financial statements are not iIn agreement
with the accounting records and returns

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if In
our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration have not
been made We have nothing to report ansing from this matter

Although not required to do so, the directors have voluntanly chosen

to make a corporate governance statement detailing the extent of

their compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code We

reviewed the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to

the company's compliance with the nine provision of the UK

Corporate Governance Code We have nothing to report ansing from

our review

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), we are

required to report to you if, in our opinion, information in the annual

report is

. matenally inconsistent with the information in the audited
financial statements, or

. apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the company acquired in
the course of performing our audit, or

. otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have 1dentified
any Inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired durnng the
audit and the drrectors’ statement that they consider the annual
report 1s fair, balanced and understandable and whether the annual
report approprately discloses those matters that we communicated
to the audit committee which we consider should have been
disclosed We confirm that we have not identified any such
inconsistencies or misleading statements
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Respective
responsibilities of
directors and audior

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilihies Statement,
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view
Qur responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for
Auditors We also comply wath International Standard on Quality
Control 1 (UK and Ireland) Our audit methodology and tools am to
ensure that our quality control procedures are effective, understood
and applied Our quality controls and systems include our dedicated
professional standards review team and independent partner
reviews

This report 1s made solely to the company’'s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's report and/or those further matters we have expressly
agreed to report to them on in our engagement letter and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed

Scope of the audit
of the financial
statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures n the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to
the company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the
financial and non-financiai information in the annual report to identify
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
identify any information that 1s apparently materially incorrect based
on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in
the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

Jane Whitlock (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

Birmingham, UK
21 May 2015
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Profit and loss account
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Notes 2015 2014
£m £m

Turnover 4 1,581 2 1,544 8
Operating costs before exceptional items 5 (1,044 6) (1,028 4)
Exceptional operating tems 6 {21 5) 82
Total operating costs (1,066 1) {1,020 2)
Profit before interest and tax 5151 524 6
Interest receivable and similar ncome 9 100 9 870
Interest payable and similar charges 10 (325 0) {332 2)
Net finance costs {224 1) {245 2)
(Losses)gains on financial nstruments 11 {159 8) 496
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 1312 3290
Current tax excluding exceptional tax credit (36 6) (56 9)
Deferred tax excluding exceptional credit 130 (14 6)
Exceptional tax credit - 2347
Total taxation on profit on ordinary activities 12 (23 6) 163 2
Profit for the financial year 107 6 492 2

All results are from continuing operations in both the current and preceding year
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Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
£m £m
Profit for the year 107 6 492 2
Other comprehensive {loss}income
Items that will not be reciassified to the profit and loss account
Net actuanal! {loss)/gain on defined benefit pension schemes (139 1) 132
Tax on net actuanal gain/loss 263 {2 6)
Deferred tax ansing on change of rate - {11 3)
(112 8) 07)
ltems that may be reclassified to the profit and loss account
{Loss)/gain on cash flow hedges (10 5) 112
Deferred tax on gan/loss on cash flow hedges 21 {22)
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the profit and loss account in the penod 416 33
Deferred tax on transfers to the profit and loss account (8 3) 07)
249 116
Other comprehensive (loss)income for the penod (87 9) 109
Total comprehensive income for the peniod 197 5031
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Balance sheet
As at 31 March 2015

Notes 2045 2014
£m £m
Fixed assets
Goodwill 13 13
Intangible fixed assets 14 625 693
Tangble fixed assets 15 7,1907 69883
Investments 16 3479 3479
Derwvative financial assets 22 135 302
7.6159 74370
Current assets
Stocks 61 64
Debtors amounts falling due after more than one year 17 2938 2969
Debtars amounts falling due within one year 17 457 0 4382
Denvative financial assets 22 11.5 94
Cash at bank and in hand 1191 198
8875 7707
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 19 {909 7) (732 3)
Net current {iabilittes)/assets {222) 384
Total assets less current habilities 71,5937 7,475 4
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 20 (5,612 2) (5,406 3)
Retirement benefit obligation 23 {468 9) (348 3)
Prowisions for liabiliies and charges 24 (656 0) (687 2)
Net assets 856 6 1,033 6
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 26 1000 100 0
Hedging reserve 27 (98 4) (123 3)
Profit and loss account 8550 1,056 9
Total shareholder's funds 856 6 1,033 6

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 21 May 2015 They were signed on

its behalf by

Andrew Duff James Bowling
Chairman Finance Director
21 May 20156

Company Number 02366686
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Statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Share Hedging Profit and loss
capital reserves account Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2013 1000 (134 9) 902 4 867 5
Profit for the year - - 492 2 492 2
Gains on cash flow hedges - 112 - 112
Deferred tax on gains on cash flow hedges - (22) - (22)
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the profit and loss account - 33 - 33
Deferred tax on transfers to the profit and loss account - {07) - 07
Actuanal gains - - 132 132
Deferred tax on actuanal gains - - (2 6) (2 6)
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - - (11 3) {11 3)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 16 4915 5031
Share options and LTIPs
- value of employees’ services - - 58 58
- shares purchased - - (2 8) (2 8)
Dwvidends paid - - {340 0) (340 0)
At 31 March 2014 100 0 (123 3) 1,056 9 1,0336
Profit for the year - - 107 6 1076
Loss cn cash flow hedges - (10 5) - (10 5}
Deferred tax on loss on cash flow hedges - 21 - 21
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the profit and loss account - 416 - 416
Deferred tax on transfers to the profit and loss account - (83) - (8 3)
Actuanal losses - - {139 1) {(1391)
Deferred tax on actuanal gains - - 263 263
Total comprehensive income for the year - 249 {52) 197
Share options and LTIPs
- value of employees' services - - 76 76
- shares purchased - - (24) (2 4}
Current tax on share based payments - - 13 13
Deferred tax on share based payments - - 05 05
Diwvidends paid - - {203 7) {203 7)
At 31 March 2015 100 0 (98 4) 8550 8566
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Cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
Note £m £m
Cash generated from operations 29 760 9 774 4
Tax pad (24 9) {14 5)
Net cash generated from operating activities 7360 7599
Investing activities
Interest received 11 25
Interest received from intercompany finance leases 52 52
Dividends received from subsidianes 82 24
Proceeds on disposal of intangible and tangible assets 105 101
Purchases of intangible assets (15 4) (82)
Purchases of tangible assets (423 8) {473 4)
Contributions and grants receved 362 303
Net cash used in investing activities (378 0) {431 1)
Financing activities
Interest paid {206 5) {187 6)
Interest element of finance lease payments (8 8) (7 3)
Interest element of intercompany finance lease payments (11 3) {113)
Closed out swaps (139 2) -
Dividends paid {203 7) (340 0}
Repayments of borrowings - {168 6}
Repayments of intercompany borrowings (348 9) (320 2)
New loans raised 684 3 -
New intercompany loans raised 119 4127
Repayments of obhigations under finance leases (31 9) {10 4)
Repayments of obhgations under intercompany finance leases 27) (26)
Receipts from intercompany finance lease 05 05
Purchase of shares in ultimate parent company (2 4) {2 8)
Net cash used In financing activities (258 7) (637 6)
Increase/{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 993 (308 8)
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 198 3286
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 1191 198
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies

a) Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basts (see Directors’ report) under the
historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities at fair
value, and In accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and comply with the
requirements of the United Kingdom Companies Act 2006 (‘the Act’) The prncipal accounting policies,
which have been appled consistently in the current and preceding year are set out below

b) Basis of preparation

The company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Severn Trent Plc and is included in the consolidated
accounts of Severn Trent Plc Consequently, the directors have taken advantage of the exemption
available under section 400 of the United Kingdom Companies Act 2006 from preparing group accounts

The company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Unmited Kingdom Accounting
Standards and comply with the Companies Act 2006 The company meets the definiion of a qualifying
entity as defined iIn FRS 100 'Financial Reporting Standard 100' accordingly the company has elected to
apply FRS 101, ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework'

Therefore the recognition and measurement requirements of EU-adopted IFRS have been applied, with
amendments where necessary in order to comply with Compantes Act 2006 and The Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (S| 2008/410) as the parent
company financial statements are Companies Act 2006 accounts

As permitted by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions avallable under
that standard in relation to share based payments, financial instruments, capital management, presentation
of comparative information in respect of certain assets, standards not yet effective, mpairment of assets
and related party transactions Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the consolidated
financial statements and also where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the group accounts of
Severn Trent Plc The group accounts of Severn Trent Plc are available to the public and can be obtained
as set out in note 33

¢} Turnover
Turnover represents the fair value of consideration receivable, excluding value added tax, in the ordinary
course of business for services provided

Turnover Is not recogmsed until the service has been prowvided to the customer

Tumover includes an estimate of the amount of mains water and waste water charges unbilled at the year
end The accrual 1s estimated using a defined methodology based upon a measure of unbilled water
consumed by tanff, which 1s calculated from historical billing information

d) Interest receivable and similar income

Interest iIncome 15 accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable

Dividend income from investments 1s recognised when the company’s nghts to receive payment have been
established Interest and dividend ncome are included in interest receivable and similar ncome
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e) Exceptional items

Exceptional tems are income or expenditure, which indwvidually or, if of a similar type, in aggregate should,
n the opinion of the directors, be disclosed by virtue of therr size or nature if the financial statements are to
give a true and fair view

f) Taxation
Current tax payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year The company's hability for current tax 1s
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s provided in full on taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
habiities and therr carrying amounts in the financial statements Deferred taxation 1s measured on a non-
discounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset 1s realised or the
deferred tax hability 1s settled

A deferred tax asset 1s only recognised to the extent it 1s probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available in the future to utilise it

Deferred tax assets and habilites are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax
assets against current tax labilities

g) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the far value of purchase consideration over the fair value of the net
assets acquired Farr value adjustments based on provisional estimates are amended within one year of
the acquisition, if required, with a corresponding adjustment to goodwill

Goodwill 1s tested for impairment in accordance with the policy set out In note 11) below and carmed at cost
less accumulated impairment losses

h) Intangible fixed assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are capitahised at cost Following mhial recognition, the histonical cost
model 1s appled

Finute Iife intangible assets are amortised on a straight ine basis over their estimated useful economic lives
as follows

Years
Software 3-10
Other asseis 2-20

Amortisation charged on intangible assets i1s taken to the profit and loss account through operating costs
Intangible assets are reviewed for iImpairment where indicators of impairment exist, (see 11) below)

Development expenditure 1s capitalised as an intangible fixed asset and written off over its expected useful
economic life where the following criteria are met

¢ 1tis technically feasible to create and make the asset available for use or sale,
there are adequate resources available to complete the development and to use or sell the asset,
there 1s the intention and ability to use or sell the asset,
it 1s probable that the asset created will generate future econamic benefits, and
the development cost can be measured reliably

Research expenditure 1s expensed when it 1s incurred
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1) Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are held at cost (or at deemed cost for infrastructure assets on transition to FRS 101}
less accumulated depreciation Expenditure on tangible fixed assets relating to research and development
projects 1s capitalised and written off over the expected useful lives of those assets

The costs of like for like replacement of infrastructure components are recognised in the profit and loss
account as they anse Expenditure which results in enhancements to the operating capability of the
infrastructure networks I1s capitalised

Where tangible fixed assets are transferred to the company from customers or developers, the fair value of
the asset transferred 1s recogmised in the balance sheet Farr value i1s determined based on estimated
depreciated replacement cost Where the transfer is in exchange for connection to the network and there 1s
no further obligation, the corresponding credit 1s recognised immediately in turnover Where the transfer is
considered to be inked to the provision of ongoing services the corresponding credit 1s recorded in deferred
income and released to operating costs over the expected useful ives of the related assets

Where assets take a substantal period of time to get ready for their intended use, the borrowing costs
directly attnibutable to the acquisition, construction or production of these assets are added to their cost

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated to therr estimated residual values over therr estimated useful lives,
with the exception of freehold land which I1s not depreciated Assets under construction are not depreciated

until commissioned

The estimated useful lives are
Years

Infrastructure assets

Impounding reservoirs 250
Raw water aqueducts 250
Mains 80-150
Sewers 150-200
Other assets

Buildings 30-80
Fixed plant and equipment 20-40
Vehicles and mobile plant 2-15

j) Leased assets

Leases where the company obtains assets which transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership of an asset to the company are treated as finance leases, the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset or the present value of the minmum lease payments 15 capitalised as an asset and a
corresponding liability representing the obligation to the lessor I1s recognised Lease payments are treated
as consisting of a capital element and a finance charge, the capital element reducing the obligation to the
lessor and the finance charge being written off to the profit and loss account at a constant rate over the
penod of the lease in proportion to the capital amount outstanding Depreciation 1s charged over the shorter
of the estimated useful life and the lease penod

Leases where substantally all the risks and rewards of ownership remain with the lessor are classified as
operating leases Rental costs ansing under operating leases are expensed on a straight ine basis over the
term of the lease Leases of land are normally treated as operating leases, unless ownership 1s transferred
to the company at the end of the lease
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Where the company transfers substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership of an asset to a lessee
{finance lease), the assets are accounted for as if they had been sold, and the net investment in the lease
15 shown as a recevable due from the lessee Over the lease term, rentals are apportioned between a
reduction in the net investment In the lease and finance lease Income, such that finance lease income
produces a constant rate of return on the net cash investment in the lease Finance lease income Is
included within interest receivable and similar income

k) Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions recewved In respect of fixed assets, including certain charges made as a result of
new connections to the water and sewerage networks, are treated as deferred income and released to
operating costs over the useful economic life of those fixed assets

Grants and contnbutions which are given In compensation for expenses incurred with no future related
costs are reccgnised In operating costs in the period that they become receivable

I} Impairment of fixed assets

If the recoverable amount of goodwill, a tangible fixed asset, or any other fixed asset 1s estmated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced to its recoverable amount Severn
Trent Water 1s considered to be a single cash-generating unit Therefore where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the company estimates the recoverable
amount of the company as a whole Recoverable amount 1s the higher of farr value less costs to sell or
estimated value in use at the date the impairment review I1s undertaken Fair value less costs to sell
represents the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset in an arm's length transaction between
knowledgeable and willing third parties, less costs of disposal Value in use represents the present value of
future cash flows expected to be derived from a cash-generating unit, discounted using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the cost of capital of the cash-generating unit or asset

The discount rate used 1s based on the company's estimated cost of capital

Goodwill 1s tested for impairment annually Impairment reviews are also carned out If there 1s an indication
that an impairment may have occurred, or, where otherwise required, to ensure that fixed assets are not
carned above therr estimated recoverable amounts

Impairments are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account

m) Investments in subsidiaries

Investments In subsidianes are stated at cost less, where appropnate, provisions for imparment
Investments in subsidiaries are reviewed for impairment in ine with note 11) when indicators of impairment
have been identified

n) Stocks
Stock and work In progress Is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes labour,
matenals, transport and attnbutable overheads

o) Trade debtors

Trade debtors, are measured at farr value on mitial recognition If there 1s objective evidence that the asset
15 iImpaired, it 1s wniten down to its recoverable amount and the irrecoverable amount 1s recognised as an
expense in operating costs

Debtors that are assessed not to be impatred individually are assessed collectively for impairment by
reference to the company's histoncal collection expernience for receivables of similar age
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p) Retirement benefits

(1) Defined benefit scheme

The company Is the sponsoring employer of the Severn Trent group’s defined benefit pension schemes As
there I1s no contractual agreement or stated policy for allocating the net defined benefit cost to individual group
entities this company has recognised the full cost and net deficit relating to the schemes

The difference between the value of defined benefit pension scheme assets and defined benefit penston
scheme habilities 1s recorded on the balance sheet as a retirement benefit asset or obligation

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured at fair value using bid price for assets with quoted
prices Defined benefit pension scheme liabilities are measured at the balance sheet date by an
independent actuary using the projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on high
quality corporate bonds of equivalent term and currency to the llabiity Service cost, which i1s the increase
in the present value of the habilities of the group’s defined benefit pension schemes expected to anse from
employee service In the pernod, 1s included In operating costs Finance income and cost are calculated by
applying the discount rate used to determine the present value of the scheme liabilities at the opening
balance sheet date to the value of the scheme assets or habilities respectively

Actuarial gains and losses ansing from experience adjustments, changes in actuanal assumptions and
amendments to pension plans are charged or credited to equity and recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income Contributtons made by other Severn Trent group companies have been disclosed
within actuanal gains and losses In the statement of changes in comprehensive iIncome

(1) Defined contribution scheme

The company participates in the Severn Trent group’s defined contribution pension schemes Contnbutions
to defined contnbutton pension schemes are charged to the profit and loss in the perniod n which they fall
due

q) Provisions
Provisions are recognised where
+ there 1s a present obligation as a result of a past event,
e 1it1s probable that there will be an outflow of economic benefits to settle this obligation, and
+ arellable estimate of this amount can be made
Self-insurance provisions are recognised for claims notified and for claims incurred but which have not yet
been notified, based on advice from the parent company’s independent iInsurance advisers

Provisions are discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to
the hability where the effect 1s matenal

r) Borrowings
The accounting policy for borrowings that are the hedged item in a farr value hedge 1s set out in note 1s)

All other borrowings are imtally recognised at fair value less i1ssue costs After initial recognition,
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method whereby
interest and i1ssue costs are charged to the profit and loss account and added to the carrying value of
borrowings at a constant rate in proportion to the capital amount outstanding

index linked debt 1s adjusted for changes in the relevant inflation index and changes in value are charged to
finance costs
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Borrowings denominated in foreign currency are translated to sterling at the spot rate on the balance sheet
date Exchange gains or losses resulting from this are credited or charged to gains/losses on financial
instruments

s} Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value, including accrued interest Fair value 1s determined
using the methodology described in note 22 d} The accounting policy for changes in farr value depends on
whether the denvative 1s designated as a hedging instrument The various accounting policies are
described below

Interest receivable or payable in respect of derivative financial instruments 1s included in finance income or
costs

Derivatives not designated as hedging mstruments
Gains or losses ansing on remeasurement of dervative financial instruments that are not designated as
hedging instruments are recognised in gainsflosses on financial instruments in the profit and loss account

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

The company uses denvative financial instruments such as cross currency swaps, forward currency
contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its nsks associated with foreign currency and interest rate
fluctuations

At the inception of each hedge relationship, the company documents
« the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item,
e its nsk management objectives and strategy for undertaking the hedge transaction, and
s the results of tests to determine whether the hedging instrument 1s expected tc be highly effective in
offsetting changes In fair values or cash flows (as appropriate) of the hedged item

The company continues to test and document the effectiveness of the hedge on an ongoing basis
Hedge accounting i1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, I1s sold, terminated or exercised, or
no longer qualfies for hedge accounting

Fair value hedges

Where a loan or borrowing 1s in a fair value hedging relationship it 1s remeasured for changes in far value
of the hedged nsk at the balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recognised in gains/losses on
financial instruments in the profit and loss account The gain or loss an the corresponding hedging
instrument 1s also taken to gains/losses on financial instruments in the profit and loss account so that the
effective portion of the hedge will offset the gain or loss on the hedged item

If hedge accounting 1s discontinued, the farr value adjustment ansing from the hedged nsk on the hedged
itern 15 amortised to the profit and loss account over the anticipated remaining Iife of the hedged tem

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that 1s determined to be an effective hedge I1s
recognised in equity and the ineffective portion 1s charged to gans/losses on financial instruments in the
profit and loss account When the gain or loss from the hedged underlying transaction 1s recognised In the
profit and loss account, the gains or losses on the hedging instrument that have previously been
recognised in equity are recycled through gamns/losses on financial instruments in the profit and loss
account

If hedge accounting 1s discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument previously
recognised in equity s held in equity until the forecast transaction occurs, or transferred to gains/losses on
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financial instruments in the profit and loss account If the forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur
If the hedging instrument I1s terminated, the gains and losses previously recognised in equity are transferred
to the profit and loss account From this point the denvative 1s accounted for in the same way as denvatives
not designated as hedging instruments

Embedded derivatives
Where a contract includes terms that cause some of its cash flows to vary in a similar way to a denvative
financial instrument, that part of the contract 1s considered to be an embedded denvative

Embedded denvatives are separated from the contract and measured at farr value with gains and losses
taken to the profit and loss account if
¢ the nisks and charactenstics of the embedded denvative are not closely related to those of the
contract, and
e the contract 1s not carned at fair value with gains and losses reported in the profit and loss account

In all other cases embedded dervatives are accounted for in line with the accounting policy for the contract
as a whole

t} Share based payments

The Severn Trent group operates a number of equity settled share based compensation plans for employees
The farr value of the employee services received In exchange for the grant is recognised as an expense over
the vesting period of the grant

The farr value of employee services 1s determined by reference to the farr value of the awards granted,
calculated using an appropnate pricing model, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions
The charge 1s adjusted to reflect shares that are not expected to vest as a result of faling to meet a non-
market condition

The grant of awards of shares of the ulimate parent company s treated as a capital contnbution and
credited to reserves When awards vest, payments made to the ultimate parent company for the 1ssue of
shares are charged against the capital contributions previously received In respect of the same awards
Any payments in excess of capital contnibutions are treated as distributions

u} Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions ansing durnng the year are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling
on the date of the transaction All profits and losses on exchange ansing during the year are dealt with
through the profit and loss account

2. New accounting policies and future requirements
In the current financial year there have been no new accounting policies which have been adopted which
have had a maternal impact on the financial statements

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were in
iIssue but not yet effective

IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments” 1s likely to affect the measurement and disclosure of financial instruments
This standard will be applied in the financial statements with effect from 1 Apnl 2018 subject to adoption by
the EU The impacts of the changes ansing from the standard have not yet been quantfied

IFRS 15 "Revenue from contracts with customers” will affect the measurement and recognition of revenue
with effect from 1 Apnl 2019 subject to adoption by the EU The impacts of the changes ansing from the
standard have not yet been quantified
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3. Significant accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, the company 1s required to make certan
judgements, estimates and assumptions that it believes are reasonable based on the information available
Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates

The more signficant judgements were

(a) Tax prowvisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requires judgements to be made regarding the result of
negotiations with and enquines from tax authonties The assessments made are based on advice from
independent tax advisers and the status of ongoing discusstons with the tax authority

The key accounting estimates were

a) Depreciation and carrying amounts of tangible fixed assets

Calculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying value for tangible fixed assets requires
estimates to be made of the useful ives of the assets The estimates are based on engineering data and
the company's experience of similar assets Details are set out in note 11)

b} Retirement benefit obligations

As the sponsoning employer of the Severn Trent group's defined benefit pension scheme, the company
recognises the full cost and net deficit relating to the schemes Determining the amount of retirement
benefit obligations and the net costs of providing such benefits requires assumptions to be made
concerning long term interest rates, inflation, salary and pension increases, investment returns and
longevity of current and future pensioners Changes in these assumptions could significantly impact the
amount of the obligations or the cost of providing such benefits The company makes assumptions
concerning these matters with the assistance of advice from independent qualified actuaries Detalls of the
assumptions made are set out In note 23 a) to the financial statements

c) Unbilled revenue

The company raises bills and recognises revenue in accordance with its nght to receive revenue in ine with
the imits established by the periodic regulatory price review processes For water and waste water customers
with water meters, the amount recognised 1s dependent upon the volume suppled including an estimate of
the sales value of units supplied between the date of the last meter read and the year end Meters are read
on a cyclical basis and the group recognises revenue for unbilled amounts based on estimated usage from
the last biling to the end of the financial year The estimated usage 1s based on historical data, judgement
and assumptions

d) Provision for impawrment of trade recervables
Provisions are made against trade recewvables based on histoncal expenence of levels of recovery from
accounts In a particular ageing category The actual amounts collected could differ from the estimated level
of recovery which could impact operating results
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4. Revenue

The principal activity of the company 1s the treatment and the prowision of water and the removal of waste

water in England and Wales

2015

2014

£m £m
Regulated water and sewerage services 1,5727 1,536 6
Other services 85 82
Total turnover 1,581 2 1,544 8
Dividend income (note 9) 82 24
Interest receivable {note 9} 12.6 86
1,602 0 1,555 8
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5 Operating costs

2015 2014
Before Before
Exceptional Exceptional Exceptional Exceptional
costs costs Total COSIs costs Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Wages and salanes 1931 106 2037 189 2 - 1892
Social secunity costs 175 01 176 173 - 173
Pension costs 312 179 491 303 - 303
Share based payments 76 - 76 61 - 61
Total employee costs 2494 286 2780 2429 - 2429
Power 639 - 639 653 - 653
Carbon reduction commutment 73 - 73 59 - 59
Raw matenals and consumables 47 4 - 47 4 425 - 425
Rates 734 - 734 748 - 748
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 284 - 284 313 - 313
Service charges 326 - 326 316 - 316
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 2767 - 276.7 267 5 - 267 5
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 222 - 222 280 - 280
Infrastructure mamtenance expenditure 1348 - 1348 140 3 - 140 3
Hired and contracted services 152 3 - 152 3 140 3 - 140 3
Operating lease rentals
- land and buildings 02 - 02 04 - 04
- other - - - 03 - 03
Hire of plant and machinery - - - 31 - 31
Profit on disposal of fixed assets {0 4) (77 {(8.1) (03 82) (85)
Research and development 46 - 46 41 - 41
Ofwat license fees 53 - 53 37 - 37
Other operating costs 490 06 496 488 - 488
1,147 1 215 1,168 6 1,130 5 (82) 1,122 3
Release from deferred income (10 1) - (10 1) (95 - (95)
Own work capitalised 92 4) - (92 4) (92 6) - {92 6)
1,044 6 215 1,066 1 1,028 4 82) 1,020 2
Further details of exceptional costs are given in note 6
Dunng the year the following fees were charged by the auvditors
2015 2014
£m £m
Fees payable to the company's auditors for
- the audit of the company's annual accounts 02 02
- other assurance services 03 04
Total audit fees 05 06
Fees payable to the company’s auditors for non-audit services 01 01
06 07
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6. Exceptional items before tax

2015 2014
£m £m
Restructuring costs 292 -
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (77) {82)
215 (82)
7 Employee information
Average number of employees (including executive directors) during the year
2015 2014
Number Number
Average number of employees 5,532 5634

8. Directors’ interests and remuneration

a) Directors’ interests

All of the directars as at the end of the year are also directors of Severn Trent Plc, the ulimate parent
undertaking, and therr interests in the share capital of that company are disclosed in the Severn Trent Plc
Annual Report and Accounts of that company for the year ended 31 March 2015 Share options were
granted and exercised in accordance with the Severn Trent Sharesave Scheme as appropnate

The executive directors have further interests in Severn Trent Plc ordinary shares of 97"/, p each by virtue
of having received contingent awards of shares under the Severn Trent Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP),
deferred shares under the Severn Trent Annual Bonus Scheme and contingent shares under the Share
Matching Plan

The individual interests, which represent the maximum aggregate number of shares to which each
individual could become entitled, are disclosed in the Annual Report and Accounts of Severn Trent Plc for
the year ended 31 March 2015

b} Directors’' remuneration
The following table shows the remuneration due to directors for their services to the company duning the

year

2045 2014
£m £m

Aggregate directors' emoluments during the year {excluding pension contributions) 43 46

Pension contributions 01 01
44 47

The emoluments of the non-executive directors are paid by Severn Trent Plc

There were no retirement benefits accruing to directors (2014 one director) under a defined benefit
scheme and four directors (2014 one director) under a defined contribution scheme

Six directors (2014 five directors) exercised share options or received LTIP awards which vested during
the year
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8. Directors’ interests and remuneration (continued)

¢) Highest paid director

2015
Em

2014
£m

Aggregate emoluments (excluding pension contributions)

10

13

The highest paid director at 31 March 2015 was not a member of the defined benefit pension scheme and
did not have an accrued pension at that date (2014 £30,743 per annum)

9. Interest receivable and similar income

2015 2014
£m £m
Interest revenue earned on
- bank deposits 04 12
- amounts due from group undertakings 16 19
- amounts due from group undertakings for finance leases 52 52
Other finance income 54 03
Total interest receivable 126 86
Dividend income 82 24
Interest income on defined benefit scheme assets 801 76 0
Total interest receivable and similar income 1009 870
10 Interest payable and similar charges
2015 2014
£m £m
Interest payable and similar charges on
- amounts payable to group undertakings (191 0) (201 3)
- amounts payable to group undertakings from finance leases {11 2) (11 3)
- finance leases 87 97
- bank and other loans {19 §) (15 1)
Total borrowing costs (230 4) (237 4)
Other finance expenses {0 1) 31)
Pension interest cost (94 5) (91 7)
Total interest payable and similar charges {325 0) (332 2)

Borrowing costs of £19 1 milhion (2014 £13 8 million) incurred funding eligible capital projects have been
capitalised at an interest rate of 5 00% (2014 5 11%) Tax relef of £4 0 million ((2014 £3 2 millon) was
claimed on these cost which was credited to the profit and loss account, offset by a related deferred tax

charge of £3 8 milion (2014 £2 8 million)
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11 (Losses)/gains on financial instruments

2014

£m £m
Gain/{loss) on cross currency swaps used as hedging instruments 1n fair value hedges 02 (16 9)
Gain ansing on adjustment for foreign currency debt in fair value hedges 03 163
Exchange gain on other loans 25 117
Loss on cash flow hedges transferred from equity {41.6) (33)
Hedge ineffective on cash flow hedges 23 17
{Loss)/gain ansing on swaps where hedge accounting 15 not applied {123 5) 401
{159 8) 496
12. Tax on profit on ordinary activities
a) Analysis of tax charge/{credit) in the year
2015 2014
Before excaptional Before Exceptional
tax axceptional tax tax Total
£m £m £m Em
Current tax
UK corporation tax at 23% (2014 24%)
- current year 48 2 47 5 - 475
- adjustment in respect of prior years (11 6} 94 (59 2) (49 8)
Total current tax 366 569 (59 2) {2 3)
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences
- current year {19 5) 254 - 254
- adjustment in respect of pnor years 6.5 {10 8} (56 2) {67 0}
Exceptional credit ansing from rate change - - (119 3) (119 3)
Total deferred tax {130) 146 (175 5) {160 9)
2386 715 (234 7) {163 2)

The current tax charge was £36 6 million (2014 charge of £56 9 million before exceptional tax) This

includes a credit of £11 6 milion (2014 charge of £9 4 million) ansing from adjustments to prior year tax

computations

In the prior year an exceptional tax credit of £59 2 million was recognised, reflecting the anticipated refund
of overpayment of tax in prior periods This was following an agreement with HMRC that certain capital
expenditure within our water and waste water treatment works Is eligible for capital allowances as plant and

machinery This has also resulted in an exceptional deferred tax credit of £56 2 million

The Finance Act 2013 was enacted in the prior year which implemented a reduction in the corporation tax

rate from 23% to 21% with effect from 1 Aprnl 2014 and then to 20% with effect from 1 April 2015 This

resulted in a deferred tax credit of £119 3 milion in the iIncome statement and a deferred tax charge of

£11 3 mulhon In reserves
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12. Tax on profit on ordinary activities

b) Factors affecting the tax charge/(credit) in the year

The tax assessed for the year i1s lower than (2014 lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the

UK of 21% (2014 23%) The differences are explained below

2015

2014

£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 1312 3290
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard UK corporation rate of 21% (2014 23%) 276 757
Tax effect of expenditure not deductible/(income not taxable) in determining taxable profits 11 26
Current year impact of rate change - (54)
Exceptional deferred tax credit arising from rate change - (119 3)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior penods {(51) (116 8)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year 236 {163 2)
c) Tax credited to equity
In addition to the amount credited to the income statement, the following amounts of tax have been
(charged) to equity
2015 2014
Restated
£m £m
Current tax
Tax on share based payments {(13) -
Tax on pension contributions (in excess of profit and loss charge {(21) -
Total current tax credited to equity (3.4) -
Deferred tax
Tax on actuanal gainsflosses {24 2) {2 6)
Tax on share based payments {0 5) -
Effect of change in tax rate - (11 3)
Tax on transfers to the profit and ioss account 83 {07)
Tax on cash flow hedges {21) {22)
Total deferred tax credited to equity {18 5) (16 8)
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13. Dividends on equity shares
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the penod

2015

204

Pence per share £m Pence per share £m
Intenm dividend 204 203.7 340 3400
204 203.7 340 3400

The company’s dividend policy I1s to declare dividends which are consistent with the company's regulatory
obligations and at a level which 1s decided each year after consideration of a number of factors, including

regulatory uncertainty, future cash flow requirements and balance sheet considerations

The amount declared 1s expected to vary each year as the impact of these factors changes

14. Intangible fixed assets

Computer software Other
Intarnally Internalfy
generated Purchased generated Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At1 Apnl 2014 1731 67 2 120 252 3
Additions 57 97 - 154
Disposals - (214) - (21 4)
At 31 March 2015 178 & 555 120 246 3
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2014 {137 3) (35 6) (10 1} {183 0}
Amortisation for year (10 8) (10 8) {0 6) {22 2)
Disposals - 214 - 214
At 31 March 2015 (148 1) (25 0) (107) (183 8)
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 307 305 13 625
At 31 March 2014 358 316 19 693
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15. Tangible fixed assets

Fixed plant
Land and Infrastructure and Movaable
buildings assets equipment plant Tota!
£m £m Em £m £m

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2014 2,900 0 45403 38446 489 11,333 8
Additions 1225 152 9 2006 55 481 5
Disposals {10 0) - {76 4) (4 8) {91 2)
At 31 March 2015 3,0125 4,693 2 3,968 8 496 11,724.1
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2014 (971 5) (1,182 2) {2,161 5) (30 3) (4,345 5}
Charge for the year (67 5) (320) (172 4) (4 8) (276 7)
Disposals 82 - 76 3 43 88 8
At 31 March 2015 (1,030 8) (1,214 2} {2,257 6) (30 8} {4,533.4)
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 1,9817 34790 1,714 2 188 71907
At 31 March 2014 19285 3,358 1 1,683 1 186 6.988 3

finance leases

The carrying amount of tangible fixed assets includes the following amounts in respect of assets held under

At 31 March 2014

Fixed plant
Land and  Infrastructure and
buildings t quipment Total
£m £m £m £m
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 177 0 118 7 26 6 3222
180 6 1196 385 3387

{2014 £48 5 million)

The net book value of land and buildings 18 analysed as follows

2015

Tangible fixed assets under construction of £559 4 million (2014 £589 8 million) which are not depreciated
Cumulative borrowing costs capitalised included in the cost of tangible fixed assets amount to £67 6 million

2014

£m £m

Freehold 1,981 4 1,928 2
Short leasehold 03 03
1,981 7 1,0285
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16. Fixed asset investments

Shares in subsidiary undertakings

£m

Cost and net book value
At 1 Apnl 2014 and 31 March 2015

347 9

The company has the following subsidiary undertakings

Subsidary undertakings

Country of operation and
incorparation

Pnncipai activity

Percentage and class of
share capital held

East Worcester Water Limited

Severn Trent General Partnership Limited
Severn Trent LCP Limited

Severn Trent Leasing Limited

Severn Trent Reservoirs Limited

Severn Trent Utlities Finance Pic

England and Wales
Scotland

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

Finance company
Finance company
Leasing company
Leasing company
Finance company
Finance company

100% Ordinary and
100% non-voting
100% Ordinary
100% Ordinary
100% Ordinary
100% Ordinary
100% Ordinary

The company also has an indirect investment in Severn Trent Limited Partnership, a imited partnership
registered \n Scotland, as a result of Severn Trent General Partnership Limited being the general partner

In the opinion of the directors the fair values of the company’s investments are not less than the amount at

which they are stated in the balance sheet

17. Debtors

Amounts falling due within one year

2015 2014
£m £m
Trade debtors 279.0 267 1
Doubtful debt provision {122.5) (118 2)
Net trade debtors 156.5 148 9
Amounts receivable from group undertakings under finance leases 05 05
Other amounts due from group companies 16.5 63
Other debtors 309 232
Corporation tax 256 507
Prepayments and accrued income 2270 2086
457 0 4382
Amounts falling due after more than one year

2015 2014
£m £m

Loans to group companies 108 3 107 ¢
Amounts recevable from group undertakings under finance leases 1003 1008
Prepayments and accrued income 852 891
2938 296 9
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18. Finance lease receivables

Minimum lease payments receivable are as follows

2015

2014

£m £m
Within one year 57 57
Between one and two years 57 57
Between two and five years 170 170
After five years 244 1 2498
2725 2782
Less unearned interest receivable (171 7) (176 9)
100 8 1013

The present values of minimum lease payments receivable are as follows
2015 2014
£m £m
Within one year 05 05
Between one and two years 06 05
Between two and five years 18 17
After five years 979 98 6
100 8 1013

Disclosed in the balance sheet as

Debtors amounts falling due wathin one year 05 05
Debtors amounts falling due after one year 100 3 1008
1008 1013

The company has granted finance leases of between 44 and 57 years in respect to concrete setthng tanks
The interest terms were set at the inception of the leases Leases bear interest at a weighted average

interest rate of 5 1% (2014 5 1%)
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19. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2015 2014
£m £m
Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 4708 306 2
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings under finance leases 28 27
Obhgations under finance leases 501 320
Borrowings 5237 3409
Trade creditors 254 156
Other amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 627 700
Other creditors 66 59
Other taxation and social secunty 52 52
Accruals and deferred income 2856 2700
Denvative financial habilities 05 247
9097 7323
20. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2015 2014
£Em £EM
Bank lcans 1,2407 5552
Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 3,2350 3,699 2
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings under finance leases 2053 208 1
Obligations under finance leases 2249 2749
Borrowings 4,9059 4,737 4
Other creditors - 01
Accruais and deferred income 5417 488 5
Dernvative financial habilities 164 6 180 3
56122 54063
Borrowings are repayable as follows
2015 2014
Loans not Loans not
repayable by Finance repayable by Finance
instalmonts leases Total instalments leases Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Iy:g;?nmal liabiities due wathin one (470.8) (529) (523.7) (306 2) (34 7) (340 9)
Between one and two years (150.0) {43 4) (193.4) {567 7) {52 8) {620 5)
Between two and five years (1,033 5) (67 9) {1,101 4) {697 9) (86 8) (784 7)
After more than five years {3,292 2) (318.9) {3,611 1) (2,988 8) (343 4) (3,332 2)
Iﬁ‘:;zgf"c'a‘ habiities due after {4,475 7) (430.2)  (4,9059) (4,254 4) (4830)  (4,7374)
{4,946 5) {483.1) (5,429 6) (4,560 6) (517 7) (5,078 3)
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20. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)

Loans repayable partly or wholly after five years comprise

2015 5-10 years 10-15 years 15-20 years >20 years
£m £m £m £m £m
Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings
Fixed rate 296 6 9133 196 0 2469 41,6528
Floating rate 750 335 - - 108 4
RPI inked 372 1496 - 8885 1,0753
408 8 1,096 4 196 0 1,1354 28365
Bank loans
Fixed rate 150 0 - - - 1500
Floating rate 199 3 - - - 199 3
RPi inked 106 4 - - - 106 4
4557 - - - 4557
864 4 1,096 4 196 0 1,1354 3,2922
2014 5-10 years 10-15 years 15-20 years >20 yaars
£m £m £m £m £m
Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings
Fixed rate 296 2 494 0 606 3 246 8 1,643 3
Floating rate - 200 137 - 337
RPI linked - 182 3 - 874 3 1,056 6
296 2 696 2 6200 1,121 1 2,7336
Bank loans
Fixed rate 1500 - - - 1500
Floating rate - - - - -
RPI linked 105 2 - - - 105 2
2552 - - - 2552
5515 696 2 6200 1,121 1 2,9888

The weighted average interest rate on borrowings 1s 3 57% (2014 5 44%)
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21. Finance lease creditor

The mimimum payments under finance leases are as follows

2015 2014

£m Em

Within one year 717 532
Between one and two years 609 "7
Between two and five years 116 9 1376
After five years 4701 496 5
7196 7590

Less future finance charges {236 5) (241 3)
Present value of lease obligations 483 1 5177

The present values of minimum lease payments are disclosed within note 20

The remaining terms of finance leases ranged from 1 to 18 years at 31 March 2015 Interest terms are set
at the inception of the leases Leases which bear fixed interest at a weighted average rate of 5 2% (2014
5 4%) have capital outstanding of £388 0 mulion (2014 £415 0 milion} The lease obligations are secured
against the related assets

There were no contingent rents, escalation clauses or materal renewal or purchase options The terms of
the finance leases do not impose restriction on dividend payments, additional debt or further leasing

22 Financial instruments

a) Categories of financial assets held at fair value

2015 2014
£m £m
Fair value through profit and loss
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted 42 121
42 121
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Cross currency swaps - fair value hedges 208 275
208 275
Total derivative financial assets 250 396
b) Categories of financial liabilities held at fair value
2015 2014
£m £m
Fair value through profit and loss
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted - (21 7)
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted (164 3} {140 7)
(164 3) (162 4)
Dernvatives designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges - (39 6)
Energy swaps - cash flow hedges (0 8) (30)
(0 8) (42 6)
(165 1) (205 D)
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22. Financial instruments (continued)
c) Derivatives

The company enters into a vanety of dernivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate
and foreign exchange rate nsk These nsks are managed centrally by the Severn Trent group treasury
department Denwvative financial instruments are not held for trading

Interest rate swaps - unhedged

The company has interest rate swaps in place to manage its exposure to interest rate nsk arising from its
anticipated borrowing requirements Under the terms of the interest rate swaps, the company agrees with
other parties to exchange, mainly semi-annually, the difference between fixed contract and floating rate
interest rate swaps to hedge future debt Economically these act to fix the interest cost of debt which 1s
denominated as floating rate, but do not achieve hedge accounting under the strict cnitena of 1AS 39

In March 2015 the group cancelled interest rate swaps with a notional principal amount of £275 million,
paying an average fixed rate interest of 5 2%, for a cash payment of £139 2 milion The cash payment
represented the fair value of the swaps at the date of termination and so extinguished the derwvative liabihty
on the balance sheet The unamortised balance in reserves relating to these instruments, which arose on
transition to FRS 101, has been recycled to the profit and loss account as required by IAS 39

Interest rate swaps - hedged

At the beginning of AMP § the company entered into a number of interest rate contracts with future start
dates duning the regulatory penod to hedge the interest rate nsk on debt which was highly probable to be
issued during the AMP to fund the company's capital programme In the second half of the year swaps with
a notional value of £225 million reached their start dates and hedge accounting was terminated from 1
October 2014 because the company was not able to identify specific debt instruments that would qualfy as
the hedge items in a future hedging relaticnship

Cross currency swaps

The company holds cross currency swaps to manage the exchange rate nsk ansing from foreign currency
borrowings Under the terms of the contracts, the company agrees with other parties to swap the foreign
currency proceeds Into sterling debt beanng interest based on LIBOR The terms of the receiwvable leg of
the swap closely match the terms of the underlying debt hence these are expected to be effective hedges
These are accounted for as farr value hedges where the cnteria of IAS 39 are met In March 2015 the year
the company bought back 26% of €700 million European Medium Term Notes The same proportion of the
corresponding cross currency swap was terminated on the same date

Forward foreign exchange coniracts

The company does not have a significant transactional exposure to exchange rates but holds a small
number of forward foreign exchange contracts which are not matenal These are not in designated hedge
relationships and so are classified as ‘Held for trading’

Energy swaps

The company has entered into a series of energy swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the
difference between fixed and market prices of electncity at six-monthly intervals up to March 2018
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22, Financial instruments {continued)
d) Fair value measurements recognised in the balance sheet

The fair values of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, are
based on observable inputs other than quoted prices for identical instruments

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows
Future cash flows are estimated based on forward interest rates from observable yield curves at the year
end and contract interest rates discounted at a rate that reflects the credit nsk of counterparties

Cross currency swaps are valued by reference to forward interest rates from observable yield curves at the
year end and contract interest rates discounted at a rate that reflects the credit nsk of counterparties The
currency cash flows are translated at the spot rate at the year end

Forward exchange contracts are valued by reference to observable forward exchange rates at the year end
and contract forward rates discounted at a rate that reflects the credit nisk of counterparties

e) Changes in value of financial instruments at fair value
Changes in fair value which are included n the profit and loss account are set out in note 11
23. Retirement benefit scheme

a) Defined benefit pension schemes

The company 1s the sponsoring employer of the defined benefit pension schemes operated by the Severn
Trent group 1In the UK  As there 1s no contractual agreement or stated policy for allocating the net defined
benefit cost to individual group entities this company has recognised the full cost and deficit

(i) Background

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK which closed to future
accrual on 31 March 2015 The defined benefit pension schemes cover increases In accrued benefits
ansing from inflation and future pension increases Their assets are held in separate funds administered
by trustees The trustees are required to act in the best interests of the schemes’ beneficianes A formal
actuanal valuation of each scheme s camed out on behalf of the trustees at tnenmal intervals by an
independent professionally qualified actuary Under the defined benefit pension schemes, members are
entitled to retirement benefits calculated as a proportion (varying between 1/30 and 1/80 for each year of
service) of therr salary for the final year of employment with the group or, If higher, the average of the
highest three consecutive years’ salary In the last ten years of employment

The UK defined benefit schemes and the date of their last formal valuation are as follows

Date of last formal actuanal valuation

Severn Trent Pension scheme (STPS)* 31 March 2013
Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scheme 31 March 2013

* The STPS 1s by far the largest of the group's UK defined benefit schemes
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23. Retirement benefit scheme (continued)

a) Defined contribution scheme (continued)

(i) Amount included in the balance sheet arising from the company’s obligations under defined

benefit pension schemes

2015 2014
£m £m

Fair value of scheme assets
Equities 999 5 8706
Gilts 327 2 2705
Corporate bonds 450 8 3888
Property 159 3 148 4
Hedge funds 609 569
Cash 891 884
Total fair value of assets 20868 18236
Present value of the defined benefit obligations - funded schemes (2,545 7) (2,162 5}
{458 9) {338 9)
Present value of the defined benefit obligations - unfunded schemes {10 0) 94)
Liability recognised in the balance sheet {468 9) (348 3)

The equities, gilts, corporate bonds and hedge funds have quoted pnces in active markets
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23. Retirement benefit scheme (continued)

a) Defined contribution scheme {continued)

(1) Amount included in the balance sheet arising from the company’s obligations under defined

benefit pension schemes (continued)

Movements In the fair value of the scheme assets were as follows

2015

2014

£m Em
Farr value at 1 April 1,823 6 1,724 3
Interest income on scheme assets 801 76 0
Company contributions 684 636
Contribution from intra-group asset backed funding arrangement 82 82
Other contnibutions from Sevemn Trent group companies 44 12
Contributions from scheme members 48 51
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in finance income) 193 4 249
Scheme administration costs {2 9) {(30)
Benefits paid {93 2) (76 7)
Fair value at 31 March 2,086 8 18236

Other contributions from Severn Trent group compantes are included In actuanal gains/losses recognised

in the statement of comprehensive Income

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obhigations were as follows

2015

2014

£m £m
Present value at 1 Apni 2,171 9 2,1080
Service cost 228 22 4
Past service cost 181 o1
Interest cost 94 5§ 917
Coninbutions from scheme members 48 51
Actuanal gains ansing from changes in demographic assumptions - (157)
Actuanal losses ansing from changes in financial assumptions 366 2 370
Actuanal gains anising from expenence adjustments (29 4) -
Benefils paid (93 2) (76 7)
Present value at 31 March 2,5557 21719
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23 Retirement benefit scheme {continued)

a) Defined contribution scheme (continued)

(ii) Amount included in the balance sheet arising from the company’s obligations under defined
benefit pension schemes (continued)

Of which
2015 2014
£m £m
Amounts relating to funded schemes 25457 2,1625
Amounts relating to unfunded schemes 100 94
Present value at 31 March 25557 21719

The group has an obligation to pay pensions to a number of former employees, whose benefits would
otherwise have been restncted by the Finance Act 1989 earnings cap Provision for such benefits
amounting to £10 0 milhon (2014 £9 4 milhion) 1s included as an unfunded scheme within the retirement
benefit ocbligation

{(i1i) Amounts recognised Iin the profit and loss account in respect of these defined benefit pension
schemes

2015 2014
£m £m
Amounts charged to operating costs
Current service cost (22 8) (22 4)
Past service cost (18 1) (01
Scheme administration costs (29) (30)
(43 8) (25 5)
Amounts charged to finance costs
Interest cost {94 5) (917
Amounts credited to finance income
Interest income on scheme assets 801 760
Totat amount charged to the income statement (58 2) (412)

The actual return on scheme assets was a gain of £270 5 million (2014 gain of £97 2 million)

Actuarial gains and losses for the current and prior year are reported in the statement of comprehensive
income The cumulative amount of actuanal gains and losses recognised in equity since the adoption of the
recognition and measurement pnnciples of IFRS 1s a net loss of £459 1 milion (2014 net loss of £3157
million)

In addition, contributions made by other Severn Trent group entities are also included in actuanal gains and
losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
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23. Retirement benefit scheme (continued)
a) Defined contribution scheme (continued)

1v) Actuarial risk factors
The schemes typically expose the company to actuanal nisks such as investment nsk, inflation nsk and
longevity risk

Investment risk

The group's contributions to the schemes are based on actuanal calculations which make assumptions
about the returns expected from the schemes' investments If the investments underperform these
assumptions in the long term then the group will need to make additional contributions to the schemes in
order to fund the payment of accrued benefits

Inflation risk

The benefits payable to members of the schemes are linked to inflation measured by the RPI The group's
contributions to the schemes are based on assumptions about the future level of inflation [If inflation 1s
higher than the levels assumed in the actuanal calculations then the group will need to make additional
contributions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued benefits

Longevity risk

The group's contributions to the schemes are based on assumptions about the [life expectancy of scheme
members after retirement If scheme members live longer than assumed n the actuarial calculations then
the group will need to make additional contributions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued
benefits

v) Actuarial assumptions
The major assumptions used m the valuation of the STPS (also the approximate weighted average of
assumptions used for the valuations of all group schemes) were as follows

2015 2014

% %

Price inflation 30 33
Discount rate 33 44
Salary increases n/a 30
Pension increases in payment 30 33
Pension increases in deferment 30 33

The assumption for pnce inflation s denved from the difference between the yields on longer term fixed
rate gilts and on index-linked gilts The discount rate 1s set by reference to AA rated sterling 18 year
corporate bonds

No salary assumption 1s required n the current year because the scheme closed to future accrual on 31
March 2015

The mortality assumptions are based on those used in the tnenmal valuation of the STPS as at 31 March
2013 The mortality assumptions adopted at the year end and the life expectancies at age 65 mplied by
the assumptions are as follows

The mortality assumptions adopted at the year end and the life expectancies at age 65 mphled by the
assumptions are as follows
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23 Retirement benefit scheme (continued)
a) Defined contribution scheme (continued)

v} Actuarial assumptions (continued)

2015 2014
Men Women Men Women
‘SAPS’ 'SAPS'

Mortality table used SINMA_L SiINFA_L S1INMA_L  SINFA_L
Mortality table compared with standard table 116% 92% 116% 92%
Future improvement per annum 10% 10% 10% 10%
Remaining life expectancy for members currently aged 65 (years) 214 245 213 24 4
Remaining hfe expectancy at age 65 for members currently aged 45 (years) 227 261 226 260

The calculation of the scheme liabilities 1s sensitive to the actuarial assumptions and in particular to the
assumptions relating to discount rate, price inflation and mortality The following table summarises the
estimated impact on scheme labilites from changes to key actuanal assumptions whilst holding all other
assumptions constant

Assumption Change In assumption Impact on scheme labilities
Discount rate Increase/decrease by 0 1% Decrease/increase by £50 milion
Price inflation Increaseldecrease by 0 1% Increase/decrease by £45 million
Mortality Increase in Iife expectancy by 1 year Increase by £75 million

In reality, interrelationships exist between the assumptions, particularly between the discount rate and price
inflation The above analysis does not take into account the effect of these interrelationships

In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting penod, which 1s the same as
that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation hability recognised in the balance sheet

{v1} Effect on future cash flows
Contnbution rates are set In consultaton with the trustees for each scheme and each participating
employer

The average duration of the benefit obligation at the end of the year 1s 18 years (2014 18 years) The
expected cash flows payable from the scheme are presented in the graph below
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Expected benefit payments
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Following the completion of the triennial valuation of both schemes, future lump sum deficit contributions
have been agreed with the Trustee In respect of the shortfall, a cash contribution of £35 million was
made i the current year, a further £15 million contribution will be made n the year to 31 March 2016,
followed by £12 milion per annum to 31 March 2025 An annual contribution of £8 2m will also be made
through an asset backing funding arrangement for at least 12 years from 31 March 2015

b) Defined contribution pension scheme

The company participates in the group defined contribution scheme The Severn Trent Stakeholder
Pension scheme was opened on 1 Apnl 2005 This was replaced by the Severn Trent Group Personal
Pension schame from 1 Apnil 2015 and all members of other pension schemes were transferred The
scheme has been open since 1 April 2012 and new employees were automatically enrolled from this date
The pension charge for this scheme for the year ended 31 March 2016 was £8 2 millon (2014 £7 7
milion) As at 31 March 2015, contributions amounting to £2 4 million (2014 £2 4 mihon) in respect of the
current reporting period were owed to the schemes

24. Provisions for habilities and charges

Deferrod

taxation RestructunngQOther provisions Total
£m £m £m £m

At 1 Apni 2014 6830 04 38 687 2
(Credited)/charged to profit and loss account (13 0) 107 01 (22)
Utihsed in year - (9 8) (0 8) (106}
Charged to other comprehensive income (18 5) - - (185}
Unwinding of discount - - 01 01
At 31 March 201§ 6515 13 32 656 0

Page 89 of 128




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

The restructunng provision reflects costs to be incurred In respect of committed programmes The
associated outflows are expected to anse over the next 12 months from the balance sheet date

Other provisions consist of dilapidation costs and onerous leasehold property costs The associated
outflows are eshmated to arise over a penod of up to six years {2014 seven years) from the balance sheet
date

25. Deferred tax

An analysis of the movements in the major deferred tax labiliies and assets recognised by the company 1s
set out below

Accelerated Retirement Fair value of

tax benefit financtal
depreciation cbligation  tnstruments Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2013 8910 (88 1) {537) 779 8271
Reclassification 525 - - (52 5) -
Credit to profit and loss account (61 1) 45 104 46 {41 6)
Credit to profit and loss account ansing from rate change (123 1) 41 33 (36) {119 3)
Charge to other comprehensive income - 26 29 - 556
Charge to other comprehensive income ansing from rate change - 74 37 02 113
At 1 April 2014 7593 (69 5) {(334) 266 6830
Credit to profit and loss account 131 - {30 4) 43 {(130)
Credit 10 other comprehensive iIncome - (242) 62 (05) (18 5)
At 31 March 2015 7724 93 7) {57 6) 304 6515

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset The offset amounts, which are to be recovered/settled
after more than 12 months, are as follows

2015 2014
£m £m
Deferred tax asset (151 3) (110 0)
Deferred tax habiity 8028 7930
6515 6830
26. Share capital

2015 2014
£Em £m

Total 1ssued and fully paid
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each 1000 1000
1000 1000

27. Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve anses from gains or losses on interest rate swaps taken directly to equity under the
hedge accounting provisions of IAS 39 and the transition rules of IFRS 1
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28. Share based payments

At 31 March 2015 there were no options exercisable under any of the share based remuneration schemes
(2014 nil)

a) Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

Under the LTIP annual conditional awards of shares in the ultimate parent company may be made to
executive directors and senior staff Awards are subject to performance conditions and continued
employment throughout the vesting pertod

These awards are subject to Severn Trent Water's achievement of Return on Regulated Capital Value in
excess of the level included in the Severn Trent Water AMPS business plan over a three year vesting
period It has been assumed that performance against the LTIP non-market conditions will be 100% (2014
100%)

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the awards i1s 1 31 (2014 1 22)

b) Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board of the ultimate parent company may grant the nght to
purchase ordinary shares in Severn Trent Plc to those employees who have entered into an HMRC
approved Save As You Earn contract for a period of three or five years

The werighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the period was
£19 74 (2014 £18 12) The options outstanding at 31 March 2015 had a weighted average option price of
£16 81 (2014 £11 25) and a weighted average remaining contractual tife of 2 14 years (2014 1 87 years)

c) Share Matching Plan (SMP)

Under the terms of the Share Matching Plan members of the Executive Committee receive matching share
awards over those shares which have been acquired under the deferred share component of the annual
bonus scheme Matching shares may be awarded at a maximum ratio of one matching share for every
deferred share and are subject to a three year vesting penod No matching shares have been awarded in
the current year

Matching shares are subject to total shareholder return over three years measured relative to the
companies ranked 51-150 by market capitaisation in the FTSE Index (excluding investment trusts)

The number of shares subject to an award will increase to reflect dividends paid through the performance
penod on the basis of such notional dividends being reinvested at the then prevailing share price Awards
will normally vest as soon as the Remuneration Committee determines that the performance conditions
have been met provided that the participant remains in employment at the end of the performance period

d) Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

Under the SIP the board may grant share awards to employees of group companies Dunng the year the
board has announced that it will make awards under the SIP based on performance against Severn Trent
Water's targets for its Key Performance Indicators Eligible employees will be entitled to shares to a
maximum value of £750 It 1s expected that these awards will be made in August 2015 SIP shares vest
with the employee on the date of grant
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29. Cash flow statement

a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

2015

2014

£m £m
Profit before interest and tax 5151 524 6
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 276 7 287 5
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 222 280
Pension service cost 409 225
Pension contnbutions (68 4) (63 6)
Pension administration costs 29 30
Share based payments charge 76 58
Profit on sale of tangible fixed assets {81) (85)
Deferred income movement (101) (9 5)
Provisions charged to the profit and loss account 108 04
Utilisation of provistons for labiliies and charges (10 6) {(14)
Operating cashflows before movements in working capital 7790 768 8
Decrease/(increase) in stocks 02 (04)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors (34 2) 25
Increase in creditors 159 35
Cash generated from operations 7609 774 4
Tax paid (24 9} (14 5)
Net cash generated from operating activities 7360 7599

b) Non-cash transactions

No additions to fixed assets during the year were financed by new finance leases (2014 nil) Assets
transferred from developers were £29 8 million (2014 £24 7 million)

c) Exceptional cash flows

The following cash flows arose from tems classified as exceptional in the profit and loss account

2015

2014

£m £m

Restructuring costs (24 1) -
Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 94 94
{14 7) 94
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29 Cash flow statement {continued)

d) Reconciliation of movement in cash and cash equivalents to movement in net debt

As at RPI uplift on Cther As at
1 Apn! Fatr value  index-inked Foraign non cash 31 March
2014 Cash fiow  adjustmenis debt exchange movements 2015
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 198 993 - - - - 1191
Loans receivable from other group
companies 1070 - - - - 13 108 3
Loans payable to other group
companies (4,006 4) 3370 03 {(187) 26 (216) (3,7058)
Bank loans {555 2) (684 3) - {(12) - - (1,2407)
Finance leases payable {307 0) 319 - - - - {275 1)
Intercompany finance leases payable 2107) 27 - - - - (208 0)
Finance leases receivable from other 1013 095 - - = - 1008
group companies
Cross currency swaps 58 - (34) - - 184 208
Net debt (4,844 4) (213 9) 31 {19 9) 26 (19) (5,08086)

30. Financial commitments

a) Investment expenditure commitments
Capital commitments are as follows

2015 2014
£m £m
Contracted for but not provided for 733 158 0

In addition to these contractual commitments, the company has longer term expenditure plans which
include investments to achieve improvements in performance mandated by the Director General of Water
Services, Ofwat, and to provide for growth in demand for water and sewerage services

b) Leasing commitments

At the balance sheet date, the company had outstanding commitments for future minimum operating lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

2015 2014

£m Em

Within one year 1.8 17
Between two and five years 40 40
After five years 47 48
10.5 105

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the company for certain of its office properties,
plant and equipment
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31. Contingent habilities

The banking arrangements of the company operate on a pooled basis with certain fellow group
undertakings Under these arrangements participating companies guarantee each others' balances only to
the extent that their credit balances can be offset against overdrawn balances of other Severn Trent group
companies At 31 March 2015 the company’s maximum hability under this arrangement was £4 1 million
{2014 £6 7 million)

32, Related party transactions

Directors' remuneration 1s disclosed in note 8

The retirement benefit schemes entered into by the company are considered to be related parties Details
of transactions and balances with the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 23

33. Ultimate parent undertaking

The immediate parent undertaking 1s Severn Trent Draycote Limited

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party 1s Severn Trent Plc, which 1s the parent undertaking
and controlling party of the smallest and largest group to consoldate these financial statements Copies of

the Severn Trent Plc consolidated financial statements can be obtained from Severn Trent Pic's registrars
at Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex BN99, 6DA
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Statement of disclosure of information to
auditor

In the case of each of the persons who are
directors of the company at the date when this
report was approved so far as each of the
directors are aware, there 1S no relevant audit
information of which the company's auditor 1s
unaware, and each of the directors has taken all
the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a
director In order to make himselffherself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish
that the company's auditor 1s aware of that
information

Relevant audit information means information
needed by the company's auditor n connection
with preparnng ther report This confirmation s
given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the prowisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Water Industry Act 1991

Further to the requirements of company law, the
directors are required to prepare financial
statements which comply with the requirements
of Condition F Instrument of Appointment of the
company as a water and sewerage undertaker
under the Woater Industry Act 1991 and
Regulatory Accounting Guidelines issued by the

Water Services Regulation Authority This

addittonally requires the directors to

a) Confirm that, in their opinion, the company has
sufficient financial and management resources
for the next twelve months,

b) Confirm that, in their opinion, the company has
sufficient nghts and assets which would enable a
special administrator to manage the affarrs,
business and property of the company,

¢) Report to the Water Services Regulation
Authorty changes in the company's activities
which may be matenal in relaton to the
company's ability to finance its regulated
activities,

d) Undertake transactions entered into by the
appointed business, with or for the beneftt of
associated companies or other businesses or
activities of the appointed business, at arm's
length, and

e) Keep proper accounting records which comply
with Condition F

Diversification and the protection of the core
business — Condition Féa

Severn Trent Water herehy advises

a) That in the opinmion of the directors, the
Appointee will have available to it sufficient
financial resources and facihities to enable it to
carry out, for at least the next 12 months, the
Regulated Activity (including the investment
programme necessary to fulfil the Appointee's
obligations under the Appointment), and

b) That in the opimion of the directors, the
Appointee will for at least the next 12 months,
have available to t management resources which
are sufficient to enable it to carry out those
functions
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Ring Fencing — Condition K3 1

In accordance with the requirements of the Water
Services Regulaton Authonty, the board
confirmed that, as at 31 March 2015, it had
avallable to # sufficient nghts and assets, not
including financial resources, which would enable
a special administrator to manage the affairs,
business and property of the company in order
that the purposes of a special administration
order could be achieved if such an order were
made

Liv Garfield
Chief Executive

For and on behalf of the board
22 May 2015
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Report of the auditor

To the Water Services Regulation Authority and the Directors of Severn Trent Water Limited

Independent auditor's report to the Water
Services Regulation Authority {“WSRA") and
Directors of Severn Trent Water Limited

We have audited the Regulatory Accounts of
Severn Trent Water Limited for the year ended 31
March 2015 on pages 100 to 126 which
comprise

+ the regulatory histoncal cost accounting
statements, compnsing the regulatory
historical cost proft and loss account, the
regulatory historical cost balance shest,
the regulatory hustorical cost statement of
total recognised gains and losses and the
historical cost  reconciiation  between
statutory and regulatory accounts and the
related notes to the histoncal cost
accounting statements including the
statement of accounting policies, and

» the regulatory current cost accounting
statements for the appointed business,
comprising the current cost profit and loss
account, the current cost balance sheet,
the current cost cash flow statement and
the related notes to the current cost
financial  statements, Including the
statement of accounting policies

These Regulatory Accounts have been prepared
in accordance with the basis of preparation and
accounting policies set out in the Statement of
Accounting Polcies

This report 1s made, on terms that have been
agreed, solely to the Company and the WSRA in
order to meet the requirements of Condition F of
the Instrument of Appointment granted by the
Secretary of State for the Environment to the
Company as a water and sewerage undertaker
under the Water Industry Act 1991 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the Company and the WSRA those matters
that we have agreed to state to them in our
report, In order (a) to assist the Company to meet
its obligation under Condition F to procure such a
report and (b) to faciitate the camrying ocut by the
WSRA of its regulatory functions, and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the WSRA,

for our audit work, for this report or for the
opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of the WSRA, the
directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 50, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of
the Regulatory Accounts and for thew far
presentattion In accordance with the basis of
preparation and accounting policies Our
responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion
on the Regulatory Accounts in accordance with
Internationa! Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland), except as stated in the ‘Scope of the
audit of the Regulatory Accounts’ below, and
having regard to the guidance contained in Audit
05/03 ‘Reporting to Regulators of Regulated
Entittes’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Audntors

Scope of the audit of the Regulatory Accounts

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the
amounts and disclosures In the Regulatory
Accounts sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the Regulatory Accounts are free from
matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or error This includes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the
company's circumstances and have been
consistently appled and adequately disclosed,
the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directers, and the overall
presentation of the Regulatory Accounts In
addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information  presented with  the
regulatory accounts to dentify matenal
inconsistencies with the audited Regulatory
Accounts If we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or Inconsistencies, we consider
the implications for our report

We have not assessed whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the circumstances of
the Company where these are lad down by
Condition F Where Condition F does not give
specific guidance on the accounting policies to be
followed, our audit includes an assessment of
whether the accounting policies adopted In
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To the Water Services Regulation Authority and the Directors of Severn Trent Water Limited

respect of the transactions and balances required
to be included in the Regulatory Accounts are
consistent with those used in the preparation of
the statutory financial statements of the company
Furthermore, as the nature, form and content of
Regulatory Accounts are determined by the
WSRA, we did not evaluate the overall adequacy
of the presentation of the information, which
would have been required if we were to express
an audit opinion under International Standards on
Auditing (UK & Ireland)

The Company has presented the allocation of
operating costs and assets in accordance with

Opinion on Regulatory Accounts
In our opinion, the Regulatory Accounts

o farly present in accordance with
Condition F, the Regulatory Accounting
Guidelnes 1ssued by the WSRA, In
respect of the Accounting Separation
Tables the Methodology Statement, and
the accounting policies set out on page
61, the state of the Company’'s affars at
31 March 2015 on an historical cost and
current cost basis, and its histonical cost
and current cost profit and its current cost
cash flow for the year then ended,

e« have been properly prepared In
accordance with Condtien F, the
Regulatory Accounting Guidelines, the

accounting policies and the Methodology
statement

Emphasis of matter - Basis of preparation

Without modifying our opinion on the Regulatory
Accounts, we draw attention to the fact that the
Regulatory Accounts have been prepared in
accordance with Condition F of the Appointment
and the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines, the
accounting policies set out In the statement of
accounting policies and, in the case of the
regulatory historical cost accounting statements,
under the historical cost convention

The Regulatory Accounts are separate from the
statutory financial statements of the Company
and have not been prepared under the basis of
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (UK GAAP") Financial information other

the accounting separation policy set out In note 2
to the accounts and its Accounting Separation
Methodology Statement published on the
Company's webste on 15 July 2015, ({(the
“Methodology Statement”) We are not required
to assess whether the methods of cost allocation
set out in the Methodology Statement are
approprate to the circumstances of the Company
or whether they meet the requirements of the
WSRA, which would have been required If we

were to express an audt opminion under
International Standards on Auditing (UK &
Ireland)

than that prepared on the basis of UK GAAP
does not necessarly represent a true and far
view of the financial performance or financial
position of a company as shown In statutory
financial statements prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006 Furthermore, the
regulatory historical cost accounting statements
on pages 100 to 103 have been drawn up In
accordance  with Regulatory  Accounting
Guideline 3 07, in that infrastructure renewals
accounting as apphed In previous years should
continue to be apphed and accordingly, that the
relevant sections of Financial Reporting
Standards 12 and 15 be disapplied The effect of
this departure from Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice and a reconcihation of the
balance sheet drawn up on this basis to the
balance sheet drawn up under the Companies
Act 2006 1s given on page 103

Opinion on other matters prescribed by
Condition F

Under the terms of our contract, we have
assumed responsibility to provide those
additional opinions required by Condition F In
relation to the accounting records In our opinion

« proper accounting records have been kept by
the appointee as required by paragraph 3 of
Condition F, and

¢« the Regulatory Accounts are in agreement
with the accounting records and returns
retained for the purpose of preparing the
Regulatory Accounts
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Other matters

The nature, form and content of Regulatory
Accounts are determined by the WSRA Itis not
appropniate for us to assess whether the nature
of the information being reported upon 1s suitable
or appropnate for the WSGSRA's purposes
Accordingly, we make no such assessment

Our opinion on the Regulatory Accounts s
separate from our opinion con the statutory
financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2015 on which we report, which
are prepared for a different purpose Our audit
report in relation to the statutory financial
statements of the Company (our ‘statutory audit’)
was made solely to the Company’s members, as
a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006 Our statutory audit
work was undertaken so that we might state to
the Company's members those matters we are
required to state to them in a statutory audit
report and for no other purpose In these
circumstances, to the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom our statutory audit report 1s shown or into
whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing

Jane Whitlock (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Birmingham, United Kingdom

21 May 2015
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Profit and loss account year ended 31 March 2015

2015

2014

Non- Non-
Appointed appointed Appointed appointed
business business Total business business Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Turnover 1,560 9 118 1,5727 1,624 6 120 1,536 6
Operating costs (638 2) {4 9) (6431) (593 5) {3 6) {597 1)
Infrastructure renewals charge (133 9) - {1339) (134 8) - {134 8)
Historical cost depreciation (262 6) - {262 6) (260 6) - {260 6)
Other operating income 81 - 81 85 - 85
Operating profit 534 3 69 5412 544 2 84 552 6
Other income 1.2 18 30 18 18 36
Net interest payable* (366 1) - {366 1) (238 0) - {238 0)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 169.4 87 178 1 3080 102 318 2
Taxation on profit on ordinary actiities
- Current tax (34 8) (18) (36 6) 46 {2 3) 23
- Deferred tax 4.1 - 41 1415 - 1415
Taxation (307} {18) (32 5) 146 1 (2 3) 1438
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 138.7 69 1456 454 1 79 462 0
Dwvidends (196.8} (6 9) (203 7} (332 1) (7 9) {340 0)
Retained (loss)/ profit for the financial year (58.1) - {581) 1220 - 1220

“Nat interest payable includes drdends recevable
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses year

ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014

Non- Non-

Appointed appointed Appointed appointed
business business Total business business Tota!
£m £m £Em £m £m £m
Profit for the financial year 1387 69 1456 454 1 79 462 0
Actuanal (loss)/gain {156 1) {156 1) (16 1) - {16 1)
Tax credit/(charge) on actuanal (loss)/gamn 312 312 32 - 32
Adjustment in respect of tax rate on deferred tax - - {11 3) - (11 3)

Total recognised gains and lossas for the

financial year* 138 69 207 429 9 79 437 8

“These exclude share based payments and dividends
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Balance sheet as at 31 March 2015

2015

2014

Non- Non-
Appointed appointed Appointed appointed
business business Total business business Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 6,598 7 - 6,598 7 6,454 2 - 6,454 2
Intangible assets 07 - 07 10 - 10
Investments-loan to group company 65.6 - 656 656 - 656
Investments-other 347 9 - 3479 347 9 - 347 9
7,0129 - 70129 6,868 7 - 6,868 7
Current assets
Infrastructure renewal prepayment 1.8 - 18 08 - 08
Other current assets
Stock 6.1 - 61 64 - 64
Debtors 5712 - 5712 592 1 - 592 1
Corporation tax receivable 25.6 - 256 507 - 507
Short term deposits 1150 - 1150 131 - 131
Cash at bank and in hand 02 39 41 12 55 67
7199 39 7238 664 3 55 6698
Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings (516.7) - (516 7) (355 3) - {355 3)
Other creditors (368 5) (39) (372 4) (346 0) (55) {351 5)
{885 2) 39) (889 1) (701 3) (55) {706 8)
Net current liabilities {165.3) - (165 3) {37 0) - (37 0)
Total assets less current liabilities 6,847 6 - 6,847 6 6,831 7 - 6,8317
Creditors amounts falling due after one year
Borrowings (4,892 4) - (4,8024) (4,78486) - (4,784 8)
Other creditors {13) - {13) {15) - (15)
(4,893.7) - (4,B937) (4,7861) - {4,786 1)
Provisicns for liabilities and charges {4 4) - {44) 42) - (42)
Deferred taxation {341 6) - (34186) (351 6) - {351 6)
Deferred income {35 5) - (35 5) (37 5) - (37 5)
Pension deficit (279 8) - (279 8) (184 8) - {184 8)
Net assets 41,2926 b 1,202 6 1,467 5 - 1,467 5
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 1000 - 1000 100 - 1000
Profit and loss account 1,192 6 - 1,192 6 1,367 5 - 1,367 5
Shareholders' funds 1,292 6 - 1,292 6 1,467 5 - 1,467 5
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Reconciliation between statutory accounts and historical
cost regulatory accounts

2015
£m

Profit and Loss Account / Income Statement
Turnover
Per FRS101 statutory accounts 1,581 2
Renewables Obligation Certficate (ROC) income included in operating costs in regulatory accounts (8 5)
Per regulatory accounts 15727
Per FRS101 statutory accounts 515 1
Items in FRS101 operating profit not in regulatory operating profit
Non operating income 30)
Amortisation of development costs which have previously been wntten off in the regulatory accounts 06
Depreciation of infrastructure assets 306
Depreciation ansing on capitalised borrowing costs 20
Deferred income recogrused relating to fixed assets (70)
Items in regulatory operating profit not in FRS101 operating profit
Difference between infrastructure renewals charge and infrastructure renewals expenditure 09
Goodwill amortisation {0 3)
Other 44
Measurement differences
Impairment of trade debtors (31
Difference in pension charge 10
Per regulatory accounts 5412
Balance Sheet
Tangible assets
Net book value per FRS101 statutory accounts 7,1907
items in FRS101 tangible assets not in regulatory tangible assets
Remeasurement of mfrastructure assets on transition to FRS101 {378 0)
Cumulalive impact of transfernng assets from customers (206 1)
Cumulative infrastructure asset depreciation 268 1
Grants and contnbutions deducted from fixed assets (290 4)
Cumulative capitalised borrowing costs {62 3)
ftems in requlatory tangible assets not in FRS101 tangible assets
Cumulative difference between infrastructure renewals charge and infrastructure renewals expenditure 204
Infrastructure renewals accrual 59
Recognition of intangible assels 625
Other {0 3)
Per regulatory accounts 6,598.7
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Current cost profit and loss account: appointed business

year ended 31 March 2015

2015

2014

Water Sewerage Total Water Sewerage Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Turnover 4a
Unmeasured - household 3509 3759 726 8 3511 37115 7226
Unmeasured - non-household 28 82 110 36 98 132
Measured - household 2085 1957 404 2 2009 186 3 387 2
Measured - non-household 1375 1815 3190 1337 1705 304 2
Trade effluent - 132 132 - 109 109
Bulk supplies/intercompany payments 53 - 53 53 - 53
Other third party services 373 377 750 366 396 762
Other sources 17 47 64 11 39 50
Total Turnover 744.0 8169 1,560 9 7323 7923 15246
Current operating cost - wholesale 4c (486 7) (480 1) (966 8) {462 7) {456 7} (919 4)
Current operating cost - retail 4c {65 2) (64 4) (129 6) {60 4) {66 8) (127 2)
Other operating Income 17 17 34 25 28 53
Working capital adjustment (©2) (0.2) (04) (26) (29) (65)
Current cost operating profit 1936 2739 467 5 209 1 2687 477 8
Other ncome 12 18
Net interest payable* {366 1) (238 0)
Financing adjustment 314 805
Current cost profit before taxation 1340 3221
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities - -
- Current tax {34 8) 46
- Deferred tax 41 1415
Taxation (307) 1461
Current cost profit attributable to
shareholders after taxation 1033 468 2
Dwidend (196 8) (3321)
Current cost retained (loss)/profit for {93 5) 136 1
the year
Net revenue movement out of tanff basket 0 2) {0 5) 10 -

Back-billing amount identified**

(03)

(10

*Netinterest payabls includes dividends recervable

“*Pnor year numbers have been updated in line with the
expected back biling incentives
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Statement of total recognised gains and losses:
appointed business year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
£m £m

Profit for the financial year 1033 468 2
Actuanal {loss)/gain {156 1) (16 1)
Tax on actuanal loss/(gamn) 312 32
Adjustment in respect of change of tax rate on deferred tax - (11 3)
Total recognised gains and losses for the financial year* {21 6) 444 0

*These exclude share based payments and dwdends
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Current Cost Balance sheet: appointed as at 31 March
2015

2015 2014
Restated®
Total Total
Notes £m £m
Fixed assets

Tangible assets 5 75,129.1 74,3171
Grants and contnbutions (23,0650} (22,795 8)
Intangible assets o7 10
Investments - lcan to group company 656 656
Investments - other 3479 3479

52,4783 51,9358

Current assets

Infrastructure renewal prepayment 18 08
Other current assets
Working capital 7 819 453
Debtors 143 6 2094
Corporation tax receivable 256 507
Short term deposits 1150 131
Cash at bank and in hand 02 12
3680 3205
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Borowings (516.7) (355 3)
Other creditors (16 7) {22)
(533 4) (357 5)
Net current habilities (165 4) (37 0)
Total assets less current habihities 52,3129 51,898 8
Creditors amounts falling due after mora than cne year
Borrowings {4,892 4) (4,784 6)
Other creditors (13) {15)

(4,893 7) (4,786 1)

Provisions for liabilities and charges {44) (4 2)
Deferred taxation (341 6) (351 86)
Pension deficit (279 8) (184 8)
Net assets 46,793 4 46,572 1

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 1000 1000
Profit and loss account 907 4 1,118 6
Current cost reserve 45,786 0 45,353 5
Shareholder's funds 46,793 4 46,5721

“Fixed assets for 2014 have been restated to be shown gross of grants ang contributions
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Current cost cash flow statement: appointed business
year ended 31 March 2015

2015

2014

Appointad Appointed
business business
Notes £m £m
Net cash inflow from operating activittes 8 8915 903 2
Returns on investments and servicing of finance* {358 8) (195 4)
Taxation paid (24 9) {12 2)
Capital expenditure

Gross cost of purchase of tangible fixed assets (449 5) (489 9)
Grants and contnbuticns receved 450 386
Infrastructure renewals expenditure {134 9) (140 3)
Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 105 101
Net cash outflow from investing activities (528 9) (581 5}
Equity dividends received 82 24
Equity dividends paid (196 8) (332 1)
Net cash outflow before management of liquid resources and financing (209 7) (215 6)
Management of iquid resources (101 9) 3136
Net cash flow before financing {(3116) 98 0
Net cash flow from financing 3106 (914)
Net (decrease)/ increase 1n cash (10) 66

*Includes £13% 2m in respect of payment to terminate interest rate swaps
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1 Regulatory reporting

The regulatory accounts as reported on pages
102 to 126 should be read in conjunction with
the financial review on pages 20 to 24 for
further understanding of the performance of the
business

In particular, attention is drawn to pages 43 to
47 of the Directors’ report which sets out the
ink between Directors’ pay and standards of
performance

2 Accounting policies for historical
cost and current cost financial statements

a) Basis of preparation

The regulatory financial statements are
separate from the statutory financial statements
of the company They have been prepared on a
going concern basis (see Directors’ Report on
page 49

The regulatory financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Condition F of the
Instruments of Appointment of the Water and
Sewerage Undertakers and the Regulatory
Accounting Guidelines as issued by the WSRA

Where the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines
do not specifically address an accounting I1ssue,
then they require UK GAAP to be followed
IN13 does not permit the regulatory accounts to
be based on the new FRS100 accounting
framework 1ssued by the Financial Reporting
Council and therefore UK GAAP prior to
FRS100 has been applied in prepanng these
regulatory accounts Financial information other
than that prepared wholly on the basis of UK
GAAPFP may not necessarily represent a true and
far view of the financial performance or
financial position of a company as shown In
financial statements prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006

Following the adoption of FRS5101 the company
no longer prepares consoldated statutory
accounts These regulatory accounts have
therefore been prepared for the company as a
stand alone entity and do not include the results
or net assets of its subsidianies

b) Turnover

Tumover represents income recevable from
regulated water activites, excluding value
added tax

Tumover includes an estimation of the amount
of mains water and waste water charges
unbilled at the year end The accrual 1s
eshimated using a defined methodology based
upon a measure of unbilled water consumed by
tariff, which 1s calculated from historical billing
information There have been no changes In
methodology in the year

The Water Industry Act 1991, Chapter 1 A
‘Licensing of Water Suppliers' describes the
duties imposed on a water and sewage
undertaker and the license conditions involved
Regulated activites are consequently those
activities that are necessary in order for the
appointee to fulfil the functions and duties of a
water and sewerage undertaker

Non - appointed income includes tankered
waste income, mast rentals, car park income,
marketing income

Turnover 1s not recogmsed in respect of
unoccupied properties Properhes are classified
as unoccupied when

¢ The company 1s informed that a
customer has left a property and 1t 1s not
expected to be reoccupied immediately,

e New properties are connected but are
not occupied,

e Properties are disconnected following a
customer’s request, or

« The dentity of the customer Is unknown

The following activities are undertaken to ensure
properties classified as unoccupied are in fact
not occupied

+« Where the company i1s informed that the
customer has left a property and the
property I1s expected to be occuped by
someone else, a welcome letter 1s sent
to the property encouraging the occupier
to contact the company

+« [f there 15 no response to the welcome
lefter within two months a void letter 1s
sent to the property explaming that we
have classified the property as empty
and may schedule the property for
disconnection

e Meter readings are taken for metered
unoccupled properties, where

Page 108 of 128




Notes to the regulatory accounts

consumption s recorded, a letter 15 sent
to the property

+ Inspections are organised throughout the
year by geographical area

c) Operating costs

Income from electncity generation including
Renewable Obligation Certificate income 1s
deducted from operating costs

d) Bad and doubtful debts

Provisions are charged to operating costs to
reflect the company's assessment of the risk of
non recoverability of debtors Provisions are
calculated based on the age of the debtor
balance and the company's previous collection
experence for balances of that age The bad
debt prowvisioning rates are updated annually to
reflect the latest collecton performance data
from the company’s billing system

The company's bad debt wnte off policy has
remained unchanged and has been consistently
apphed in the current and the prior years

The polcy specifies that debt can only be
written off if the following cntena are met

¢+ The debt ts actually a legtimate charge
against the debtor If it 1s considered
that part or all of the debt 1s incorrect or
unsubstantiated, then such elements
are dealt with through the 1ssue of a
credit note, and

» Al avalable economic optons for
collecton of the debt have been
pursued or that debt recovery
procedures have proved to be abortive
or uneconomic to continue Uneconormic
crcumstances are those  where,
following the application of debt
recovery procedures

— the customer could not be traced

without ncurnng an
unreasonable degree of
expenditure,

— the company has an

insufficiently sound case to
Justify further expenditure on
debt recovery procedures,

— the likelihood of recovering the
debt 1s so small in particular
circumstances that  further
expenses on debt recovery
cannot be justified, or

¢+ The customer does not have any assets
or has insufficient assets on which to
levy execution,or

» The customer 1s bankrupt or has gone
into liquidation and no dmdend has
been, or 1s ikely to be, recewved, or

¢ The customer has died without leaving
an estate or has left an nsufficient
estate on which to levy execution, and

+« The company has been unable to prove
its case in court

The above wnte-off rules apply primanly to
customers to whom the company has ceased to
provide a service Only in exceptional
circumstances 1s debt relating to continuing
customers considered for wiite off

e) Research and development

Expenditure on research and development
projects 1s charged to the proft and loss
account in the year in which it 1s incurred

f) Leased assets

Where the company obtains assets under
leasing arrangements which transfer
substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership of an asset to the ilessee (finance
leases), the assets are accounted for as If they
had been purchased and the fair value of the
minimum lease payments 15 shown as an
obligation to the lessor Lease payments are
treated as consisting of a capital element and a
finance charge, the capital element reducing
the obligation to the lessor and the finance
charge being wntten off to the profit and loss
account over the period of the lease In
proportion to the capital amount outstanding
Depreciation 1s charged over the shorter of the
estimated useful Iife and the lease period

Where the company obtains assets under
leasing arrangements where substantally all
the nsks and rewards of ownership remain with
the lessor, these are classified as operating
leases Rental costs ansing under operating
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leases are expensed on a straight ine basis
over the term of the lease

Where the company transfers substantially all
the nisks and rewards of ownership of an asset
to a lessee (finance lease)}, the assets are
accounted for as if they had been sold, and the
net investment in the lease 1s shown as a
receivable due from the lessee Over the lease
term, rentals are apportioned between a
reduction in the net investment in the lease and
finance lease income, such that finance lease
income produces a constant rate of return on
the net cash investment In the lease Finance
lease Iincome 18 Included within Interest
receivable and similar iIncome

g) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value
of purchase consideration over the fair value of
the net assets acquired Fair value adjustments
based on provisional estimates are amended
within one year of the acqusition, If required,
with a corresponding adjustment to goodwill

Goodwill 1s amortised over its estimated useful
ife which 1s 5 years Provision for any
impairment 1s made as descrnbed below

h) Impairment of goodwill and fixed assets

Impairments of goodwill and fixed assets are
calculated as the difference between the
carrying value of the net assets of income
generating units, including where appropnate
investments and goodwill, and therr recoverable
amounts Recoverable amount is defined as the
higher of net realisable value or estimated value
in use at the date the impairment review s
undertaken

Net realisable value represents the net amount
that can be generated through sale of assets
Value in use represents the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted on a pre-
tax basis, using the estimated cost of capital of
the income generating unit

Impairment reviews are carried out if there I1s
some ndication that impairment may have
occurred, or, where otherwise required, to
ensure that goodwill and fixed assets are not
carred above ther estimated recoverable
amounts

Impairments are recognised in the profit and
loss account and, where matenal, are disclosed
as excepttonal

i) Investments

Investments held as fixed assets are stated at
cost less amounts written off

j) Stock

Stock 1s stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value Cost includes labour,
materials, transport and attributable overheads

k) Provisions
Provisions are recognised where

* There I1s a present obligation as a result of a
past event,

+ |tis probable that there will be an outflow of
economic benefits to settle this obligation,
and

+ A reliable estmate of this amount can be
made

Self-insurance provisions are recogmsed for
claims notified and for claims incurred but which
have not yet been notified, based on advice
from the parent company's Independent
insurance advisers

Provisions are discounted to present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the
risks specific to the liability where the effect 1s
matenal

1) Pension costs

The company operates both defined benefit and
defined contribution schemes

For defined beneft schemes the amounts
charged to operating profit are the current and
past service costs and gans and losses on
settlements and curtailments They are included
as part of staff costs Past service costs are
recognised immediately in the profit and loss
account If the benefits have vested If the
benefits have not vested immediately the costs
are recogmised over the period until vesting
occurs The interest costs and the expected
return on assets 1s shown as a net amount of
other finance costs or credits adjacent to
interest Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised immediately in the statement of total
recognised gains and losses

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the
assets of the scheme held separately from
those of the company, in separate trustee
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administered funds Pension scheme assets
are measured at bid price and habilities are
measured on an actuanal basis using the
projected unit method and discounted at a rate
equivalent to the current rate of return on a high
gquality corporate bond of equivalent currency
and term to the scheme liabilities The actuanal
valuations are obtained at least tnennially and
are updated at each balance sheet date The
resulting defined benefit asset or hability, net of
the related deferred tax, 1 presented
separately

Costs of defined contribution pension schemes
are charged to the profit and loss account when
they fall due

m) Current and deferred taxation

Current taxation s provided at amounts
expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date

Deferred taxation 1s provided In respect of
timing differences between the treatment of
certain items for taxaton and accounting
purposes only to the extent that the company
has an obligation to pay more tax in the future
or a night to pay less tax n the future Deferred
tax 1s measured using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred tax
asset I1s realised or the deferred tax hability 1s
settled

Matenial deferred tax balances are discounted
using an appropnate nsk - free discount rate
Far the purpose of discounting, the period over
which accelerated capital allowances in respect
of infrastructure assets reverse 15 determined
by the annual costs of maintaining the operating
capability of the network based on an allocation
of the infrastructure renewals charge to existing
and future infrastructure assets

n) Perivatives and other financial
instruments

Debt instruments

The costs of debt instruments are charged to
the profit and loss account over the term of the
debt at a constant rate on the carrying amount
Such costs include the cost of 1ssue and any

discount to face value ansing on Issue, or any
premium arising on maturity

Derivative financial instruments

Financial instruments, in particular, interest rate
swaps and currency swaps, are used to
manage the financial nsks ansing from the
business activihbes of the company and the
financing of those activities

Energy swaps are used to manage the nsks of
future fluctuations In electricity prices There 1s
no trading achivity in financial instruments

Financial instruments are accounted for as
follows

Interest rate swaps are used to hedge the
company's exposure to movements in interest
rates The interest payable or receivable on
such swaps 18 accrued In the same way as
interest ansing on deposits or borrowings
Interest rate swaps are not revalued to far
value

Currency swaps are used to hedge the
company’s exposure to movements in foreign
exchange rates The nterest payable or
receivable on such swaps I1s accrued in the
same way as Interest ansing on deposits or
borrowings Currency swaps are not revalued to
farr value but are recogmsed in the balance
sheet at the difference between the swap rate
and the spot rate at the balance sheet date and
offset aganst the associated hedged
borrowings Energy swaps are not revalued to
fair value

0) Share based payments

The company operates a number of equity
settled, share based compensation plans for
employees utilising the shares of the ultimate
parent company The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant I1s
recognised as an expense over the vesting
penod of the grant

The far value of employee services Is
determined by reference to the far value of the
awards granted, calculated using an
appropnate pricing model, excluding the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions The
number of awards that are expected to vest
takes into account non-market vesting
condiions Iincluding, where appropriate,
continuing employment by the company The
charge 1s adjusted to reflect shares that do not
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vest as a result of falling to meet a non-market
condition

p) Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions arising during the
year are franslaied into sterling at the rate of
exchange ruling on the date of the transactron
All profits and losses on exchange arising
during the year are dealt with through the profit
and loss account

The following policies apply to the historical
cost financial statements only:
q) Basis of preparation

The historical cost financial statements have

been prepared under the historical cost
convention
r) Tangible fixed assets and

depreciation
Tangible fixed assets compnse
Infrastructure asseis

Infrastructure assets comprise a network of
systems being mains and sewers, impounding
and pumped raw water storage reservorrs,
dams, and sludge pipelines

Expenditure on infrastructure assets relating to
increases In capacity or enhancements of the
network and on maintaimng the operating
capabilty of the network in accordance with the
defined standards of service 1s treated as an
addition and included at cost after deducting
grants and contributions (see note 2t)

The depreciation charged for infrastructure
assets 15 the estimated, anticipated level of
annual expenditure required to maintain the
operating capabiity of the network less the
estimated, anticipated level of relevant annual
grants and contributions, calculated over a
medium to long period (being 15 years) In
accordance with RAG 105 the difference
between the infrastructure renewals charge and
infrastructure renewals expenditure 1s held as
an accrual or prepayment on the balance sheet
This 1s a departure from the provisions of FRS
15, which requires the infrastructure renewals
charge to be recorded as a depreciation charge
and deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset, and FRS 12 which does not allow
provisions for future maintenance

Other assels

Other assets are included at cost less

accumulated depreciation

Cost Includes all costs which are directly
attributable to bnnging the asset into working
condition for its intended use Directly
attributable costs on self constructed assets
include an element of the ‘overhead burden’,
which 1s the cost of overheads which would not
have been incurred in the absence of capital
works Directly attnbutable costs on self
constructed assels are capitalised up to the
point where the asset 1s capable of operating in
the manner intended by management

Finance costs are not capitalised

Freehold land 1s not depreciated Assets In the
course of construction are not depreciated until
commissioned Other assets are depreciated
on a straight line basis over therr estimated
economic lives, which are principally as follows

Years

Buildings 30-80
Fixed plant and equipment 20 - 40
Vehicles, mobile plant and computers 2 - 15

s) Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions received in respect of
non Infrastructure assets are treated as
deferred income and are recognised In the
profit and loss account over the useful
economic life of those assets

in accordance with industry practice, grants and
contributions relating to infrastructure assets
have been deducted from the cost of fixed
assets

Those grants and contributions relating to the
maintenance of the operating capability of the
infrastructure network are taken into account in
determining the depreciation charged for
infrastructure assets

The following policies apply to the current
cost financial statements only.

t) Basis of preparation

These accounts have been prepared for the
Appointed Business n accordance with
guidance 1ssue by the WSRA for modified real
term financial statements suitable for regulation
tn the water industry They measure profitability
on the basis of real financial capital
maintenance, In the context of assets which are
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valued at ther current cost value to the
business, with the exception of specialsed
operational and infrastructure assets

The accounting policies used are the same as
those applied in the historical cost accounts
except where set out below

u) Tangible fixed assets

Assets 1n operational use are valued at the
replacement cost of their operating capability
To the extent that the regulatory regime does
not allow such assets to earn a return high
enough to justify that value, this represents a
modification of the value to the business
pnnciple  Also, no provision 15 made for the
possible funding of future replacements of
assets by contnbutions from third parties and,
to the extent that some of the tangble fixed
assets would on replacement be so funded,
replacement cost again differs from value to the
business Redundant assets are valued at therr
recoverable amounts

An Asset Management Plan (AMP) survey of
existing assets as at 31 March 2008 was
undertaken dunng 2008/09 and the adjustments
to asset values as a result of that exercise were
included within tangible fixed assets In the
intervening years, between AMP surveys,
values are restated to take account of changes
in the general level of inflation, as measured by
changes in Retall Price Index (RPI), and any
other significant changes in asset records
identified dunng the year

i) Non infrastructure assets
Speciahised operational assels

The gross replacement cost of specialised
operational assets has been derved using the
latest cost information provided by the AMP

The wunamortised portion of third paity
contributions received 1s deducted in arriving at
net operating assets

Non-specialised operational assets

Non-specialised operational assets are valued
on the basis of open market value for existing
use at 31 March 1991 and have been
expressed in current terms by adjusting for
movements in property values

ii) Infrastructure assets

Mains, sewers, impounding and pumped raw
water storage reservoirs, dams and sludge
pipehnes are valued at replacement cost,
determined pnncipally on the basis of unit cost
data provided by the AMP

iii) Other assets

All other assets are valued on the basis of data
provided by the AMP

iv) Surplus land

Surplus land was valued at the current market
value for the purposes of the AMP Any
proceeds on disposal to be passed onto
customers will be taken into account, i
accordance with the requirements contained in
Condition B of the Instruments of Appointment
as Water and Sewerage Undertakers

v) Grants and other third party

contributions

Grants, infrastructure and other third party
contnbutions received since 31 March 1990 are
camed forward to the extent that any balance
has not been credited to revenue The balance
carned forward 1s restated for the change 1in RP{
for the year and treated as a reduction to fixed
assets

w) Real financial capital maintenance

adjustments

These adjustments are made to histoncal cost
operating profit in order to arrive at profit after
the maintenance of financial capital In real
terms

Working capital adjustment — this 1s calculated
by applying the change in RPI over the year to
the opening total of trade debtors and stock,
less trade creditors

Financing adustment — this 1s calculated by
applying the change in RPI over the year to the
opening balance of net finance, which
comprises all assets and labilites n the
balance sheet apart from those included in
working capital and excluding fixed assets,
deferred taxation provision, index linked debt
and dividends payable

x} Transferred assets

Assets transferred to the company include
assets transferred at 1 October 2011 under the
Private Drans and Sewers Transfer
Regulations (June 2011) These are included
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In fixed assets at their Modern Equivalent Asset
value with a corresponding credit to third party
contnibutions

y) Accounting separation

The tables presenting the analysis of operating
costs and fixed assets (the ‘accounting
separation’ tables, as descrnibed in note 4 and
5) have been prepared In accordance with our

3 Directors’ Remuneration

Information regarding Directors’ Remuneration can be found on page 43 of the Severn Trent Water
Limited Annual Report and Accounts 2015, including detals of the link to performance, how

Accounting Separation Methodology Statement
which can be found at
www severntrentwater co uk The methodology
statement explains the bases for allocations of
costs and assets and has been updated for
changes to the requirements in the year There
have otherwise been no major changes
Wherever possible, direct costs and assets
have been directly attnbuted to business units
Where this 1s not possible, appropnate cost
allocations have been applied as described In
the methodology

remuneration was calculated and details of amounts paid
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4 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs

a) Reconciliation of current cost turnover to actual outturn per Final

Determination {FD).
2015

£m
Final Determination (appointed only) 14294
Impact of higher/(lower) inflation 98 3
Ftnal Determination adjusted for inflation movement 1,527 7
Optants 08
New properties {11 1)
Demolitions {23}
Consumption changes - commercial 190
Consumption changes - domestic 132
Other 136
Actual outturn {(appointed only) 1,560 9
Actual income for year ended 31 March 2015 1s £131 5m more than allowed for in the final
determination Of this, £98 3m Is driven by higher RP| Higher consumption accounts for £32 2m
The remaining £1 Om of increase 1s accounted for by a combination of optants, new properties,
demolitions and other items of £2 1m, net of a £1 1m provision for accrued iIncome on voud
properties
b) Reconciliation of amounts billed and amounts recorded as historical cost
turnover

2015

£m
Billed 1,562.5
Movement in accrual 102
Total turnover (appointed and non-appointed) 1,572 7

Page 115 of 128




Notes to the current cost financial statements

4 Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs (continued)

c) Analysis of operating costs

Water
Raw water Treated

Resources  distribution Treatment  distnbution  Water total
2015 £m £Em £m £m £m
Operating expenditure
Power 89 23 260 74 446
Income treated as negative expenditure (02} - - - {02)
Service charges 10 - 03 - 113
Bulk supply imports 74 - 44 - 118
Other operating expenditure 110 18 532 874 153 4
Local authonty rates 49 16 206 180 451
Exceptional items 16 02 54 74 146
Total operating expenditure excluding third party services 44 6 59 1099 120 2 2806
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals charge o7 27 - 805 839
Current cost depreciation 90 42 522 523 1177
Recharges to other business units - - - - -
Recharges from other business units - - - - -
Amortisation of deferred credits 01) {0 1) (07 (0 6} (15)
Amortisation of intangible assets - - - - -
Total capital maintenance excluding third party services 96 68 515 1322 200 1
Third party services
Operating expenditure 35 - 13 06 54
Infrastructure renewals charge - - - - -
Current cost depreciation 02 - c4 - 086
Total operating costs 579 127 1631 253.0 486.7
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4 ¢) Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs (continued)

Sewerage
Sewage Sewage Sludge Sludge Sewerage
collection treatmont treatment disposal total
2015 £m £m £m £m £m
Operating expenditure
Power 88 237 (22) - 303
Income treated as negative expenditure - (6 4) (6 5) - (12 9)
Service charges 35 56 - - 91
Bulk supply imports - - - - -
Other operating expenditure 450 745 423 134 1752
Local authonty rates 02 222 39 - 263
Exceptional tems 20 57 27 02 106
Total operating expenditure excluding third party services 595 125 3 40 2 13.6 2386
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals charge 500 - - - 500
Current cost depreciation 325 1305 276 05 191 1
Recharges to other business units - - - - -
Recharges from other business units - - - - -
Amortisation of deferred credits (13) {02) - - (15)
Amortisation of intangible assets - - - - -
Total capitai maintenance excluding third party services 81.2 1303 276 05 2396
Third party services
Operating expenditure - - 19 - 19
Infrastructure renewals charge - - - - -
Current cost depreciation - - - - -
Total operating costs 140 7 2556 69.7 141 480 1
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4 ¢) Analysis of current cost turnover and operating costs (continued)

Water Sewerage Wholesale
total total total
2015 £m £m £m
Operating expenditure
Power 44 6 303 749
Income treated as negative expenditure 02) (12 9) (131)
Service charges 113 91 204
Bulk supply imports 118 - 118
Other operating expenditure 153 4 175 2 3286
Local authonty rates 451 263 714
Exceptional tems 14 6 106 252
Total operating expenditure excluding third party services 2806 2386 5192
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals charge 839 500 1339
Current cost depreciation 1177 491 1 3088
Recharges to other business units - - -
Recharges from other business units - - -
Amortisation of deferred credits (15) {15) (30)
Amortisation of intangible assets - - -
Total capital maintenance excluding third party services 2001 2396 4397
Third party services
Operating expenditure 54 19 73
Infrastructure renewals charge - - -
Current cost depreciation 06 - 06
Total operating costs 486 7 4801 966 8
Retail
Non- Retail
Household household total
2015 £m £m £m
Qperating expenditure
Customer services 312 28 340
Debt management 96 26 122
Doubtful debts 261 54 315
Meter reading 54 10 64
Services to developers - 01 01)
Other operating expenditure 237 24 261
Local authonty rates 07 - 07
Exceptional items 22 08 30
Total operating expendrture excluding third party services 989 149 113.8
Third party services cperating expenditure - - -
Total operating expenditure 989 149 1138
Capital maintenance
Current cost depreciation 145 13 158
Amortisation of deferred credits - - -
Amortisation of intangible assets - - -
Total capital maintenance 145 13 158
Total operating costs 1134 162 1296
Debt written off 204 40 244
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5

Analysis of tangible fixed assets by asset type within service

Water
Rasources Raw water Treatment Treated
distribution distribution

£m £m £m £m £m
Non-Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnil 2014 425 4 1259 18347 19757 43617
Reclassification adjustment 19 (0 8) (50) 92) (131}
RPI adjustment 38 10 155 167 370
Disposals {338) (14 5) (44 3) {26 6) (119 2)
Additions 38 04 740 76 0 154 2
At 31 March 2015 401 1 1120 1,874 9 2,0326 4,420 6
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2014 2995 799 1,053 6 12350  2,6680
AMP adjustment
Reclassification adjustment (18) 07 53 66 108
RPI adjustment 25 06 95 113 239
Disposals (336) (14 5) (430) (24 9) (116 0)
Charge for the year 92 42 526 523 1183
At 31 March 2015 2758 709  1,0780  1,2803 27050
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 1253 411 796 9 752 3 1,7156
At 1 Apnl 2014 1259 460 7811 7407 16937
Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2014 1,087 3 1,4137 46 12,562 8 15,068 4
Reclassification adjustment - - - - -
RPI adjustment 98 128 01 1140 136 7
Disposals - - - - -
Additions 04 13 - 702 719
At 31 March 2015 1,097 5 1,427 8 47 12,7470 15,277 0
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Analysis of tangible fixed assets by asset type within service (continued)

Sewerage
Sewage Sewage Sludge Sludge
collection treatment treatment disposal

£m £m Em £m £m
Non-|nfrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 April 2014 1,016 3 43659 7860 65 61747
Reclassification adjustment (4 3) 32 13 {01} 01
RPI adjustment a7 368 78 01 53 4
Disposals (49 8) {109 8) (26 3) {0 6) {186 5)
Additions 421 102 3 398 - 184 2
At 31 March 2015 1,0130 4,398 4 808 6 59 6,225 9
Depreciation
AL1 April 2014 6009  2,3623 4517 46 34195
Reclassification adjustment 31 28) (08) (0 5)
RPI adjustment 53 208 46 - 307
Disposals (49 2) (108 5) (259) {0 5) {184 1)
Charge for the year 325 1305 276 05 1911
At 31 March 2015 592 6 24023 457 2 46 34567
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 4204 1,996 1 3514 13 27692
At 1 Apni 2014 4154 20036 3343 19 27552
Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At1 April 2014 54,704 5 138 - - 547183
Reclassificatien adjustment - - - - -
RPI adjustment 494 0 - - - 494 0
Disposals - - - - -
Additions 627 26 - - 653
At 31 March 2015 55,261 2 164 - - 55,277 6
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5 Analysis of tangible fixed assets by asset type within service (continued)
Water Sewerage Wholesal
£m £m £m
Non-Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At1 Apnl 2014 43617 6,174 7 10,536 4
Reclassification adjustment (131) 01 (13 0}
RPI adjustment 370 534 904
Disposals (119 2) (186 5) (305.7)
Additions 154 2 184 2 338 4
At 31 March 2015 44206 6,2259 10,646.5
Depreciation
At1 Apnl 2014 2,668 0 3,4195 6,087 5
Reclassification adjustment 108 {0 5) 103
RPI adjustment 239 307 546
Disposals (116 0} (184 1) (300 1)
Charge for the year 118 3 191 1 3094
At 31 March 2015 2,7050 34567 6,161 7
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 1,715 6 2,769 2 4,484 8
At 1 Apnl 2014 1,6937 2,755 2 4,448 9
Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2014 15,068 4 54,718 3 69,786 7
RPI adjustment 1367 494 0 6307
Additions 719 653 137 2
At 31 March 2015 15,2770 55,277 6 70,554 6
At 1 Apnl 2014
Retail
Non-
Household household Total
£m £m £m
Non-Infrastructure assets
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2014 2426 221 2647
Reclassification adjustment 131 (0 1) 130
RPI1 adjustment 23 01 24
Disposals (155) (1" (16 6)
Additions 19 02 21
At 31 March 2015 244 4 21.2 265 6
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2014 1687 145 183 2
Reclassification adjustment (10 1) {02) (10 3)
RPI adjustment 17 01 18
Disposals {(137) (09 (14 6)
Charge for the year 14 5 13 158
At 31 March 2015 1611 14 8 1759
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 833 64 897
At 1 Apnl 2014 739 76 815
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6 Analysis of capital expenditure, grants and land sales
2015 2014
Grants and Grants and
Gross Net Gross Net
contributions contnbutions
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Capital expenditure - water
Base
Infrastruciure renewals expenditure (IRE) 893 (6 6) 827 977 89 888
Maintenance non-infrastructure (MNI) 1131 (0 8) 1123 101 3 29 98 4
Enhancements - -
{infrastructure enhancements 719 (22 6) 493 658 {155) 503
Non-infrastructure enhancements 421 on 420 379 - 379
Total capital expenditure - water 316 4 (30 1) 2863 302 7 (27 3) 2754
Grants and contnbutions - water
Developer contributions (14 2) (11 7)
Infrastructure charge receipts - new connections {93) (6 6)
Other contnbutions (6 6) (90)
Total grants and contnbutions - water (30 1) {27 3)
Caprtal expenditure - sewerage
Base
Infrastructure renewals expenditure (IRE) 54 4 (22) 522 547 {32) 515
Maintenance non-infrastructure (MNI) 1407 (0 1) 1406 1839 - 1839
Enhancements
Infrastructure enhancements 426 (127) 299 375 (80) 295
Non-infrastructure enhancements 375 01 376 590 Q1) 589
Large projects capex
Infrastructure enhancements - - - - -
Non-infrastructure enhancements - - - - -
Total capital expenditure - sewerage 2752 (149} 260 3 3351 {11 3) 3238
Grants and contributions - sewerage
Developer contnbutions (29) {1 1)
Infrastructure charge receipts - new connections (9 8) {7 0)
Other contributions (2 2) 32
Total grants and contnbutions - sewerage (149) (113)
Total capital expenditure - water and sewerage 5916 (45 0) 546 6 637 8 (38 6) 599 2
Land sales - Proceeds-disposals of protected land 97 101
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7 Working capital

2015 2014
£m £m
Stock 61 64
Trade debtors
Measured household 478 455
Unmeasured household 755 740
Measured non-household 200 218
Unmeasured non-household 06 06
Other 1286 66
Measured income accrual 183 9 1740
Prepayments and other debtors 873 602
Trade creditors (25 4) (156)
Deferred income - customer advance receipts (136 4) {138 0)
Capital creditors and accruals (50 0) (41 4)
Accruals and other creditors (140 1} {148 8)
Working capital 819 453
Total revenue outstanding - household 2239 2182
- non-household 330 325

There has been 2 5% movement in the Company's total revenue outstanding, which 1s not significant

8 Reconciliation of appointed business current cost operating
profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

2015 2014
£m £m
Current cost operating profit 467 5 4778
Working capital adjustment 04 55
Movement i working capital (26 1) 78
Receipts from other income 12 18
Current cost depreciation after amortisation of deferred income 3222 319 1
Current cost profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets (3 4) (5 3)
Infrastructure renewals charge 133.9 134 8
Movement In provisions 02 -
Other non-cash profit and loss items (4.4} (38 1)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 8915 903 2
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Fixed interest Floating Index

rate rate linked Total

£m £m £m £m
Bank Loans 1500 984 3 106 4 1,240 7
Loans due from parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings - (108 3) - (108 3)
Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 2,447 3 162 4 1,075 3 3,6850
Finance lease receivables (100 8) - - (100 8)
Finance lease payables 3881 950 - 483 1
Total net borrowings 2,884 6 1,133 4 1,1817 51997
Impact of inlterest rate swaps entered mnto by the company 318 1 (318 1) - .
Total borrowings 3,2027 8153 1,181 7 51997
Net debt 1s compnised as follows
Total borrowings - - - 51997
Cash - - - (4 1)
Shorl term deposits - - - {115.0)
Net Debt - - - 5,080 6
Regulatory capital value 71,7395
Gearing 65 6%
Full year equivalent nominal interest cost 1720 71 334 2125
Full year equivalent cash interest payment 1720 71 225 2016
Indicative interest rates
Indicative weighted average nominal interest rate 53% 09% 28% 4 1%
Indicative weighted average cash interest rate 53% 0 9% 19% 39%
Weighted average years 10 matunty 96 40 344 140
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9. Analysis of net debt

The Severn Trent Water Regulatory accounts have been prepared on a single company basis
for 2014/5 The table below sets out a reconciliation between net debt on a single company
basis and net debt on a consolidated basis, as well as the resultant effect on gearing

£m
Severn Trent Water Limited net debt as at 31 March 2015 5080 6
fntra group loans and leases (378 5)
Cash held in Severn Trent Water Limited subsidiaries (0 9)
Severn Trent Water Limited net debt as at 31 March 2015-consohdated basis 4,701 0
Year end RCV 77395
Gearing based on net debt on a consolidated basis 80 7%
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Information in respect of transactions during the year with any other business or activity of the
appointee or any associated company

a) Borrowings and intercompany lending

There was a matenal transaction during the year made by Severn Trent Water Limited on behalf of Severn
Trent Utilties Finance Plec, which was a payment of £139 2m in respect of an interest rate swap close out
This was settled by means of intercompany transachions between the two group entities There were no
further cash or non cash loans by Severn Water to other group entities

Sums borrowed and repaid by the appointee during the year from associated companies in cash were as
disclosed in the table below

Loans to Severn Trent Water appointed business, by
associated businesses during the year ended 31 March

2015
During year Year ended Year ended
Borrowed/! 2015 Interest rates 31 Marchgglance
Repaid Em % 2015 £m
East Worcester Water Limited Borrowed 115 3 Mth LIBID Owed 750
East Worcester Water Limited Repaid 81 3 Mth LIBID
Severn Trent Leasing Limited Borrowed 89 475 Owed 196 0
Severn Trent Leasing Limited Repaid o8 475
Severn Trent Plc Borrowed 585 LIBOR +6% Qwed 270
Severn Trent Plc Repaid 97 5 LIBOR +6%
Severn Trent Reservoirs Limited Borrowed 04 3 Mth LIBID QOwed 129
Severn Trent Utiities Finance Plc Repaid 01 3MthLIBID Owed 06
b) Dividends

The company’s dividend policy 1s to declare dividends which are consistent with the company’s regulatory
obhigations and at a level which 1s decided each year after consideration of a number of factors, including
regulatory uncertainty, market expectations, actual and potential efficiencies, future cash flow requirements
and balance sheet considerations

The amount declared i1s expected to vary each year as the impact of factors changes The ordinary
dividend declared and paid by the company in 2014/15 amounted to £203 7million (2014 £340 0 million),
being 20 4 p per share (2014 34 Op per share)

c) Transfer of assets/liabilities, omissions, waivers, guarantees

There were no transfers of assets or liabilities to associated companies, no guarantees were i1ssued in
favour of associated companies There were no nghts omitted to be exercised resulting 1n a reduction in the
value of net assets of the company and no waiwvers of any consideration, remuneration, or any other
payment receivable by the company

d) Supply of services
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Year ended 31 March 2015
Services supplied by the appointee to associated companies are outhned in the table below Water
tankering, reception, treatment and disposal of waste 1s supphed at market rates Other services are

suppled at cost

Service Company Turnover of Terms of Value

the associate supply

in the period

£m £m
Service charges, payroll, legal, other Various Various Cost 07
Water tankering treatment , waste disposal Vanous Vanous Third party 08
Sale of crops Severn Trent Green Power Ltd Cost 06
Pass through of management charges Severn Trent Plc Cost 63
B4

Services supplied to the appointee by associated companies are outlined in the table below Third party
terms of supply of matenals and other engineering services by Severn Trent Water are supplied using a
competitive letting process Other market testing 1s used to determine third party terms used to supply
services from Derwent Insurance Ltd and Severn Trent Green Power Ltd Severn Trent Plc recharges cost
by means of management charges

Turnover of

associate in the Terms of

Service Company periods Supply Value
£m £m

Insurance services Derwent Insurance Ltd 7 8 Market tested 6.2
Supply of matenals, engineenng services  Severn Trent Services Ltd 58 Competitive let 1.6
Supply of electricity Severn Trent Green Power Ltd 48 Market tested 1.9
Pass through costs-management charges Severn Trent Pic 1,801 3 Costs 1.1
N/A N/A 10.8
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Directorships

Severn Trent Water conducts its appointed business so as to ensure arm's length trading and avoid cross-
subsidy in the spint of the Condition F of the instrument of Appointment No directorships are held by
Severn Trent Water directors in circumstances which might in practice result in conflicts of interest in intra-
group trading relationships The company discloses the following information as part of its compliance with
RAG 5 05, listing those directors of the company who held directorships in the following group companies
duning the year ended 31 March 2015 and up to the date of signing the Annual report and financial

statements 2015

Director of Severn Trent Water Ltd Resigned Other group directorships held
During year ended 31 March 2015
Andrew Duff Severn Trent Plc
Michael McK
\chael Mcneon 1 Apni 2015 Severn Trent Holdings Ltd
Michael McKeon 12 May 2015 Severn Trent Luxembourg Overseas Holdings SARL
Michael McKeon 12 May 2015 Severn Trent Holdings SA
Martin Kane 23 January 2015 Severn Trent Iitalia SPA
Marun Kane 23 January 2015 Severn Trent Environment Services Inc
Martin Kane 23 January 2015 Severn Trent Services Inc
Martin Kane 23 January 2015 Severn Trent Water Purification Inc
Martin Kane 23 January 2015 Exel Technologies International Corparation
Martin Kane 23 January 2015 Severn Trent Water Technologies (Shanghai) Co Limited
Martin Kane 23 January 2015 Severn Trent Dencra Technologies (Shanghai) Ltd
Andy Smith 23 January 2015 Severn Trent Services Limited
Andy Smith 23 January 2015 Severn Trent Denora Ltd
Andy Smith 23 January 2015 Severn Trent Services (Water and Sewage) Limited

On 12 May 2015 James Bowling was appointed to the following directorship

Severn Trent Luxembourg Overseas Holdings Sarl

Analysis of properties

2015

2014

Water Sewerage Water Sewerage

Number of properties ('000s)
Households billed 3,147 6 3,590 2 3,1384 3,5803
Non-households billed 182 1 1950 182 8 197 8
Household voids 143 1 1350 132 6 1496
Non-household voids 314 779 209 502
Properties served by new appointee in supply area as at 1 Apnii 2009 09 09 80 80
Per capita consumption (excluding supply pipe leakage) I/h/d !
Unmeasured household 1349 - 138 3 - !
Measured household 1120 - 1126 - :
Volume {Ml/d)
Bulk supply export 570 - 562 -
Bulk supply import 3504 - 3516 -

1,814 3 - 1,817 9 -

Distribution input
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